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National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
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Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra East, 
Mumbai- 400051 

Symbol: PHOENIXLTD 

Sub: Notice of Meeting of the Equity shareholders of The Phoenix Mills Limited 
convened as per the directions of the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai 
Bench 

Pursuant to the directions of the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal in 
the hearing held on November 13, 2020 in the matter of Company Application No. 
1022/MB/2020 in Company Scheme Application No. 4075/MB/2019, we wish to inform 
you that a meeting of the Equity shareholders of The Phoenix Mills Limited ("Transferee 
Company") will be held on Tuesday, December 29, 2020 at 12:00 Noon ("Meeting") 
through Video Conferencing or Other Audio Visual Means ("VC/ OAVM"), following the 
operating procedures (with requisite modifications as may be required) referred tc. in 
Circular No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 read with Circular Nos. 17 /2020 dated April 13, 
2020, 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020 and 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020 issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India ("MCA Circulars"), for the purpose of 
considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the arrangement 
embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation (Merger by Absorption) of Phoenix Hospitality 
Company Private Limited ("the Transferor Company") with the Transferee Company and 
their respective shareholders (the "Scheme" or "Scheme of Amalgamation") under Sections 
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act"). 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 230(4), 108 and 110 of the Act read with Rule 20 and 
Rule 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, and Rule 6(3)(xi) 
and Rule 9 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamation) Rules, 
2016 (as amended from time to time), Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing Regulations') and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and of SEBI Listing Regulations, and the SEBI 
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017 /21 ualeu March 10, 2017, as amended, the Company 
will also be offering remote e-voting facility (prior to the Meeting) and e-voting during the 
Meeting to the Equity shareholders (including the public shareholders) to cast their votes 
on the resolution set forth in the Notice. The Company has appointed Link Intime India 
Private Limited ("Link Intime") to provide remote e-voting facility and e-voting during the 
Meeting, as well as to enable the equity shareholders of to attend and participate in the 
Meeting through VC/OAVM. 
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The remote e-voting commences on Sunday, November 29, 2020 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on 
Monday, December 28, 2020 at 5:00 P.M. 

The voting rights for the purposes of remote e-voting or e-voting facility during the 
Meeting, shall be reckoned on the basis of the paid-up value of the equity shares registe>red 
in the name of the equity shareholder as on Friday, November 20, 2020 ("Cut-off Date"). 

Further, in compliance with the first proviso to Section 230(3) of the Act, Rule 7 of 
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamation) Rules, 2016 (as amended 
from time to time) and Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we hereby enclose a copy of the Notice of the Meeting of 
Equity Shareholders along with the explanatory statement and other relevant annexures 
which have been sent to the Equity Shareholders of the Company. 

The detailed instructions for joining the Meeting through VC/ OA VM, manner of casting 
vote through remote e-voting and through e-voting during the Meeting, are given in the 
enclosed notice of the Meeting. 

The aforesaid documents are being dispatched electronically only to those Equity 
Shareholders whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company /Link Intime India 
Private Limited ("Registrar and Share Transfer Agents") or the Depositories, and will also 
be available on the website of the Company. 

This intimation is also being uploaded on the Company's website at 
http://www.thephoenixmilfa.com. 

You are requested to take the aforesaid information on your record. 

Yours Faithfully, 
For The Phoenix Mills Limited 

��c,,,_� 
Gajendra Mewara 
Company Secretary 

Encl.: As above 
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NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED 
CONVENED AS PER THE DIRECTIONS OF THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI 

BENCH 

MEETING:
Day Tuesday
Date December 29, 2020
Time 12.00 Noon
Mode of Meeting In view of the CoVID-19 pandemic and related social distancing norms and as per

the directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, the
Meeting shall be conducted through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means.

POSTAL BALLOT AND REMOTE E-VOTING:
Commencing on Sunday, November 29, 2020 at 9.00 AM (IST)
Ending on Monday, December 28, 2020 at 5.00 PM (IST)
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FORM NO. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230(3) and Rule 6 and 7]

BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH 

COMPANY APPLICATION NO. 1022/MB/2020 

IN 

COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. 4075/MB/2019

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013;

AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder;

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Merger by Absorption of PHOENIX
HOSPITALITY COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Transferor Company”)

With

THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED (“the Transferee Company”)

AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS.

THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED )
a company registered under Act No. VI of 1882 of )
the Legislative Council of India with the Registrar of )
Joint Stock Companies having its registered )
office at, 462, Senapati Bapat Marg, )
Lower Parel (West), Mumbai – 400 013 )
CIN: L17100MH1905PLC000200 )…Applicant Company/

Transferee Company

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED 

To,
The Equity Shareholders of The Phoenix Mills Limited

NOTICE is hereby given that the Mumbai Bench of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’ or 
‘Tribunal’) has in its hearing held on November 13, 2020, has directed that a meeting of the Equity
Shareholders of The Phoenix Mills Limited (‘Transferee Company’ or ‘PML’) (hereinafter referred to as the
‘Meeting’) be held for the purpose of considering, and, if thought fit, approving with or without modification,
the arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation (Merger by Absorption) of Phoenix Hospitality
Company Private Limited (‘Transferor Company’ or ‘PHCPL’) with the Transferee Company and their
respective shareholders (‘Scheme’ or ‘Scheme of Amalgamation’), pursuant to the provisions of Section
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in pursuance of the directions of NCLT, a Meeting of Equity shareholders of
the Transferee Company is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, December 29, 2020 at 12.00 Noon (IST)
through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means (‘VC/OAVM’) following the operating procedures
(with requisite modifications as may be required) referred to in Circular No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020,
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, Circular No. 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020 and Circular No.
33/2020 dated September 28, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (‘MCA 
Circulars’). Further, there shall be no meeting requiring physical presence at a common venue in view of the
present circumstances on account of the CoVID-19 pandemic.

Equity Shareholders are requested to consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the
following Resolution under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification(s) thereof for the time being in force) with requisite majority:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and 
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and the National Company Law Tribunal Rules, 2016 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the Securities and 2



Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 read with Circular No. 
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated January 3, 2018, both issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India, the Observation Letters dated November 4, 2019 issued by BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited and provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company and subject to the approval of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench 
(‘NCLT’), and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory and other 
authorities, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be 
prescribed or imposed by the NCLT or by any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such 
consents, approvals and permissions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the 
Company (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’, which term shall be deemed to mean and include one 
or more Committee(s) constituted/ to be constituted by the Board or any person(s) which the Board 
may nominate to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution), the proposed 
arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation (Merger by Absorption) of Phoenix Hospitality 
Company Private Limited (‘the Transferor Company’) with The Phoenix Mills Limited (‘the 
Transferee Company’) and their respective shareholders (‘the Scheme’ or ‘Scheme of 
Amalgamation’) as placed before this Meeting and initialled by the Chairperson of the Meeting for the 
purpose of identification, be and is hereby approved; 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or 
necessary to give effect to this Resolution and effectively implement the Scheme, and to accept such 
modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or 
imposed by the NCLT while sanctioning the arrangement embodied in the Scheme or by any 
authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or doubts or 
difficulties that may arise including passing of such accounting entries and/or making such adjustments 
in the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may 
deem fit and proper.” 

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in compliance with the provisions of (i) Section 230(4) read with Sections 108
and 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 20 and 22 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended; (ii) Rule 6(3)(xi) and Rule 9 of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016; (iii) Regulation 44 and other applicable provisions of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015; and (iv) Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 read with Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated January 3, 2018, both issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, the
Transferee Company has provided the facility of remote electronic voting (‘remote e-voting’) prior to the
meeting and e-voting during the Meeting using the facility offered by Link Intime India Private Limited (‘Link 
Intime’), so as to enable the Equity Shareholders (which includes the public shareholders) to consider and
approve the Scheme by way of the aforesaid Resolution. Accordingly, the Equity Shareholders may cast their
votes either through remote e-voting or through e-voting during the Meeting being held through VC/OAVM by
assenting or dissenting to the said Resolution.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that copy of the Scheme, the Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 230(3)
read with Section 102 and Section 232(2) of the Act and Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 along with all annexures to such statement are enclosed
herewith. A copy of this Notice and the accompanying documents are also placed on the website of the
Company viz. www.thephoenixmills.com  and will also be available on the website of BSE Limited (BSE) and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) at www.bseindia.com  and www.nseindia.com  respectively
and also on the website of Link Intime at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and can also be obtained free of
charge on any working day (except Saturday, Sunday and Public Holidays) between 11:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.,
from the Registered Office of the Transferee Company and/or at the Corporate Office of the Transferee
Company at 2nd Floor, R. R. Hosiery Building, Shree Laxmi Woollen Mills Compound, Opp Shakti Mills, Off
Dr. E. Moses Road, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai - 400011 or at the office of its Advocates, M/s. Kanga & Co. having
address at Readymoney Mansion, 43, Veer Nariman Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that since the physical attendance of Equity Shareholders has been dispensed
with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies by
Equity Shareholders under Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 will not be available for the said Meeting
and hence, the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

The voting rights of the Equity Shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share
capital of the Transferee Company as on November 20, 2020, being the cut-off date. The Equity
Shareholders may refer to the Notes of this Notice for further details on remote e-voting and e-voting during
the Meeting.
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The NCLT has appointed Mr. Shishir Shrivastava, Managing Director and failing him Mr. Pradumna Kanodia,
Director - Finance and failing him Mr. Rajendra Kalkar, Whole Time Director of the Transferee Company to be
the Chairperson of the said Meeting including any adjournment(s) thereof.

The Scheme, if approved in the aforesaid Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the NCLT.

Shishir Shrivastava 
      DIN: 01266095  

Chairperson appointed for the Meeting 

Dated: November 26, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

Registered Office: 462, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai-400013
CIN: L17100MH1905PLC000200
E-mail: secretarial@phoenixmarketcity.in
Website: www.thephoenixmills.com

Notes: 

1) The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sections 102, 230(3), 232(1) and 232(2) of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘Act’) read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016, in respect of the business set out in the Notice is annexed hereto.

2) In view of the ongoing CoVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed and as per the
said NCLT directions read with Circular No.14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated April
13, 2020, Circular No. 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020 and Circular No. 33/2020 dated September 28,
2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (‘MCA Circulars’), meeting of
Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company is being held through Video Conferencing/Other Audio
Visual Means (‘VC/OAVM’). The detailed procedure for participation in the Meeting through VC/OAVM is
given in note no. 21.

3) The voting rights shall be reckoned in proportion to the paid-up value of the equity shares registered in
the name(s) of Equity Shareholders as on the close of the business hours of November 20, 2020 (‘cut-
off date’) as per the Register of Members/list of Beneficial Owners as furnished by the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents (‘RTA’) / National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) /Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (‘CDSL’) (collectively referred to as ‘Depositories’).

4) Since the Meeting is being held, pursuant to directions of the NCLT and MCA Circulars, through
VC/OAVM, physical attendance of the Equity Shareholders has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the
facility for appointment of proxies by the Equity Shareholders will not be available for Meeting.

5) Corporate/Institutional Members are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the Meeting
through VC/OAVM on their behalf and cast their votes through remote e-voting or e-voting during the
Meeting. Corporate/Institutional Members intending to authorize their representatives to participate and
vote during the Meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the Board resolution / authorization
letter to the Scrutinizer at e-mail ID associates.rathi@gmail.com with a copy marked to the Company at
investorrelations@highstreetphoenix.com, authorising its representative(s) to attend and vote through
VC/ OAVM on their behalf at the Meeting, pursuant to Section 113 of the Act. Corporate/ Institutional
Investors who are Equity Shareholders of the Company, are encouraged to attend the meeting through
their authorised representative.

6) The Equity Shareholders can join the Meeting through VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.

7) Attendance of the Equity Shareholders participating in the Meeting through VC/OAVM facility shall be
counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

8) All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement along with the
Statutory Registers maintained by the Transferee Company will be available for inspection by the Equity
Shareholders at the Registered Office of the Transferee Company and/or at the Corporate Office of the
Transferee Company at 2nd Floor, R. R. Hosiery Building, Shree Laxmi Woollen Mills Compound, Opp
Shakti Mills, Off Dr. E. Moses Road, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai-400011 on any working day (except Saturdays,
Sundays and Public Holidays) between 11:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., upto and including the date of the
Meeting.
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9) In view of the ongoing CoVID 19 pandemic and in accordance with the MCA Circulars and pursuant to
directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“Tribunal”) and Rule 6(2) of
the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, this Notice is being
dispatched only in electronic form to all Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company. The Notice is
being dispatched only through electronic mode and only to those Equity Shareholders whose names
appear in the Register of Members maintained by Link Intime and the list of Beneficial Owners
maintained by the Depositories as on November 20, 2020, being the cut-off date. Any person who
acquires shares and becomes an Equity Shareholder of the Transferee Company after such date shall
not be eligible to vote either through remote e-voting or by e-voting during the Meeting. A person who is
not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purposes only. Therefore,
those Equity Shareholders who have not yet registered their e-mail address are requested to get their e-
mail addresses registered by following the procedure given below:

(i) In light of the MCA Circulars, Equity Shareholders who have not registered their email address
and in consequence could not receive the e-voting notice may temporarily get their email
registered with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime India Private
Limited, by clicking the link: https://linkintime.co.in/EmailReg/email_register.html and following the
registration process as guided thereafter. Post successful registration of the email, the Equity
Shareholders would get soft copy of the Notice and the procedure for e-voting along with the User
ID and the Password to enable e-voting. In case of any queries, Equity Shareholders may write to
rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in.

(ii) It is clarified that for permanent registration of email address, the Equity Shareholders are
however requested to register their email address, in respect of electronic holdings with the
Depository through the concerned Depository Participants and in respect of physical holdings
with the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime India Private Limited.

10) The Notice of the Meeting of Equity Shareholders of the Transferee Company will be posted on the
website of the Transferee Company at www.thephoenixmills.com  and website of Link Intime India
Private Limited at www.instavote.linkintime.co.in, and also on the websites of the Stock Exchanges
where the equity shares of the Transferee Company are listed.

11) The Notice convening the Meeting shall be published through an advertisement in the “Business
Standard” in English language and “Navshakti” in the Marathi language, both having circulation in
Mumbai.

12) As per the directions of the NCLT and in compliance with the provisions of (i) Section 230(4) read with
Sections 108 and 110 of the Companies Act, 2013; (ii) Rule 6(3)(xi) and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016; (iii) Rule 22 read with Rule 20 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014; (iv)
Secretarial Standards – 2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
(v) Regulation 44 and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and (vi) Securities and Exchange Board of
India Circular dated March 10, 2017 bearing reference No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21, as amended from
time to time, the Transferee Company is pleased to provide its Equity Shareholders the facility to cast
their votes on the Resolution proposed to be considered at the Meeting either by (i) remote e-voting prior
the Meeting (by using the electronic voting platform provided by Link Intime) or (ii) e-voting during the
Meeting. The Transferee Company has engaged the services of Link Intime as the authorized agency to
provide the e-voting facility. Equity Shareholders opting to cast their votes by remote e-voting or e-voting
during the meeting are requested to read the instructions in the Notes below carefully.

13) The voting period for remote e-voting shall commence on and from Sunday, November 29, 2020 at 9.00
a.m. (IST) and end on Monday, December 28, 2020 at 5.00 p.m (IST). The remote e-voting module
shall be disabled by Link Intime for remote e-voting thereafter. Once the vote on a Resolution is cast by
an Equity Shareholder, the Equity Shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. Equity
Shareholders who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the meeting will be eligible to
participate at the meeting but shall not be eligible to cast their vote during the Meeting.

14) As directed by the Tribunal, Mr. Himanshu S. Kamdar (Membership No. FCS 5171) Partner of M/s. Rathi
& Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, shall act as Scrutinizer to scrutinize votes cast by remote
e-voting and e-voting during the Meeting, and  shall submit a report on votes cast to the Chairperson of
the Meeting or a person authorized by him in writing, within 48 hours from the conclusion of the Meeting.

15) The Scrutinizer shall submit his combined report to the Chairperson of the Meeting after completion of
the scrutiny of the votes cast by the Equity Shareholders through (i) remote e-voting process and (iii) e-
voting during the Meeting. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the votes shall be final.

16) Upon receipt of Scrutinizer’s report, the Chairperson of the Meeting or a person authorized by him in
writing shall announce the result of remote e-voting and e-voting during the Meeting within 48 hours from
the conclusion of the Meeting, and the same shall be immediately displayed, along with the Scrutinizer’s5

https://linkintime.co.in/EmailReg/email_register.html
mailto:rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
http://www.thephoenixmills.com/


report on the website of the Transferee Company at www.thepheonixmills.com and on the website of
Link Intime at www.instavote.linkintime.co.in. The results along with Scrutinizer’s report shall also be
immediately forwarded to the Stock Exchanges where the Transferee Company’s shares are listed viz. 
BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The results shall also be displayed on
the notice board at the Registered Office of the Transferee Company.

17) Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolution shall be deemed to be passed on the
date of the Meeting i.e. on December 29, 2020.

18) Since the Meeting will be held through VC/OAVM in accordance with the NCLT’s directions and MCA
Circulars, the route map, proxy form and attendance slip are not attached to this Notice.

19) REMOTE E-VOTING INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS

1. Visit the e-voting system of Link Intime India Private Limited (LIIPL). Open the internet browser and
launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

Those who are first time users of LIIPL e-voting platform or holding shares in physical mode have
to mandatorily generate their own Password, as under:

▶ Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details:

A. User ID: Enter your User ID

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit
Beneficiary ID

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character
DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio
Number registered with the Company

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated
their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to
you, if applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP /
Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format).

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your
DP/Company.

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide either ‘C’ or ‘D’,
above

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide ‘D’, above

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall
provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above

▶ Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special
Character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter).

▶ Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated).

NOTE: If Shareholders/ members are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e-Voting system of
LIIPL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then they can use their
existing password to login. 

2. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.

3. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’.

4. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon.

5. E-voting page will appear.

6. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If
you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).

7. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and
accordingly modify your vote.6
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8. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log
on the e-voting system of Link Intime at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as
‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are also required to upload a scanned certified true
copy of the board resolution /authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund /
Corporate Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

If you have forgotten the password: 

 Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’

 Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and Click on ‘Submit’.

• In case Shareholders/ members is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered
e-mail address.

• Shareholders/ members can set the password of his/her choice by providing the information about the
particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc.
as mentioned above.

• The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special character (@!#$&*), at least one
numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter.

• It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

For Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the
Resolution contained in this Notice.

During the voting period, Shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the
resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

Shareholders/ members holding multiple folios/demat account shall choose the voting process separately for
each of the folios/demat account.

In case members have any queries or have any grievances regarding e-voting, they may refer the Frequently 
Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and InstaVote e-Voting manual available at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in,
under Help section or can contact Mr. Rajiv Ranjan | Assistant Vice President - e-Voting, Link Intime India
Pvt. Ltd, C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai – 400 083, at +91 22 49186000 | Extn-2540 or at
+91 22 49186000 | Extn-2505 or send an email to enotices@linkintime.co.in.

20) INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS/ MEMBERS TO VOTE DURING THE MEETING

Once the electronic voting is activated by the Scrutinizer during the Meeting, Equity Shareholders who have
not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

a) On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”
b) Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/

registered email Id) received during registration for InstaMEET and click on ‘Submit’.
c) After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/

Against” for voting.
d) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of

shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against’.
e) After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click

on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else
to change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote.

f) Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote
subsequently.

Note: Members, who will be present in the Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not cast their vote on
the Resolution through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote
through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the
Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be
eligible to vote again during the Meeting.
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21) INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTENDING MEETING THROUGH VIDEO-CONFERENCING (VC) / OTHER
AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS (OAVM)

Equity Shareholders/Members are entitled to attend the Meeting through VC/OAVM provided by Link Intime
by following the below mentioned process:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in

2. Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: -

A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No.

 Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
 Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID

followed by 8 Digit Client ID
 Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with

the Company

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their PAN
with the Depository Participant (DP)/Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if
applicable.

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number.

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company.

3. Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the
meeting).

Note: Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband
for better experience.

Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. It is therefore
recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

22) INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS TO SPEAK DURING THE MEETING

Equity Shareholders who would like to speak or express their views or ask questions during the Meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at least 3 days in advance with the Company at
investorrelations@highstreetphoenix.com. Only those Equity shareholders who register themselves as a
speaker, will be allowed to express their views / ask questions during the Meeting. The Company reserves the
right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the Meeting.

8

https://instameet.linkintime.co.in/
mailto:investorrelations@highstreetphoenix.com


FORM NO. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230(3) and Rule 6 and 7]

BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH 

COMPANY APPLICATION NO. 1022/MB/2020 

IN 

COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. 4075/MB/2019

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013;

AND

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder;

AND

In the matter of Scheme of Merger by Absorption of PHOENIX
HOSPITALITY COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Transferor Company”)

With

THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED (“the Transferee Company”)

AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS.

THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED )
a company registered under Act No. VI of 1882 of )
the Legislative Council of India with the Registrar of )
Joint Stock Companies having its registered )
office at, 462, Senapati Bapat Marg, )
Lower Parel (West), Mumbai – 400 013 )
CIN: L17100MH1905PLC000200 )…Applicant Company/

Transferee Company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT TO THE NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS 
OF THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED UNDER SECTIONS 230(3), 232(1) AND (2) READ WITH SECTION 102 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS 
AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 

1. This is a statement accompanying the Notice convening the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the
Transferee Company (‘the Meeting’), pursuant to the directions of National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench (‘NCLT’ or ‘the Tribunal’) in the Company Scheme Application referred to hereinabove, to
be held on Tuesday, December 29, 2020 at 12.00 Noon for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit,
approving with or without modification(s), the arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation
proposed to be made between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company and their respective
Shareholders.

2. In this statement, Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited is hereinafter referred to as the
‘Transferor Company’ or ‘PHCPL’ and The Phoenix Mills Limited is hereinafter referred to as the
‘Transferee Company’ or ‘the Applicant Company’ or ‘the Company’ or ‘PML’. The other definitions
contained in the Scheme of Amalgamation between the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company and their respective Shareholders (herein after referred to as the ‘Scheme’ or ‘Scheme of
Amalgamation’) will also apply to this statement. The Scheme provides for the Amalgamation of the
Transferor Company with the Transferee Company pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of
the Companies Act, 2013 hereinafter referred to as the ‘Act’ and other applicable provisions of the Act
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment or amendment thereof).

3. In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be considered
approved by the Equity Shareholders only if it is approved by a majority in number representing three
fourth in value of such Equity Shareholders, of the Transferee Company who have voted either through
remote e-voting or e-voting during the Meeting.

SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, read with SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated January 3, 2018 (‘SEBI Circulars’), inter-alia provides that the Scheme shall
be acted upon only if the votes cast by the Public Shareholders of the Transferee Company in favour of9



the aforesaid Resolution for approval of the Scheme are more than the number of votes cast by the Public
Shareholders against it. For this purpose, the term ‘Public’ shall have the meaning assigned to it in Rule
2(d) of the Securities Contracts (Regulations) Rules, 1957 and the term ‘Public Shareholders’ shall be 
construed accordingly. In terms of these SEBI circulars, the Transferee Company has provided the facility
of e-voting to its Public Shareholders.

4. A copy of the Scheme setting out in detail the terms and conditions of the Amalgamation, approved by
Board of Directors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company at their respective meetings
held on August 7, 2019, is enclosed herewith as Annexure A.

5. The Transferor Company and Transferee Company have filed the Scheme with the Registrar of
Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra.

6. Background of the Transferee Company is as under:

Transferee Company is a company registered under Act No. VI of 1882 of the Legislative Council of India
with the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies, Bombay on January 27, 1905 deemed to be registered
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at 462 Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel- West, Mumbai – 400013, The Corporate Identification Number of the Transferee Company
is L17100MH1905PLC000200. The PAN of PML is AAACP3325J. The email address of the Transferee
Company is secretarial@phoenixmarketcity.in.

Transferee Company at present is engaged in mixed use retail-led real estate development activities on a
Pan-India basis. The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Transferee
Company as on the September 30, 2020 was as under:

Authorised Share Capital:

22,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each   Rs.45,00,00,000/-

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital:

17,16,83,651 Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each   Rs.34,33,67,302/-

There is no change in the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Transferee Company since
the above referred date except for the 57,375 Equity Shares allotted to employees pursuant to their
exercise of Stock Options granted to them by the Transferee Company.

The main objects of the Transferee Company are set out in the Memorandum of Association of the
Transferee Company.

The main objects inter alia are as under:

Transferee Company vide a Special Resolution passed on October 10, 2005 altered the provisions of its
Memorandum of Association with respect to its objects. Some of the objects of the Transferee Company
on its incorporation under Clause III of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company are as
under:

(a) To acquire and work the Mills and business lately purchased from the Britannia Mills Limited, and its
Liquidators, and with a view there to enter into a certain Agreement in the terms of the draft
agreement set forth in Schedule A to the Articles of Association which accompany these presents and
to carry the same into effect with or without modification.

(b) To carry on all or any one or more of the business following, that is to say, to purchase, comb, prepare,
spin dye, bleach and deal in cotton, wool, jute, silk, flax, hemp and other fibrous substances and to
weave or otherwise manufacture, buy and sell and deal in yarn, linen cloth and other goods and 
fabrics whether textile, frebled, netted or looped. 

(c) To acquire by purchase, lease, exchange or otherwise any land, building, easements, rights,
privileges, machinery, plant and stock-in-trade.

(d) To sell, improve, manage, develop, exchange lease, mortgage, dispose of, turn to account, or
otherwise deal with, all or any part of the property and rights of the Company.

(da) To carry on the business and to own, acquire, construct, erect, renovate, maintain, run, take on lease, 
give on lease, let out, operate and manage shopping centers, malls, shopping arcades, theatres, 
auditoriums, stadiums, clubs, spas, resorts, holiday homes, sports, amusement and family 
entertainment centers or parks of all nature and kinds and types and to carry on the business of 
setting up of national and international sports and amusement parks in India or elsewhere and to 
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purchase and/or otherwise acquire and equip any other sports or amusement center, public or private 
parks.  

(db) To carry on the business of developing, buying, selling and otherwise dealing in land properties 
(leasehold or freehold) and to erect, construct, maintain, alter and extend on the land or ground of the 
Company buildings, houses, offices, shops, garages, residential, commercial, industrial premises, 
godowns, sheds, warehouses, furnished or unfurnished, in India or abroad, including international 
educational institutions, boarding schools, old age homes, cinematic purposes, health farms, spas, 
meditation centers.  

(dc) to own, manage, operate, carry on, acquire and sell the business in India or elsewhere of indoor
sports including setting up of bowling alleys, entertainment arcades, video parlors, pool tables, rides,
darts, simulated games, gymnasiums, health and fitness centers, billiard and snooker tables,
badminton courts, squash courts, swimming pools, sauna baths, Jacuzzi centers, amusement parks,
cinema theatres, family entertainment centers, hotels, clubs, restaurants and cafes, shopping
arcades, fast food outlets, pubs, caters and ice cream parlors.

(e) To erect, purchase or take on lease or otherwise acquire any mills, or works machinery and any other
real and personal property appertaining to the goodwill of and any interest in the business of spinning
or manufacturing cotton or other fibrous substances. 

(f) To carry on any other business whether manufacturing or otherwise which may seem in the opinion of
the Directors capable or being conveniently carried on in connection with the above or calculated
directly or indirectly to enhance the value of or render profitable any of the Company’s property or
rights.

(g) To acquire and undertake the whole or part of the business property and liabilities of any person or
Company carrying on any business which the Company is authorized to carry on or possessed of
property suitable for the purpose of this Company.

7. Background of The Transferor Company is as under:

Transferor Company was originally incorporated on April 10, 2006 under the name of Atlas Hospitality
Company Private Limited. The said name was changed to Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited,
and a fresh certificate of Incorporation consequent upon change of name was issued by the Registrar of
Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai to the Transferor Company on March 4, 2008. Transferor Company
has its registered office at Phoenix Mills Premises, 462, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel- West, Mumbai
– 400013. The Corporate Identification Number of the Transferor Company is
U55209MH2006PTC161066. The PAN of PHCPL is AAFCA8863K. The email address of the Transferor
Company is secretarial@phoenixmarketcity.in .

Transferor Company at present carries on the business of real estate development activities.

The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Transferor Company as on the
September 30, 2020 was as under:

Authorised Share Capital:

40,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each      Rs. 4,00,00,000/-

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital:

23,21,400 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each                 Rs. 2,32,14,000/-

There is no change in the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Transferor Company since
the above referred date.

The Transferee Company holds 13,21,400 equity shares of Transferor Company and the balance
10,00,000 equity shares are held by Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited, a Promoter
Group Company of Transferee Company.

The main objects of the Transferor Company are set out in the Memorandum of Association of the
Transferor Company.

The main objects inter alia are as under:

The main object of Transferor Company as specified under the heading A- Main Object of the Company to
be pursued by the Company on its incorporation under Clause III of the Memorandum of Association of the
Company is as under:
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To own, manage, operate and carry on the business in India or elsewhere of restaurants, cafes, 
refreshment, rooms, clubs, casinos, resorts, hotels, motels, inns, restaurants, cafes, taverns, bars, 
refreshment rooms, boarding and lodging, of every sort and kind, to establish shops, canteens, kitchens 
and any other establishments, for this purpose and for the sale of food and drink of every sort and kind 
and to arrange for the provide all manner of entertainments, amusements and recreation for the public, to 
set up amusement parks cum tourist complexes in india and abroad and for this purpose to import, 
purchase, acquire, export, take on lease or on hire purchase, or let on hire, or contract necessary land, 
buildings, ropeways, sports, equipments, bowing, alleys equipments, entertaining equipments, lakes, zoo, 
museum, gardens, games and other related equipments, cinema theatres, hotel and restaurants, shopping 
centres, stadiums, video-parlors. 

8. Relationship between the companies, Description, Rationale, Salient Features & Benefits of the
Scheme

a. Relationship between the companies:

The Transferor Company is a subsidiary of the Transferee Company. Presently, the Transferee
Company holds 56.92% of the paid up equity share capital of the Transferor Company.

b. Description of the Scheme:

The Scheme of Amalgamation provides for the transfer and vesting of the undertakings and business
of the Transferor Company in the Transferee Company.

c. Rationale for Amalgamation:

The proposed amalgamation will lead to a simplified corporate structure since it will result in the
combined businesses of PHCPL and the Transferee Company being carried on more economically,
efficiently and beneficially and the arrangement would be in the interest of both the companies and
their Shareholders as the businesses carried on by both the companies are under common
management/Shareholders. The proposed amalgamation would strengthen the management of the
Transferee Company effectively because of avoidance and elimination of unnecessary duplication of
time, costs and expenses, incurred for administration and operations of both the companies
separately and would result in better utlilization of resources and assets and synergies of operations
with integration of management and other expertise. The amalgamation will also result in significant
reduction in the multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances required at present to be carried out
by PHCPL.

The proposed Scheme will be beneficial, advantageous and not prejudicial to the interests of the
Shareholders, creditors and other stakeholders of the Transferee Company.

d. Salient features of the Scheme:

1. Appointed Date for the Scheme would be April 1, 2019.

2. Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon the Amalgamation of PHCPL with the Transferee
Company, the shares held by the Transferee Company in PHCPL as on the record date shall
stand cancelled. Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, Transferee Company will allot 627 (Six
Hundred and Twenty-Seven) fully paid-up equity shares of the Transferee Company of face value
of INR 2 each for every 100 (One Hundred) fully paid-up equity shares of face value of INR 10
each held by other shareholder, i.e. Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited
('RIHCPL') in PHCPL.

3. The transfer and vesting of the undertakings and business of PHCPL in Transferee Company will
be effective from Appointed Date.

THE FEATURES SET OUT ABOVE BEING ONLY THE SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME OF 
AMALGAMATION, THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY ARE 
REQUESTED TO READ THE ENTIRE TEXT OF THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION TO GET 
THEMSELVES FULLY ACQUAINTED WITH THE PROVISIONS THEREOF. 

e. Benefits of the Scheme

The proposed Amalgamation will lead to simplified corporate structure, strengthening the
management of the Transferee Company, better utlilization of resources, assets and synergies of
operations.

9. Board Meeting, Valuation Report and Fairness Opinion:

12



a) The proposed Scheme was placed before the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company on August
7, 2019 wherein the joint valuation report of M/s. Bansi S. Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants and
M/s. BSR & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants on recommendation of Share Exchange Ratio and
Fairness Opinion on the said Share Exchange Ratio issued by Kotak Mahindra Capital Company
Limited, Independent Category-l Merchant Banker were also placed before the Board.

b) In accordance with the provisions of SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017
read with Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated January 3, 2018 read with Regulation 37 of SEBI
LODR Regulations (‘SEBI Circular’), the Audit Committee of the Transferee Company (‘Audit
Committee’) vide a Resolution passed on August 7, 2019, recommended the Scheme to the Board of
Directors of the Transferee Company inter alia taking into account the following:

i. Draft Scheme;

ii. The Joint Valuation Report dated August 7, 2019 on recommendation of Share Exchange Ratio
issued by  Independent Valuers namely M/s. Bansi S. Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants and
M/s. B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants;

iii. Valuation Report dated August 6, 2019 by of Ms. Drushti R. Desai, the Registered Valuer on the
Share Exchange Ratio;

iv. The Fairness Opinion dated August 7, 2019 expressed by Kotak Mahindra Capital Company
Limited, Independent Category-l Merchant Banker;

v. The certificate issued by DTS & Associates, the Statutory Auditors of the Company dated August
7, 2019, as required under Clause 5 of the Circular, to the effect that the accounting treatment
contained in the Draft Scheme is in compliance with the Accounting Standards specified by the
Central Government under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules framed
thereunder or the Accounting Standards issued by ICAI, as applicable.

The Joint Valuation Report dated August 7, 2019 issued by M/s. Bansi S. Mehta & Co., and M/s. B S R &
Associates LLP, Valuation Report dated August 6, 2019 by of Ms. Drushti R. Desai, the Registered
Valuer on the Share Exchange Ratio and Fairness Opinion dated August 7, 2019 issued by Kotak
Mahindra Capital Company Limited are enclosed as Annexure B, Annexure C and Annexure D,
respectively, to this Notice.

10. Submissions, Approvals and Other Information:

i. Pursuant to the SEBI Circular, the Transferee Company has filed necessary applications before the
Stock Exchanges viz., BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited seeking their
no-objection to the Scheme. The Company has received Observation letter dated November 4, 2019
from BSE Limited dated and National Stock Exchanges of India Limited. The copies of the
Observation letters are enclosed as Annexure E to this Notice.

ii. As required by the said SEBI Circular, the Transferee Company has filed the Complaint Report with
BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited on October 11, 2019. A copy of the
aforementioned Complaints Report is enclosed as Annexure F to this Notice.

iii. Each of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company had made separate applications before
the Mumbai Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal for the sanction of the Scheme under
sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013.

11. Directors, Promoters and Key Managerial Personnel:

i. Except, Mr. Atul Ruia and his relatives, none of the other Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel
(‘KMPs’) of Transferee Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the  Companies Act,
2013 and rules framed thereunder) have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of the equity
shares held by them in Transferor Company and/or Transferee Company and/or to the extent that the
said Director(s), KMPs and their respective relatives are the Directors, KMPs, Members of the
Companies that hold shares in the respective companies.

ii. Save as aforesaid, except Mr. Atul Ruia and his relatives, none of the other Directors and KMPs of
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company and their relatives have any material concern
or interest, financial and/or otherwise in the Scheme.

iii. The details of the present Promoters, Members of Promoter Group, Directors and KMPs of
Transferee Company and the Transferor Company and their respective shareholdings in Transferee
Company, and Transferor Company as on September 30, 2020 are as follows:
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a. Extent of shareholding of Directors and KMPs of Transferee Company and their respective
holding in the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are as follows:

Name of the Director / Key 
Managerial Person 

No. of Equity Shares in 
Transferee Company 

No. of Equity Shares in 
Transferor Company 

Atul Ruia 39,57,737 0
Amit Dabriwala 0 0
Amit Dalal 0 0
Shishir Shrivastava 78,301 0
Sivaramakrishnan Iyer 0 0
Pradumna Kanodia 31,668 0
Rajendra Kalkar 500 0
Shweta Vyas 0 0
Gajendra Mewara 40 0

b. Extent of shareholding of the Directors and KMPs of Transferor Company and their
respective holding in the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company are as follows:

c. Extent of shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group of the Transferee Company and
their respective holding in the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are as
follows:

*out of 10,00,000 shares held by Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited in the
Transferor Company, 100 shares are held by Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited
jointly with Mr. Atul Ruia.

d. Extent of shareholding of the Promoters of Transferor Company and their respective
holding in the Transferee Company  and the Transferor Company are as follows:

Name of the Director No. of Equity Shares in 
Transferee Company 

No. of Equity Shares in 
Transferor Company 

Atul Ruia 39,57,737 0
Sharmila Dalmia 2,68,853 0
Ajaykumar Kejriwal 1,000 0
Shishir Shrivastava 78,301 0

Name of the  Promoter and 
Promoter Group   

No. of Equity Shares in 
Transferee Company 

No. of Equity Shares in 
Transferor Company 

Atul Ruia 39,57,737 0
Amla Ruia 0 0
Gayatri  Ruia 0 0
Atul Ruia Family Trust (Atul
Ashokkumar Ruia holding as
Trustee for Atul Ruia Family
Trust)

0 0

Ashok Ruia Family Trust (Atul
Ashokkumar Ruia holding as
Trustee for Ashok Ruia Family
Trust)

0 0

Sharanya A.Ruia Beneficiary
Trust

2,78,935 0

Sharmila Dalmia 2,68,853 0
Ruia International Holding
Company Private Limited

4,93,47,248 10,00,000*

Senior Advisory Services Pvt.
Ltd (Formerly known as Senior
Holding Pvt. Ltd.)

1,44,90,049 0

Radhakrishna Ramnarain Pvt.
Ltd.

1,67,800 0

Ashok Apparels Pvt. Ltd. 96,70,665 0
Ashton Real Estate
Development Pvt. Ltd.

33,200 0

Name of the Promoters No. of Equity Shares in 
Transferee Company 

No. of Equity Shares in 
Transferor Company 

The Phoenix Mills Limited N.A. 13,21,400
Ruia International Holding
Company Private Limited

4,93,47,248 10,00,000*
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*out of 10,00,000 shares held by Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited in the
Transferor Company, 100 shares are held by Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited
jointly with Mr. Atul Ruia.

12. The pre and post Scheme (expected) shareholding pattern of the Transferee Company as on
September 30, 2020 is as under:

No. Category Transferee Company 

Pre-Amalgamation Post-Amalgamation 

No. of 
Shares 

% No. of Shares % 

A Promoter and Promoter Group 

1 Indian 

(a) Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family 45,05,525 2.62 45,05,525 2.53
(b) Central Government / State

Government(s)
0 0 0 0

(c) Financial Institutions / Banks 0 0 0 0
(d) Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0 0

Bodies Corporate 7,37,08,962 42.93 7,99,78,962 44.94
Sub Total (A)(1) 7,82,14,487 45.56 8,44,84,487 47.48 

2 Foreign
(a) Individuals (Non-Resident Individuals

/ Foreign Individuals)
0 0 0 0

(b) Government 0 0 0 0
(c) Institutions 0 0 0 0
(d) Foreign Portfolio Investor 0 0 0 0
(e) Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0 0

Sub Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0
Total Shareholding Of Promoter 
And Promoter Group (A)= 
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

7,82,14,487 45.56 8,44,84,487 47.48 

B Public Shareholding 

1 Institutions
(a) Mutual Fund 2,55,32,848 14.87 2,55,32,848 14.35
(b) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0
(c) Alternate Investment Funds 1043508 0.61 1043508 0.59
(d) Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0 0 0
(e) Foreign Portfolio Investor 58223629 33.91 58223629 32.72
(f) Financial Institutions / Banks 1,000 0 1,000 0
(g) Insurance Companies 13,72,986 0.80 13,72,986 0.77
(h) Provident Funds/ Pension Funds 0 0 0 0
(i) Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0 0

Foreign Bank 0 0 0 0
Sub Total (B)(1) 8,61,73,971 50.19 8,61,73,971 48.42 

2 Central Government/ State
Government(s)/ President of India

6,953 0 6,953 0

Sub Total (B)(2) 6,953 0 6,953 0
3 Non-Institutions
(a) Individuals

Mr. Atul Ruia 39,57,737 0
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i. Individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital up to Rs. 2
lakhs.

41,63,400 2.43 41,63,400 2.34

ii. Individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital in excess of
Rs. 2 lakhs.

2,86,725 0.17 2,86,725 0.16

(b) NBFCs registered with RBI 70,000 0.04 70,000 0.04
(c) Trust Employee 0 0 0 0
(d) Overseas Depositories (holding DRs)

(balancing figure)
0 0 0 0

(e) Any Other (Specify)
IEPF 8,93,681 0.52 8,93,681 0.50
Trusts 8,500 0 8,500 0
Foreign Nationals 0 0 0
Hindu Undivided Family 92,815 0.05 9,2815 0.05
Foreign Companies 0 0 0
Non Resident Indians 1,82,763 0.11 1,82,763 0.10
Director or Director's Relative 1,10,969 0.06 1,10,969 0.06

Unclaimed Shares 0 0 0
Overseas Bodies Corporates 0 0 0
Clearing Member 1,59,555 0.09 1,59,555 0.09
Bodies Corporate 13,19,832 0.77 13,19,832 0.74
Trust to be set up by the Transferee
Company for Fractional Entitlements

0 0 0 0

Sub Total (B)(3) 72,88,240 4.25 72,88,240 4.10
Total Public Shareholding (B)= 
(B)(1)+(B)(2)+(B)(3) 

9,34,69,164 54.44 9,34,69,164 52.52 

C Non-Promoter- Public 
shareholding 

1 Custodian/DR Holder 0 0 0 0
2 Employee Benefit Trust 0 0 0 0

Total shareholding of Non 
Promoter- Non Public shareholder 
(C)=(C1) +(C2) 

0 0 0 0 

Total (A+B+C) 17,16,83,651 100.00 17,79,53,651 100.00 

13. The pre and post Scheme (expected) shareholding pattern of the Transferor Company as on
September 30, 2020 is as under:

Sr 
No. 

Category of 
shareholder 

Pre- Amalgamation Post- Amalgamation 

No. of 
Shares 

% No. of Shares % 

1 Promoters and
Promoter Group

23,21,400 100.00

Not Applicable* 2. Public Shareholding 0 0
TOTAL 23,21,400 100.00 

* the Transferor Company is proposed to be dissolved under the Scheme and therefore there would
be no shareholding in the Transferor Company post the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company
with the Transferee Company.

14. Capital structure of the Transferee Company – Pre and post Scheme (expected)

Pre and Post Scheme capital structure of the Transferee Company as on September 30, 2020 is as
follows:

Description Pre-Amalgamation Post-Amalgamation 

Authorized Share 
Capital: 

No. of Shares Amount Rs. No. of Shares Amount Rs. 

22,50,00,000 45,00,00,000 24,50,00,000 49,00,00,000
Issued, No. of Shares Amount Rs. No. of Shares Amount Rs. 16



Subscribed and 
Fully Paid up 
Share Capital: 

17,16,83,651 34,33,67,302 17,79,53,651 35,59,07,302

15. Amount due to unsecured creditors as on September 30, 2020:

Transferee Company Transferor Company 

Rs. 20,86,15,941 Rs. 81,000

16. Statement disclosing details of Amalgamation as per sub-section 3 of section 230 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

No. Particulars The Phoenix Mills Limited Phoenix Hospitality Company 
Private Limited 

Transferee Company Transferor Company 

I. Details of the order of the NCLT directing the calling, convening and conducting of the 
Meeting: 

A Date of the order As per NCLT Directions at the
hearing held on November 13, 2020

As per NCLT Directions at the
hearing held on November 13,
2020

B Date, time and venue
of the Meeting

Tuesday, December 29, 2020 at 12
Noon through VC/OAVM

Not Applicable

II. Details of the Companies including 

i. Corporate
Identification
Number (CIN) 

L17100MH1905PLC000200 U55209MH2006PTC161066

ii. Permanent Account
Number (PAN) 

AAACP3325J AAFCA8863K

iii. Name of Company The Phoenix Mills Limited Phoenix Hospitality Company
Private Limited

iv. Date of Incorporation 27/01/1905 10/04/2006
v. Type of Company Public Private
vi. Registered Office

address
462, SENAPATI BAPAT MARG,
LOWER PAREL MUMBAI MH

400013

PHOENIX MILLS PREMISES 462
SENAPATI BAPAT MARG,

LOWER PAREL MUMBAI MH
400013

E-mail address secretarial@phoenixmarketcity.in secretarial@phoenixmarketcity.in
vii. Summary of main

object as per the
memorandum of
association; and main
business carried on by
the Company -

As per Para 6 of the Explanatory
Statement.  

As per Para 7 of the Explanatory
Statement.

viii. Details of change
of name, registered
office and objects of
the company during
the last five years; 

There has been no change in the
name, registered office and objects
during the last five years.

There has been no change in the
name, registered office and
objects during the last five years.

ix. Name of the stock
Exchange(s) where
securities of the
company are listed, if
applicable; 

Equity Shares of the Company are
currently listed on BSE Limited and
National stock Exchange of India
Limited.  

Not Applicable

x. Details of capital
structure – Authorised,
Issued, Subscribed
and Paid-up share
capital;

As per Para 6 of the Explanatory
Statement.

As per Para 7 of the Explanatory
Statement.  

xi. Names and addresses
of Promoters of the
Company: 

Name of the 
Promoter 

Address Name of the 
Promoter 

Address 

Mr. Atul
Ashokkumar Ruia

Ruia House,
19 Bhau Sahib
Hire Marg,
Malabar Hill,
Mumbai -

The Phoenix
Mills Limited

462 Senapati
Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel-
West, Mumbai –
40001317

mailto:secretarial@phoenixmarketcity.in
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400006 Ruia
International
Holding
Company
Private
Limited

C/o Market City
Resources Pvt.
Ltd, Ground
Floor, R.R.
Hosiery Bldg,
Shree Luxmi
Woollen Mills
Estate
Mahalaxmi
Mumbai- 400011

Mr. Atul
Ashokkumar
Ruia

Ruia House, 19
Bhau Sahib Hire
Marg, Malabar
Hill, Mumbai -
400006

xii. Names and addresses
of Directors of the
Company: 

Name of the 
Director 

Address Name of the 
Director 

Address 

Atul Ashokkumar
Ruia

Ruia House,
19 Bhau Sahib
Hire Marg,
Malabar Hill,
Mumbai -
400006

Atul
Ashokkumar
Ruia

Ruia House, 19
Bhau Sahib Hire
Marg, Malabar
Hill, Mumbai -
400006

Amit Dabriwala 43A, Anita,
Mount
Pleasant Road,
Malabar Hill,
Mumbai -
400006

Amit Dalal 81, Shereman,
22, Narayanan
Dabholkar
Road,
Walkeshwar,
Mumbai-
400006

Shishir Ashok
Shrivastava

1/1, Prakash
C.H.S., Relief
Road, Santacruz
(West), Mumbai-
400054

Shishir Ashok
Shrivastava

1/1, Prakash
C.H.S., Relief
Road,
Santacruz
(West),
Mumbai-
400054

Sivaramakrishnan
Srinivasan Iyer

Flat-1901,
Floor - 19,
Wing-B,
Runwal Pride
CHSLL.B.S.
Marg, Behind
R-Mall, Mulund
(West
)Mumbai-
400080

Sharmila
Dalmia

Dalmia House
20f, Prithviraj
Road New Delhi
110011

Pradumna
Kanodia

1003, 10th
Floor, B-Wing,
Phoenix
Tower, 462,
Senapati Bapat
Marg, Lower
Parel,
MUMBAI-
400013

Rajendra Kalkar 803 B, Phoenix
Tower,
Senapati Bapat
Marg, Lower
Parel, Mumbai-
400013

Ajaykumar
Parmanand
Kejriwal

33A, Atlas
Apartments, 11
Harkness Road
Malabar Hil
Mumbai 400006
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Shweta Pradeep
Vyas

02, Soudamini
Apartments
Kanakapura,
Main Road,
Udayapura A
Block
Bangalore
South
Udaypura ,
Bengaluru

III. If the scheme of 
arrangement relates 
to more than one 
company, the fact 
and details of 
any relationship 
subsisting between 
such companies 
who 
are parties to such 
scheme of 
compromise 
or arrangement, 
including holding, 
subsidiary or
associate 
companies

Holding Company of the Transferor
Company

Subsidiary of the Transferee
Company

IV. The date of board 
Meeting at which the 
scheme was 
approved by the 
board of directors 
including the name 
of directors who 
voted in favour of 
the resolution, who 
voted against the 
resolution and who 
did not vote or 
participate on such 
resolution

Date of the Board meeting: 
August 7, 2019 

Name of the Director who voted in 
favour of the resolution are as 
under: 

Mr. Amit Dabriwala
Mr. Amit Dalal
Mr. Shishir Shrivastava
Mr. Sivaramakrishnan Iyer
Mr. Pradumna Kanodia
Mr. Rajendra Kalkar 
Ms. Shweta Vyas

Name of the Director who voted 
against of the resolution- NIL

Name of the Director who did not 
vote or participate on such 
resolution- Mr. Atul Ruia being
interested neither participated nor
voted. 

Date of the Board meeting: 
August 7, 2019 

Name of the Director who voted 
in favour of the resolution are 
as under: 

Mr. Shishir Shrivastava
Mr. Ajaykumar Kejriwal

Leave of absence was granted to
Mrs. Sharmila Dalmia

Name of the Director who voted 
against of the resolution- NIL

Name of the Director who did 
not vote or participate on such 
resolution- Mr. Atul Ruia being
interested neither participated nor
voted. 

V. Explanatory statement disclosing details of the scheme of compromise or arrangement 
including:- 

i. Parties involved in
such compromise or
arrangement;

Phoenix Hospitality Services Private Limited (‘Transferor Company’) and 
The Phoenix Mills Limited (‘Transferee Company’). 

Appointed Date April 1, 2019 or such other date as may be directed by NCLT 

Effective Date the last date on which the certified true copies of the Orders of the NCLT
sanctioning this Scheme are filed by Transferor Company and Transferee
Company with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai 

ii. Share exchange ratio
(if applicable) and
other considerations, if
any

Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, the Transferee Company will allot
627 (Six Hundred and Twenty-Seven) fully paid-up equity shares of the
Company of face value of INR 2 each for every 100 (One Hundred) fully
paid-up equity shares of face value of INR 10 each held by other
shareholder, i.e. Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited
('RIHCPL') in Transferor Company. 
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Summary of Valuation
report (if applicable)
including basis of
valuation and fairness
opinion of the
registered
valuer, if any, and the
declaration that the
valuation report is
available for
inspection
at registered office of
the Company

The Share Exchange Ratio in consideration for the Amalgamation has
been fixed on a fair and reasonable basis and on the basis of the Joint
Valuation Report of M/s. Bansi S. Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants
and M/s. B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, and Valuation
Report of Ms. Drushti Desai, Registered Valuer as per the Act.

The Equity Share Exchange Ratio has been arrived at on the basis of a
relative equity valuation of the Companies based on the various
approaches/ methods and various qualitative factors relevant to each
company and the business dynamics and growth potentials of the
businesses, having regard to information base, key underlying
assumptions and limitations.

Valuers, as considered appropriate have independently applied methods
and arrived at their assessment of value per share of the companies. To
arrive at the conscience on the equity share exchange ratio for the
proposed Amalgamation, suitable minor adjustments/ rounding off have
been done.

In light of the above, and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and
circumstances as discussed and outlined in the Valuation Report, the
Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed Amalgamation of Transferee has
been arrived at.

Transferee Company Transferor Company 

Refer Valuation Report as per
Annexure B and C and Fairness
Opinion as per Annexure D.

Refer Valuation Report as per
Annexure B and C

iii. Details of capital or
debt restructuring, if
any

The Scheme does not involve any capital or debt restructuring.

iv. Rationale for the
arrangement

Refer para 8(c) of the explanatory statement. 

v. Benefits of the
arrangement as
perceived by the
Board of directors to
the company,
members, creditors
and others
(as applicable)

As provided in the rationale for Amalgamation in para 8(e) of the
explanatory statement. 

vi. Amount due to
unsecured creditors
as of September 30,
2020

Rs.20,86,15,941 Rs.81,000

VI. Disclosure about effect of the compromise or arrangement on 

i. Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP)
(other than Directors)

No effect except for dilution in
percentage of their shareholding, if any,
held in the Transferee Company. 

Not Applicable 

ii. Directors No effect except for dilution in
percentage of their shareholding, if any,
held in the Transferee Company. 

Transferor Company will cease
to exist therefore the question
of any change in Directors of
the Transferor Company does
not arise. 

iii. Promoters Dilution in percentage of shareholding
in the Transferee Company to the
extent of shares allotted under the
Scheme. 

The Transferee Company is
one of the promoters of the
Transferor Company and holds
13,21,400 equity shares in the
Transferor Company. Pursuant
to the Scheme of
Amalgamation the said equity
shares shall stand cancelled.   

The other Promoters of the
Transferor Company i.e. Ruia
International Holding Company
Private Limited and Ruia
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International Holding Company
Private Limited jointly with Mr.
Atul Ruia, shall be allotted
equity shares of the Transferee
Company as per the Share
Exchange Ratio.

iv. Non-promoter
members

Dilution in percentage of shareholding
in the Transferee Company to the
extent of shares allotted under the
Scheme. 

Not Applicable 

v. Depositors Not effect as the Transferee Company
does not have any depositors

There are no depositors in the
Transferor Company 

vi. Creditors No effect The Creditors of the Transferor
Company will become the
Creditors of the Transferee
Company 

vii. Debenture holders No effect as the Transferee does not
have any debentures.

Transferee Company being the
Debenture holder, their holding
will get cancelled

viii. Deposit Trustee and
Debenture Trustee

No effect as the Transferee Company
does not have any Deposit Trustee and
Debenture Trustee in the Transferee
Company

Not Applicable

ix. Employees of the
Company

No effect Will become employees of
Transferee Company. 

VII. Disclosure about effect of compromise or arrangement on material interest of Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and debenture trustee 

i. Directors No effect.
ii. Key Managerial

Personnel
No effect. 

iii. Debenture Trustee No effect as the Transferee Company
does not have any Debenture Trustee
in the Transferee Company

Not Applicable

VIII. Investigation or 
proceedings, if any, 
pending against the 
company under the 
Act

None

IX. Details of approvals, 
sanctions or no 
objection ( 
s), if any, 
from regulatory or 
any other 
governmental 
authorities required, 
received or pending 
for the proposed 
scheme of 
compromise 
or arrangement

Notice under Section 230(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is being given to
the Central Government, Registrar of Companies, Income Tax Authorities
in respect of both the companies and SEBI and concerned stock
exchanges in respect of the Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company has received no objection from the Stock
Exchanges.

17. General:

a. The rights and interests of the Equity Shareholders, Secured or Unsecured Creditors of Transferee
Company and Transferor Company will not be prejudicially affected by the Scheme as no sacrifice
or waiver is, at all called from them nor their rights sought to be modified in any manner.

b. There are no winding up proceedings pending against the Transferee Company as of date.

18. On the Scheme being approved by the requisite majority of Equity Shareholders, the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company shall each file a Petition with the National Company Law
Tribunal at Mumbai Bench for sanction of the Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act,
2013.

19. The following documents will be open for inspection by the Equity Shareholders of the Transferee
Company at the Registered Office of the Transferee Company and/or at the Corporate Office of the
Transferee Company at 2nd Floor, R. R. Hosiery Building, Shree Laxmi Woollen Mills Compound, Opp
Shakti Mills, Off Dr. E. Moses Road, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai-400011 or at the office of its Advocates, M/s.
Kanga & Co. having address at Readymoney Mansion, 43, Veer Nariman Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 00121



between 11:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., on any working day (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays).
Copies of the below documents will be made available free of charge to Equity Shareholders who may
require the same:

i. Certified copy of the Order of the NCLT passed in the Company Application No. 1022/MB/2020 in
Company Scheme Application No. 4075/MB/2019 directing inter alia the Meeting of the Equity
Shareholders of the Transferee Company;

ii. Copy of the Company Application No. 1022/MB/2020 in Company Scheme Application No.
4075/MB/2019;

iii. Copy of the Scheme of Amalgamation;

iv. Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company;

v. Annual Report of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2020;

vi. Copy of the Valuation Report dated August 7, 2019  issued by M/s. Bansi S. Mehta & Co., Chartered
Accountants and M/s. B S R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants and Valuation Report dated
August 6, 2019 issued by Ms. Drushti R Desai, Registered Valuer;

vii. Copy of the Fairness Opinion dated August 7, 2019 issued by Kotak Mahindra Capital Company
Limited dated, Merchant Banker;

viii. Copy of the Audit Committee Report dated August 7, 2019 the Transferee Company;

ix. Copy of the certificates issued by the Statutory Auditors of the Transferee Company confirming that
the accounting treatment proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting Standards;

x. Copy of Complaints Report dated October 11, 2019 submitted by the Transferee Company to BSE
and NSE;

xi. Reports adopted by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company
as per the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013;

xii. Observation Letters dated November 4, 2019 received from BSE and NSE conveying their no
objection to the Scheme;

xiii. Supplementary Unaudited Accounting Statements of the Transferee Company and the Transferor
Company for the half year ended September 30, 2020.

This Statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Sections 230(3) and 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromise, Arrangement and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016.

Shishir Shrivastava 
      DIN: 01266095  

Chairperson appointed for the Meeting 

Dated: November 26, 2020 
Place: Mumbai 

Registered Office: 462, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai-400013
CIN: L17100MH1905PLC000200
E-mail: secretarial@phoenixmarketcity.in
Website: www.thephoenixmills.com
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1 

         SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION OF  
             PHOENIX HOSPITALITY COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED 

WITH 

THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED  

AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS 

(Under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013) 

PREAMBLE 

This Scheme of Amalgamation provides for the amalgamation of Phoenix 

Hospitality Company Private Limited (PHCPL), a company incorporated 

under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office 

at Phoenix Mills Premises, 462, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel- West, 

Mumbai – 400013 with The Phoenix Mills Limited (PML), a company 

registered under Act No. VI of 1882 of the Legislative Council of India with 

the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies, Bombay deemed to be registered 

under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office 

at 462 Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel- West, Mumbai – 400013,  pursuant 

to Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013. The Equity shares of PML are listed on the BSE Limited and the 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 
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(A) Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited (PHCPL) was originally

incorporated on 10th April 2006 under the name of Atlas Hospitality

Company Private Limited. The said name was changed to Phoenix

Hospitality Company Private Limited, and a fresh certificate of

Incorporation consequent upon change of name was issued by the

Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai to PHCPL on 4th March

2008. PHCPL has its registered office at Phoenix Mills Premises, 462,

Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel- West, Mumbai – 400013. The

Corporate Identification Number of PHCPL is

U55209MH2006PTC161066. The PAN of PHCPL is AAFCA8863K.

The email address of PHCPL is secretarial@phoenixmarketcity.in.

The main object of PHCPL as specified under the heading A- Main

Object of the Company to be pursued by the Company on its

incorporation under Clause III of the Memorandum of Association of the

Company is as under:

1. To own, manage, operate and carry on the business in India or elsewhere

of restaurants, cafes, refreshment, rooms, clubs, casinos, resorts, hotels,

motels, inns, restaurants, cafes, taverns, bars, refreshment rooms, boarding

and lodging, of every sort and kind, to establish shops, canteens, kitchens

and any other establishments, for this purpose and for the sale of food and

drink of every sort and kind and to arrange for the provide all manner of

entertainments, amusements and recreation for the public, to set up
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3 

amusement parks cum tourist complexes in india and abroad and for this 

purpose to import, purchase, acquire, export, take on lease or on hire 

purchase, or let on hire, or contract necessary land, buildings, ropeways, 

sports, equipments, bowing, alleys equipments, entertaining equipments, 

lakes, zoo, museum, gardens, games and other related equipments, cinema 

theatres, hotel and restaurants, shopping centres, stadiums, video-parlors.  

PHCPL at present carries on the business of real estate development activities.  

The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of PHCPL as 

on the Appointed Date (as defined hereinafter) was as under:  

Authorised Share Capital:  

40,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each     Rs. 4,00,00,000/- 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital: 

23,21,400 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each           Rs. 2,32,14,000/- 

There is no change in the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of 

PHCPL after the Appointed Date.  

13,21,400 equity shares of PHCPL are held by The Phoenix Mills Limited 

(PML), the Transferee Company herein and the balance 10,00,000 equity 

shares are held by Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited, a 

Promoter Group Company of PML.  
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Following are the Directors of PHCPL as on the Appointed Date: 

Sr. 
No.  

Name of the Director DIN Address  

1. Atul Ruia 00087396 
Ruia House, 19 Bhau Sahib 
Hire Marg, Malabar Hill, 
Mumbai - 400006 

2. Shishir Shrivastava 01266095 
 1/1, Prakash C.H.S., Relief 
Road, Santacruz (West), 
Mumbai - 400054 

3. Sharmila Dalmia 00266624 
Dalmia House 20F, 
Prithviraj Road, New Delhi 
- 110011

4. Ajay Kumar Kejriwal 00348494 
33A, Atlas Apartments, 11 
Harkness Road, Malabar 
Hill, Mumbai - 400006 

(B) The Phoenix Mills Limited (PML), is a company registered under Act No.

VI of 1882 of the Legislative Council of India with the Registrar of Joint

Stock Companies, Bombay on 27th January 1905 deemed to be registered

under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered

office at 462 Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel- West, Mumbai – 400013,

The Corporate Identification Number of PML is

L17100MH1905PLC000200. The PAN of PML is AAACP3325J. The

email address of PML is corpaffairs@highstreetphoenix.com.

PML vide a Special Resolution passed on 10th October 2005 altered the 

provisions of its Memorandum of Association with respect to its objects. 
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Some of the objects of PML on its incorporation under Clause III of the 

Memorandum of Association of the Company are as under:  

(a) To acquire and work the Mills and business lately purchased from the

Britannia Mills Limited, and its Liquidators, and with a view there to

enter into a certain Agreement in the terms of the draft agreement set

forth in Schedule A to the Articles of Association which accompany these

presents and to carry the same into effect with or without modification.

(b) To carry on all or any one or more of the business following, that is to say,

to purchase, comb, prepare, spin dye, bleach and deal in cotton, wool,

jute, silk, flax, hemp and other fibrous substances and to weave or

otherwise manufacture, buy and sell and deal in yarn, linen cloth and

other goods and fabrics whether textile, frebled, nelted or looped.

(c) To acquire by purchase, lease, exchange or otherwise any land, building,

easements, rights, privileges, machinery, plant and stock-in-trade.

(d) To sell, improve, manage, develop, exchange lease, mortgage, dispose of,

turn to account, or otherwise deal with, all or any part of the property and

rights of the Company.

(da) To carry on the business and to own, acquire, construct, erect, renovate, 

maintain, run, take on lease, give on lease, let out, operate and manage 

shopping centers, malls, shopping arcades, theatres, auditoriums, 

stadiums, clubs, spas, resorts, holiday homes, sports, amusement and 

family entertainment centers or parks of all nature and kinds and types 
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and to carry on the business of setting up of national and international 

sports and amusement parks in India or elsewhere and to purchase and/or 

otherwise acquire and equip any other sports or amusement center, public 

or private parks.  

(db) To carry on the business of developing, buying, selling and otherwise 

dealing in land properties (leasehold or freehold) and to erect, construct, 

maintain, alter and extend on the land or ground of the Company 

buildings, houses, offices, shops, garages, residential, commercial, 

industrial premises, godowns, sheds, warehouses, furnished or 

unfurnished, in India or abroad, including international educational 

institutions, boarding schools, old age homes, cinematic purposes, health 

farms, spas, meditation centers.  

(dc) to own, manage, operate, carry on, acquire and sell the business in India

or elsewhere of indoor sports including setting up of bowling alleys,

entertainment arcades, video parlors, pool tables, rides, darts, simulated

games, gymnasiums, health and fitness centers, billiard and snooker

tables, badminton courts, squash courts, swimming pools, sauna baths,

Jacuzzi centers, amusement parks, cinema theatres, family entertainment

centers, hotels, clubs, restaurants and cafes, shopping arcades, fast food

outlets, pubs, caters and ice cream parlors.

(e) To erect, purchase or take on lease or otherwise acquire any mills, or

works machinery and any other real and personal property appertaining to
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the goodwill of and any interest in the business of spinning or 

manufacturing cotton or other fibrous substances.  

(f) To carry on any other business whether manufacturing or otherwise which

may seem in the opinion of the Directors capable or being conveniently

carried on in connection with the above or calculated directly or indirectly

to enhance the value of or render profitable any of the Company’s

property or rights.

(g) To acquire and undertake the whole or part of the business property and

liabilities of any person or Company carrying on any business which the

Company is authorized to carry on or possessed of property suitable for

the purpose of this Company.

PML at present is engaged in mixed use retail-led real estate development 

activities on a Pan-India basis. The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-

up Share Capital of PML as on the Appointed Date was as under:  

Authorised Share Capital:  

22,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each  Rs. 45,00,00,000/- 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital: 

15,32,89,801 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each  Rs. 30,65,79,602/- 

There is no change in the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of 

PML during the period commencing from the Appointed Date and until the 

date of approval of the Scheme by the PML’s Board of Directors, except for 
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the 53,889 Equity Shares allotted to employees pursuant to their exercise of 

Stock Options granted to them by PML. The total number of options 

outstanding as on the date of approval of the Scheme by the PML’s Board of 

Directors, i.e. options granted but either not vested or vested but not 

exercised, is 8,54,718 options.   

Following are the Directors of PML as on the Appointed Date: 

Sr. No.  Name of the Director DIN Address  
1. Mr. Atul Ruia 00087396  Ruia House, 19 Bhau 

Sahib Hire Marg, 
Malabar Hill, Mumbai - 
400006 

2. Mr. Shishir Shrivastava 01266095  1/1, Prakash C.H.S., 
Relief Road, Santacruz 
(West), Mumbai - 
400054 

3.  Mr. Pradumna Kanodia 01602690  1003, 10th Floor, B 
Wing, Phoenix Tower, 
462, Senapati Bapat 
Marg, Lower Parel, 
Delisle Road, Mumbai - 
400013 

4. Mr. Rajendra S. Kalkar 03269314 803 B, Phoenix Tower, 
Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Lower Parel, Delisle 
Road, Mumbai - 400013 

5. Mr. Amit Dabriwala 00164763 43A, Anita, Mount 
Pleasant Road, Malabar 
Hill, Mumbai - 400006 

6. Mr. Amit Dalal 00297603 81, Shereman, 22, 
Narayanan Dabholkar 
Road, Walkeshwar, 
Mumbai – 400006 

7.  Mr. Sivaramakrishnan 
Iyer  

005033487 Flat 1901, Floor 19, 
Wing B, Runwal Pride 
CHSL, L.B.S. Marg, 
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Behind R Mall, Mulund 
(West), Mumbai - 
400080 

8. 
Ms. Shweta Vyas  06996110 02, Soudamini 

Apartments, Kanakapura 
Main Road, Udaypura A 
Block,  Banglore, South 
Udaypura Bengaluru - 
560082 

BACKGROUND AND RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME  

The background and circumstances which justify the proposed Amalgamation 

Scheme are, inter-alia, as follows:- 

The proposed Amalgamation will lead to a simplified corporate structure 

since it will result in the combined businesses of PHCPL and PML being 

carried on more economically, efficiently and beneficially and the 

arrangement would be in the interest of both the Companies and their 

shareholders as the businesses carried on by both the Companies are under 

common management/shareholders. The proposed amalgamation would 

strengthen the Management of PML effectively because of avoidance and 

elimination of unnecessary duplication of time, costs and expenses, incurred 

for administration and operations of both the Companies separately and would 

result in better utlilization of resources and assets and synergies of operations 

with integration of management and other expertise. The proposed 

amalgamation will also lead to reduction in compliance requirement and 

reduction in the intermediate holding structure in accordance with Section 

2(87) of Companies Act, 2013 thereby providing greater operation flexibility 
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in future. Further, even the creditors of PML will not be affected by the 

Scheme since PHCPL does not have any external liabilities, and post the 

amalgamation, the assets of the PML would continue to be more than its 

liabilities.  

In view of the aforesaid, the Board of Directors of PHCPL and PML at their 

respective meetings held on August 7, 2019 have considered and approved 

unanimously, the Scheme of Amalgamation of PHCPL and PML subject to 

necessary statutory approvals. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of both the 

Companies have formulated this Scheme of Amalgamation for the transfer to 

and vesting of the undertakings and business of PHCPL into PML pursuant to 

the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 as applicable and in force.   

DETAILS OF VOTING PATTERN BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF PHOENIX HOSPITALITY COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED AND 
THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED IN RESPECT OF THE 
RESOLUTION FOR APPROVING THE SCHEME OF 
AMALGAMATION.  

Directors of PHCPL 

Names of Directors who voted in favour of the resolution 

Sr. No. Name of the Director Voted For Voted  against 
1 Atul Ashokkumar Ruia √ - 
2 Sharmila Dalmia Leave of 

Absence 
Leave of Absence 

3 Ajaykumar Parmanand 
Kejriwal 

√ - 

4 Shishir Ashok Shrivastava √ -
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Directors of PML 

Names of Directors who voted in favour of the resolution 

AMOUNT DUE TO CREDITORS 

(a) As on 31st March 2019, PHCPL has an outstanding secured and
unsecured creditors amounting to Rs. 4,87,21,826.

(b) As on 31st March 2019 PML has an outstanding secured and unsecured
creditors amounting to Rs. 801,29,55,034.

1. DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to or inconsistent with the meaning or

context thereof, the following expressions shall have the following

meanings:

1.1. “Act” or “the Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 including any 

statutory modification or re-enactment thereof  for the time being 

in force; 

Sr. No. Name of the Director Voted For Voted  against 
1 Atul Ashokkumar Ruia √ - 
2 Amit Dabriwala √ - 
3 Amit Dalal √ - 
4 Shishir Ashok Shrivastava √ - 
5 Sivaramakrishnan 

Srinivasan Iyer 
√ - 

6 Pradumna Kanodia √ - 
7 Rajendra S Kalkar √ - 
8 Shweta Pradeep Vyas √ -
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1.2. “Appointed Date” means the date from which the provisions of 

the Scheme shall become operational, i.e. opening of business 

hours on 1st April 2019 or such other date as may be mutually 

agreed upon by the respective Board of Directors of PHCPL and 

PML with the approval of the NCLT or such other date as may be 

fixed by the NCLT while sanctioning the Scheme; 

1.3. “Companies” shall mean the Transferor Company and the 

Transferee Company. 

1.4. “Effective Date” ” or “upon the Scheme becoming effective” or 

“upon coming into effect of this Scheme” means the last date on 

which the certified true copies of the Orders of the NCLT 

sanctioning this Scheme are filed by PHCPL and PML with the 

Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai.  

1.5.  “Government Authority” or “Appropriate Authority” means 

the central government, any applicable state or local government, 

legislative body, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or 

commission or any court, tribunal, board, stock exchanges, bureau 

or instrumentality thereof or arbitration or arbitral body having 

jurisdiction. 

1.6. “NCLT" means the National Company Law Tribunal Mumbai 

Bench having jurisdiction over the Companies. 
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1.7. “PHCPL” or “Transferor Company” means Phoenix Hospitality 

Company Private Limited. 

1.8. “PML”  or “Transferee Company” means The Phoenix Mills 

Limited. 

1.9. “Record Date” means the date to be fixed by the Board of 

Directors of PML, for the purpose of issue of Equity Shares of 

PML to the equity shareholders of PHCPL other than PML as 

contemplated under this Scheme.  

1.10. "SEBI" means Securities and Exchange Board of India 

established under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992. 

1.11. "SEBI Circular" means circular no CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 

issued on March 10, 2017, as amended in accordance with any 

subsequent circulars and amendments, if any, that may be issued 

by SEBI from time to time;  

1.12. “Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme”  or 

“Amalgamation Scheme” means this Scheme of Amalgamation 

in its present form or with any modification(s) made under Clause 

17.2 of this Scheme or any modifications approved or directed by 

the NCLT.  
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1.13. “Stock Exchanges” means BSE Limited and the National Stock 

Exchange of India Limited where the equity shares of PML are 

listed. 

All terms and words not defined shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the 

context or meaning thereof, have the same meaning as ascribed to them under 

the Act and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, bye laws, as the case 

may be, including any statutory modification or re-enactment from time to 

time. 

2. DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE:

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any

modification(s) approved or imposed or directed by the NCLT, shall be

operative from the Appointed Date but shall be come into force from

the Effective Date.

3. VESTING OF ASSETS:

3.1 With effect from the Appointed Date, the entire business and 

undertaking of PHCPL including all its properties and assets (whether 

movable or immovable, tangible or intangible) of whatsoever nature, 

such as licenses, lease, tenancy rights, if any, and all other rights, title, 

interest, contracts, powers or benefits of every kind, nature and 

descriptions whatsoever, shall under the provisions of Sections 230 to 
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232 of the Act and pursuant to the orders of the NCLT sanctioning 

this Scheme and without further act, instrument or deed, but subject 

to the securities, mortgages, charges, encumbrances or liens, if any, 

existing as on the Effective Date, be transferred and / or deemed to be 

transferred to and vested in PML so as to become the business and 

undertaking of PML. 

 3.2      However, in respect of such of the assets of PHCPL as are movable in 

nature or are otherwise capable of transfer by manual delivery, they 

shall be physically handed over by manual delivery or endorsement 

and delivery.  The same may be so transferred by PHCPL without 

requiring any deed or instrument or conveyance for the same and 

shall become the property of PML to the end and intent that the 

ownership and property therein passes to PML on such handing over, 

which would take place on the Effective Date or thereafter on any 

date as may be decided by the Board of Directors of PML. 

4. TRANSFER OF LIABILITIES

4.1   With effect from the Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities, duties and 

obligations of PHCPL as on the close of business on the date 

immediately preceding the Appointed Date, whether or not provided 

for in the books of PHCPL and all other liabilities of PHCPL which 

may arise or accrue on or after the Appointed Date upto the Effective 

Date, but which relate to the period on or upto the Appointed Date 
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shall under the provisions of sections 230 to 232 of the Act and 

pursuant to the Orders of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme and 

without any further act or deed, be transferred or deemed to be 

transferred to and vested in and be assumed by PML, so as to become 

as from the Appointed Date, the debts, liabilities, duties and 

obligations of PML on the same terms and conditions as were 

applicable to PHCPL, Provided however that any charges, mortgages 

and/or encumbrances shall be confined only to the relative assets of 

PHCPL or part thereof on or over which they are subsisting on transfer 

to and vesting of such assets in PML and no such charges, mortgages, 

and/or encumbrances shall be enlarged or extend over or apply to any 

other asset(s) of PML. Any reference in any security documents or 

arrangements (where PHCPL is a party) to any assets of PHCPL shall 

be so construed to the end and intent that such security shall not 

extend, nor be deemed to extend, to any of the other asset(s) of PHCPL 

and/or PML shall not be obliged to create any further or additional 

security. 

4.2 For the removal of doubt, it is clarified that to the extent that there are 

deposits, obligations, balances or other outstanding as between PHCPL 

and PML, the obligations in respect thereof shall come to an end and 

there shall be no liability in that behalf and corresponding effect shall 

be given in the books of account and records of PML for the reduction 

of such assets or liabilities, as the case may be, and there would be no 
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accrual of interest or any other charges in respect of such deposits or 

balances, with effect from the Appointed Date. 

5. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

5.1    If any suits, actions and proceedings of whatsoever nature (hereinafter 

referred to as the “Proceedings”) by or against PHCPL are pending on 

the Effective Date, the same shall not abate or be discontinued nor in 

any way be prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation of 

PHCPL with PML or anything contained in the Scheme, but the 

Proceedings may be continued and enforced by or against PML as 

effectually and in the same manner and to the same extent as the same 

would or might have continued and enforced by or against PHCPL, in 

the absence of the Scheme.  

6. CONTRACTS AND DEEDS

6.1 All contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, arrangements, incentives, 

licences, engagements, registrations, transactions, actions, authorizations 

and other instruments of whatsoever nature to which PHCPL is a party or 

to the benefit of which PHCPL may be eligible or undertakings issued by 

PHCPL, and which have not lapsed and are subsisting on the Effective 

Date, shall remain in full force and effect against or in favour of PML, as 

the case may be, and may be enforced by or against PML as fully and 

effectually as if, instead of PHCPL, PML had been a party or beneficiary 

thereto.  
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6.2 PML shall, if and to the extent required by law, enter into and/or issue 

and/or execute deeds, writings or confirmations, to give formal effect to 

the provisions of this Clause and to the extent that PHCPL is required 

prior to the Effective Date to join in such deeds, writings or 

confirmations, PML shall be entitled to act for and on behalf of and in the 

name of PHCPL.  

7. SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

7.1     The transfer of the assets and liabilities of PHCPL under Clauses 3 & 4 

above, the continuance of Proceedings under Clause 5 above and the 

effectiveness of contracts and deeds under Clause 6 above, shall not 

affect any transaction or Proceedings already concluded by PHCPL on 

or before the Effective Date, to the end and intent that PML accepts 

and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by PHCPL in 

respect thereto, as if done and executed on its behalf. 

8. EMPLOYEES

8.1    All the employees of PHCPL in service on the Effective Date shall, on 

and from the Effective Date, become the employees of PML without 

any break or interruptions in their service and upon the terms and 

conditions not less favourable than those on which they were engaged 

on the Effective Date.   
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8.2    With regard to provident fund and gratuity fund or any other special 

funds or schemes created or existing for the benefit of such employees 

(hereinafter referred to as the “said Funds”) of PHCPL, upon the 

Scheme becoming effective, PML shall stand substituted for PHCPL 

for all purposes whatsoever relating to the administration or operation 

of such schemes or funds in relation to the obligations to make 

contributions to the said Funds in accordance with the provisions of 

such schemes or funds in the respective Trust Deeds or other 

documents.   

9. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS TILL EFFECTIVE DATE

With effect from the Appointed Date and upto and including the

Effective Date:

9.1     PHCPL shall be deemed to have been carrying on and shall carry on its 

business and activities and shall be deemed to have held and stood 

possessed of and shall hold and stand possessed of all of its assets for 

and on account of, and in trust for PML and all profits or dividends or 

other rights accruing to PHCPL and all taxes thereof, or losses arising 

or incurred by it, relating to such investments, shall, for all intent and 

purpose, be treated as the profits, dividends, taxes or losses, as the case 

maybe, of PML.   

9.2  PHCPL shall carry on its business and activities with reasonable 

diligence, business prudence and shall not (without the prior written 
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consent of PML) alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or otherwise 

deal with or dispose of its undertaking or any part thereof, except in the 

ordinary course of business. 

9.3     All the profits or income, taxes (including advance tax and tax deducted 

at source) or any costs, charges, expenditure accruing to PHCPL or 

expenditure or losses arising or incurred or suffered by PHCPL shall 

for all purposes be treated and be deemed to be and accrue as the 

profits, taxes, incomes, costs, charges, expenditure or losses of PML, 

as the case may be. 

9.4  PHCPL shall not vary the terms and conditions of service of its 

employees  except in the ordinary course of business. 

9.5  On and after the Appointed Date and until the Effective Date, PHCPL 

shall not without the prior written approval of the Board of Directors of 

PML: 

 (i) except as contemplated under this Scheme, issue or allot any

further securities,  either by way of rights or bonus or otherwise; or

(ii) utilize, subject to Clause 10.1 below, the profits, if any, for any

purpose including of declaring or paying any dividend.

9.6    It is clarified that all taxes payable by PHCPL, relating to the transferred 

undertaking, from the Appointed Date onwards including all or any 
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refunds and claims shall, for all purposes, be treated as the tax liabilities 

or refunds and claims of PML.  

9.7  This Scheme has been drawn up to comply with and fall within the 

definition and conditions relating to “Amalgamation” as specified under 

Section 2(1B) and other applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, 

1961, as amended. If any terms or provisions of the Scheme are found or 

interpreted to be inconsistent with the provisions of the said Sections of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961, at a later date, including resulting from 

amendment of law or for any other reason whatsoever, the Scheme shall 

stand modified / amended / altered to the extent determined necessary to 

comply with and fall within the definition and conditions relating to 

“Amalgamation” as specified in the Income Tax Act, 1961. In such an 

event, the Clauses which are inconsistent shall be read down or if the 

need arises be deemed to be deleted and such modification/reading down 

or deemed deletion shall however not affect the other parts of the 

Scheme. 

9.8 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, PML is expressly permitted and 

shall be entitled to revise its financial Statements and Returns along with 

prescribed Forms and annexures under the Income Tax Act, 1961, as 

amended, (including for minimum alternate tax purposes and tax 

benefits, ) Goods & Services Tax and other tax laws, and to claim 

refunds and/or credits for taxes paid (including minimum alternate tax), 
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and to claim tax benefits under the Income Tax, 1961 etc. and for 

matters incidental thereto, if required to give effect to the provisions of 

this Scheme.  

9.9  PHCPL, shall preserve and carry on its business and activities with 

reasonable diligence and business prudence and shall not undertake any 

additional financial commitments of any nature whatsoever, borrow any 

amounts, nor incur any other liabilities or expenditure, issue any 

additional guarantees, indemnities, letters of comforts or commitments 

for themselves or any third party or sell, transfer, alienate, charge, 

mortgage or encumber or deal with the undertaking or any part thereof 

save and except in each case in the following circumstances: 

(a) If the same is in its ordinary course of business as carried on as

on the date of filing this Scheme with the NCLT; or

(b) If the same is permitted by this Scheme; or

(c) If the same is permitted by a written consent of the Board of

Directors of PML.

(d) If the same is pursuant to any pre-existing obligation undertaken

by PHCPL.

9.10 PHCPL shall not, without prior written consent of PML, undertake any 

new Business and/or investments. 
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9.11  PHCPL shall not, without prior written consent of PML, take any 

major policy decision in respect of the management of PHCPL and for 

the business of the Company and shall not change its present capital 

structure. 

9.12  PHCPL shall co-operate with PML for smooth transfer of the business 

and undertaking from PHCPL to PML and any of the Directors of 

PHCPL and any of the Directors of PML shall be empowered to give 

effect to the Scheme in all aspects as may be necessary or expedient 

including settling any question or difficulties arising in relation to the 

Scheme in such manner as they deem fit to attain the objective of this 

Scheme and their decision in this regard shall be final and binding.  

10. DIVIDENDS

10.1 PHCPL and PML shall be entitled to declare and pay dividends, whether 

interim or final, to their shareholders in respect of the accounting period 

prior to the Appointed Date. For the period commencing from the 

Appointed Date until the Effective Date, PHCPL shall declare dividend, 

only with the prior written consent of the Board of Directors of PML, as 

mentioned in Clause 9.5 above. However, during this said period, PML 

shall be entitled to declare dividend without any restriction.  

10.2  Subject to the provisions of the Scheme, the profits of PHCPL, for the 

period beginning from the Appointed Date, shall belong to and be the 
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profits of PML and will be available to PML for being disposed of in 

any manner as it thinks fit.  

10.3 It is clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect of declaration of 

dividends are enabling provisions only and shall not be deemed to confer 

any right on any member of PHCPL and/or PML to demand or claim any 

dividends which, subject to the provisions of the said Act, shall be 

entirely at the discretion of the Board of Directors of PML, subject to 

such approval of the shareholders, as may be required. 

11. SUMMARY OF VALUATION REPORT OF M/S. BANSI S.
MEHTA & CO.  AND M/S. BSR & ASSOCIATES LLP

The Share Exchange Ratio has been arrived at based on the joint valuation 

report prepared by Independent Valuers namely M/s. Bansi S. Mehta & Co., 

Chartered Accountants  and M/s. BSR & Associates LLP, Chartered 

Accountants, an extract of the said valuation report is given in Annexure A. 

Further, Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited, Independent Category-l 

Merchant Banker have provided fairness report to PML on the fairness of the 

Share Exchange Ratio determined for the amalgamation of PHCPL with 

PML.  

12. CONSIDERATION:

12.1. Upon this Scheme finally coming into effect and in consideration of the 

transfer of all the assets and liabilities of PHCPL to PML in terms of this 

Scheme:-  
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a. 13,21,400 Equity Shares of PHCPL held by PML shall stand

automatically cancelled and there will not be any issue and

allotment of shares to PML.  

b  PML shall issue and allot to the shareholders of PHCPL save 

and except PML, 627 fully paid-up equity shares of face value 

of Rs. 2 each for every 100 fully paid-up equity shares of face 

value of Rs. 10 each held by other shareholder i.e. Ruia 

International Holding Company Private Limited ('RIHCPL') in 

PHCPL on the Record Date (“Share Exchange Ratio”). Any 

fractional shares arising out of such allotment shall be rounded 

off to the  nearest integer. 

c. The Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to clause 12.1 (b) shall

be issued in dematerialized form.

d. The Equity Shares to be issued shall be listed and admitted to

trading on the Stock Exchanges. PML shall enter into such

arrangements and give such confirmations and/or undertakings

as may be necessary in accordance with the applicable laws or

regulations for complying with the formalities of the Stock

Exchanges with respect to the issue of equity shares under this

Scheme. On such formalities being fulfilled, the Stock

Exchanges shall list and/or admit such equity shares issued

pursuant to this Scheme, for the purpose of trading.
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12.2. On the approval of the Scheme by the members of PML pursuant to the 

provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, if any it shall be deemed that the said members 

of PML have also resolved and accorded all relevant consents under 

Sections 42 and 62 of the Act or any other provisions of the said Act, 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and 

Disclosure Requirement), 2015  and Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 

and all other relevant Rules, Regulations, and Laws for the time being 

in force. It is clarified that there will be no need to pass a separate 

shareholders’ resolution as required under Sections 42 and 62 of the Act 

or any other provisions of the said Act, if any, as may be applicable. 

12.3. The new shares in PML to be issued to the shareholders of PHCPL save 

and except PML, shall be subject to the Memorandum and Articles of 

Association of PML and the Equity Shares shall rank for dividend, 

voting rights and in all other respects pari passu with the existing Equity 

Shares of PML. 

12.4. The new shares to be issued by PML to the shareholders of PHCPL 

save and except PML, shall be subject to all the consents, approvals 

and permissions, as may be necessary, from the concerned statutory 

authorities as the case may be. Further necessary compliances, if any, 

as may be required under the applicable laws if any, required arising 

out of the above amalgamation will be made.   
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13. DISSOLUTION OF PHCPL

On the Scheme becoming effective, PHCPL shall stand dissolved

without being wound up without any further act, instrument or deed by

the parties.

14. FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS OF
PHCPL AND PML AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2019 IS AS UNDER:

14.1 Balance Sheet (Standalone) of PHCPL as on 31st March 2019 is as under: 

Particulars  As At 

(Amount in Rs.) March 31, 2019 

ASSETS 

(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment   5,265  

(b) Financial Asset

(i) Investments 1,84,28,54,959  

(c) Other Non-Current Asset  95,000  

(2) Current assets

(a) Financial Asset

(i) Trade receivables         11,90,000  

(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents           1,90,182 

(iii) Short-Term Loans and Advances         21,25,000  

(b) Current Tax Assets ( Net)           4,00,454 

(c) Other Current Assets 56,589  

 Total            1,84,69,17,448  

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY

(a) Equity Share Capital 2,32,14,000  

(b) Other Equity            1,77,47,02,039  
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LIABILITIES 

(1) Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liability

(i) Borrowings                4,87,21,826  

(ii) Trade Payables

Dues to micro and small enterprises            -   

Dues to others           2,23,950 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities            -   

(b) Other Current Liabilities 55,633  

 Total 1,84,69,17,448  

Following are the Shareholders of PHCPL as on 31st March 2019: 

 Names of 
shareholders 

Address Number of 
shares 

Nomi
nal 

Value 
per 

share 
(₹) 

Amount in ₹ Percenta
ge of 

holding 
(%) 

1.  The Phoenix 
Mills Limited   

462 Senapati 
Bapat 
Marg,Lower 
Parel- West, 
Mumbai – 
400013 

13,21,400 10 1,32,14,000 56.92% 

2.  Ruia 
International 
Holding 
Company 
Private 
Limited  

C/o Market 
City Resources 
Pvt. Ltd, 
Ground Floor, 
R.R. Hosiery 
Bldg,Shree 
Luxmi Woollen 
Mills Estate 
Mahalaxmi 
Mumbai- 
400011 

9,99,900 10 99,99,000 43.07% 

3. Ruia 
International 
Holding 
Company 
Private 
Limited jointly 
with Mr. Atul 
Ruia   

C/o Market 
City Resources 
Pvt. Ltd, 
Ground Floor, 
R.R. Hosiery 
Bldg,Shree 
Luxmi Woollen 
Mills Estate 

100 10 1,000 0.05% 
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Mahalaxmi 
Mumbai- 
400011 

TOTAL  23,21,400 10 2,32,14,000 100%

14.2 Balance Sheet (Standalone) of PML as on 31st March 2019 is as under 

Statement of Assets & Liabilities Rs. in Lakhs 
Particulars  As at  

31st March 2019  
 Audited 

ASSETS  

1 Non-current assets 
a) Property, plant and equipment 63,486.38  
b) Capital work-in-progress 10,664.47  
c) Other intangible assets   18.24  
d) Financial assets

i) Investments 2,61,373.09  
ii) Loans 12,630.25  
iii) Other Financial assets 4,414.01  

e) Deferred tax assets (net) 1,751.71  
f) Other non-current assets 1,471.36  

(A) 3,55,809.51  

2 Current assets 
a) Financial assets

i) Trade receivables 2,199.98  
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 716.90  
iii) Bank Balance other than above   14.84  
iv) Loans 7,087.67  
v)Other Financial assets 7,852.02  

b) Current Tax Assets (net) 2,887.69  
c) Other current assets 248.79  

(B) 21,007.89  

TOTAL ASSETS (A + B) 3,76,817.40  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  
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1 Equity
a) Equity share capital 3,065.80  
b) Other equity 2,71,393.86  

(A) 2,74,459.66  

Liabilities  

2 Non-current liabilities  
a) Financial liabilities

i) Borrowings 66,306.18  
ii) Other financial liabilities 7,394.59  

b) Provisions 147.11  
(B)

73,847.88  

3 Current liabilities  

a) Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 1,872.04  
ii) Trade Payables 1,327.98  
iii) Other financial liabilities 21,696.16  

b) Provisions   10.69  
c) Other current liabilities 3,602.99  

(C) 28,509.86  

TOTAL  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
(A+B+C) 3,76,817.40  

Following are the Shareholders of PML as on 31st March 2019: 

Category of the Shareholder  No. of Equity 
Shares held  

% of Shareholding  

Promoters 45,32,005 2.95

Promoter Group 9,16,78,877 59.81

Promoter & Promoter 
Group 

             9,62,10,882 62.76 

Public 

Foreign Portfolio Investor 3,86,88,275              25.24 

Foreign Institutional 
Investors 

1691,482 1.10

Mutual Funds 75,81,605 4.95 
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Public 42,95,997 2.80 

Bodies Corporate 22,98,397                1.50 

Non Resident Indians- Non-
Repatriable  

152,268               0.10 

Alternate Investment Funds  1144331               0.75 

Non Resident Indians- 
Repatriable 

  142,986                0.09 

Non-Promoter Directors and 
Relatives 

88,700            0.06 

HUF 71,988            0.05 

Clearing Members 34,241            0.02 

Financial Institutions & 
Banks 

13,505            0.01 

Trusts 12,604            0.01 

IEPF 8,05,587 0.53 

Foreign Companies  50,000            0.03 

Central Government 6,953 0.00

Sub-Total              5,70,78,919 37.24 

Grand Total             15,32,89,801  100.00 

15. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, PML shall account for the

amalgamation as under:

15.1 PML shall account for the amalgamation of PHCPL as per Ind- AS 

103 – Business Combinations (pooling of interest method) for the 

entities under common control and other applicable Indian 

Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India and as referred to in section 133 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, subject to the following:- 
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A) Upon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the

Appointed Date, all the assets, liabilities, reserves and credit balance of

profit and loss account, if any, of PHCPL shall be recorded in the

books of PML, under the respective heads of assets & liabilities,

subject to such correction and adjustments, if any, as may in the

opinion of the Board of Directors of PML be necessary or required and

to the extent permissible in law.

B) The balance, if any, in the Reserves account or credit or debit balance

of profit and loss account of PHCPL, as the case may be, as on the

Appointed Date, shall be transferred to and aggregated with the

corresponding reserves in the books of PML.

15.2 PML shall record all the assets and liabilities including reserves and 

accumulated losses of PHCPL transferred to and vested in PML 

pursuant to this Scheme, at their respective book values as appearing 

in the books of PHCPL. 

15.3 PML shall credit to its share capital account, the aggregate face value 

of the Equity Shares issued by it pursuant to this Scheme. 

15.4 The book value of investments, if any, held by PML in PHCPL shall 

stand cancelled. 

15.5 The excess or deficit between the net assets and reserves taken over 

as stated in (15.2) above, share capital issued as stated in (15.3) above 

and cancellation of investment as stated in (15.4) above shall be 
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credited / debited to Reserve Account as the case may be in the books 

of PML.  

15.6 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, to the extent that there are 

inter-corporate loans/advances or balances between PHCPL and 

PML, the obligations in respect thereof shall come to an end and 

corresponding effect shall be given in the books of accounts and 

records of PHCPL and PML for the reduction of any assets or 

liabilities, as the case may be. 

15.7 Adjustment for differences in accounting policies 

In case of any differences in the accounting policy between PHCPL 

and PML, the impact of the same till the amalgamation will be 

quantified and adjusted in Statement of Profit and Loss of PML to 

ensure that the financial statements of PML reflects the financial 

position on the basis of consistent accounting policy. 

15.8 The provisions of Income Tax has been duly complied. 

15.9  The difference between the amounts recorded as Share Capital issued 

and the amount of Share Capital of PHCPL shall be adjusted in 

Reserves. 

16. CHANGE IN THE MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION OF PML:

The Memorandum & Articles of Association of PML shall without any

act, instrument or deed be and shall stand altered, modified and amended

pursuant to section 13, 14, 61 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other

applicable provisions of the Act.
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Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the authorized share capital of the 

PHCPL shall stand combined with and be deemed to be added to the 

authorized share capital of the PML. Filing fees and stamp duty, if any, 

paid by PHCPL on its authorized share capital, as applicable, shall be 

deemed to have been so paid by the PML on the combined authorized 

share capital and accordingly, the PML shall not be required to pay any 

fee/stamp duty for its increased authorized share capital 

Consequently, existing clause 5 of the Memorandum of Association of 

the PML shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand 

altered, modified and amended pursuant to Sections 61 to 64 and other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 by substituting the 

existing Clause with the following 

“the Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.49,00,00,000/- 

(Rupees Forty Nine Crores Only) divided into 24,50,00,000 (Twenty 

Four Crores Fifty Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs.2/- (Rupees Two only) 

each with all the rights, privileges and conditions attached thereto as are 

provided by the Articles of Association of the Company for the time 

being, with power to increase, decrease or reduce the capital of the 

Company and to divide the shares in the capital for the time being into 

several classes and to attach thereto respectively such preferential, 

deferred, qualified or special rights, privileges or conditions as may be 

determined by or in accordance with the Articles of Association of the 

Company and to vary, modify or abrogate any such.” 

17. GENERAL:

17.1  On the Scheme being agreed to and approved by the respective 

requisite majorities of members of PHCPL and PML at their meetings 

held in accordance with the directions of the jurisdictional NCLT(s) on 
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the Companies’ applications, both the Companies shall with reasonable 

dispatch, file their respective petitions with the NCLT for sanctioning 

this Scheme of Amalgamation under Section 230 to 232 of the Act and 

for an order or orders for carrying this Scheme into effect. 

 17.2 Subject to the approval of the NCLT, PHCPL and PML through their 

respective Board of Directors or such other person or persons, as the 

respective Board of Directors may authorize, including any committee 

or sub-committee thereof, are hereby empowered and authorized to 

assent from time to time to any modifications or amendments or 

conditions or limitation which the NCLT or any other Government 

Authority may deem fit to approve, impose and to settle all doubts or 

difficulties that may arise for carrying out the Scheme and to do and 

execute all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary for 

putting the Scheme into effect. The power of the Board of Directors of 

PHCPL and PML shall be subject to the final approval of the NCLT.  

17.3 If the enterprise value of PHCPL exceeds 10% of the consolidated 

turnover of PML, the Scheme of Amalgamation between PML and 

PHCPL shall be a material related party transaction. The approval of 

the Scheme by the shareholders shall also be deemed an approval for 

material related party transaction in compliance with Regulation 23 of 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and 

Disclosure Requirement), 2015. 
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17.4 The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to: 

(a) The Scheme being agreed to by the respective requisite

majorities of the members as are referred to in clause 17.1

hereof on behalf of PHCPL and PML and requisite Order or

Orders referred to in clause 17.1 being obtained.

(b) Such other sanctions and approvals as may be required by law

in respect of the Scheme being obtained.

(c) The Scheme being approved by the majority of public

shareholders of the Transferee Company (by way of e-voting) as

required under the SEBI Circular. The Scheme shall be acted

upon only if the votes cast by the public shareholders in favour

of the Scheme are more than the number of votes cast by the

public shareholders, against it as required under the SEBI

Circular. The term ‘public shareholder’ shall carry the same

meaning as defined under Rule 2 of the Securities Contracts

(Regulations) Rules, 1957”

17.5     After the sanction of the Scheme and in spite of dissolution of PHCPL, 

PML shall for a period of one year from the date of sanction of the 

Scheme, be also entitled to continue to operate existing Bank account 

(s) of PHCPL for the purpose of depositing cheques, drafts, pay orders

and or payment advances issued to or to be issued in favor of PHCPL 
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and for the purpose of transferring such deposits in such accounts of 

PHCPL to the account of PML.  

17.6   Disclosure about the effect of aforesaid Amalgamation on: 

 Particulars Transferor Company Transferee Company 
Key Managerial 
personnel (KMP) 

Will cease to be KMP No effect 

Directors
Will cease to be 
Directors 

No effect 

Promoters Will be allotted equity 
shares as per the 
Scheme in the 
Transferee Company 

Change in the 
shareholding the 
Promoter 

Non-Promoter 
members 

Not Applicable Dilution in percentage 
stake 

Depositors Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Creditors Will become Creditors 
of Transferee
Company  

Not Effect 

Debenture holders Transferee Company 
being the Debenture 
holder, their holding 
will get cancelled 

Not Effect 

Deposit Trustee 
and Debenture 
trustee 

Not Applicable No effect 

Employees  Will become 
employees of
Transferee Company 

No effect 

Except as stated in this Scheme, there will not be any effect on material 

interests of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Debenture 

Trustee, as the case may be. There are no investigations, proceedings 

instituted or pending against PHCPL and PML under the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013.  
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17.7  The person may vote in the meeting either in person or by proxies as 

specifically provided in the notice convening meeting of the 

shareholders of the Company wherever required. 

17.8  The details of the following documents for obtaining extract from or 

for making copies or for inspection by the members and creditors 

would also available at the registered office of PHCPL and PML  

- Latest audited financial statements of  PML including consolidated

financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019.

- Latest audited financial statements of PHCPL for the year ended

March 31, 2019.

- Copy of the Scheme

- The certificate issued by the Statutory Auditors of PML and PHCPL

to the effect that the accounting treatment, if any, proposed in the

Amalgamation Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting

Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act,

2013;

17.9  This Scheme will be forwarded / filed with all required regulatory or 

any other government authorities to seek their approval / no objection / 

sanctions, if any, as may be required.  

17.10 Interse relationship between Directors of PHCPL and PML 

The common directors of PHCPL and PML are as under; 
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Particulars PHCPL PML 

Name of 

Directors 

Shishir Shrivastava Shishir Shrivastava 

Atul Ruia Atul Ruia 

17.11  Details of relationship between PHCPL and PML 

PHCPL is a subsidiary of PML and 13,21,400 equity shares of 

PHCPL are held by PML and the 10,00,000 balance shares are held 

by the Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited, a 

Promoter Group Company, of PML.   

18. REVOCATION OF THE SCHEME:

18.1 In the event of any of the said sanctions  and approvals referred to in 

Clause  17.1 above, not being obtained and/or complied with and/or 

satisfied and/or this Scheme not being sanctioned by the NCLT and/or 

order or orders not being passed as aforesaid before 31st March, 2021 or 

such other date as may be mutually agreed upon by the respective Board 

of Directors of PHCPL and PML who are hereby empowered and 

authorized to agree to and extend the aforesaid period from time to time 

without any limitations in exercise of their powers through and by their 

respective delegate(s), this Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and be 

of no effect and in that event, no rights and liabilities whatsoever shall 

accrue to or be incurred inter se PHCPL and PML or their respective 

shareholders or creditors or employees or any other person save and 

except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is contemplated 

61



40 

hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation which has arisen or 

accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved 

or worked out in accordance with the applicable law and in such case, 

each company shall bear its own costs unless otherwise mutually agreed. 

Further, the Board of Directors of PHCPL and PML with the approval of 

the NCLT shall be entitled to revoke, cancel and declare the Scheme of 

no effect, if such Boards are of view that the coming into effect of the 

Scheme in terms of the provisions of this Scheme or filing of the drawn 

up orders of NCLT with any authority or due to change in applicable 

laws could have adverse implication on either/both of the companies. 

19. COST

19.1 All costs, charges and expenses including stamp duty and registration 

fee of any deed, document, instrument or Tribunal’s order of PHCPL 

and PML respectively in relation to or in connection with negotiations 

leading upto the scheme and of carrying out and implementing the 

terms and provisions of this Scheme and incidental to the completion of 

arrangement of the said Scheme and in pursuance of this Scheme shall 

be borne and paid by PML exclusively. 

---------------- 
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BSR & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Lodha Excellus, 1st Floor, 

Apollo Mills Compound, N.M. Joshi Marg, 

Mahalakshmi, Mumbai 400 011, India 

7 August 2019 

The Board of Directors 
The Phoenix Mills Limited 
Shree Laxmi Woolen Mills Estate 
Off. Dr. E. Moses Road, Mahalaxm i 
Mumbai, 400011 

Bansi S. Mehta & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
Metro House, 3rd Floor, 

Dhobi Talao, M. G. Road, 

Mumbai - 400 020, Maharashtra, India 

The Board of Directors 
Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited 
Phoenix Mill Premises 
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, 
Mumbai -400013 

Sub: Recommendation of equity share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of Phoenix 

Hospitality Company Private Limited with The Phoenix Mills Limited 

Dear Sirs, 

We refer to our engagement letters whereby The Phoenix Mills Limited ("TPML") and Phoenix 
Hospitality Company Private Limited ("PHCPL") ( together referred to as "Clients", the "Companies", 
"Businesses" or "You") have jointly requested B S R & Associates LLP ("BSR") and Bansi S. Mehta 
& Co. ( "SSMC") to recommei1d an equity share exchange ratio in connection with the proposed 
amalgamation of Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited with The Phoenix Mills Limited. 

BSR and SSMC are hereinafter jointly referred to as "Valuers" or"we" or"us" and individually referred 
to as the "Valuer" in this Valuation Report. 

SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THE VALUATION REPORT 

We understand that the management of the Companies ( hereinafter referred to as "the Management") 
are contemplating the amalgamation of PHCPL with TPML under a Scheme of Amalgamation under 
the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Under the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation, as consideration for the 
amalgamation of PH CPL into TPML, the shareholders of PH CPL will be issued equity shares ofTPML 
("Transact ion"). 

BSR and SSMC have been requested by the Board of Directors/ Audit Committee of the Companies to 
submit a letter recommending an equity share exchange ratio, as on the date of this repo1t, in connection 
with the Transaction. This valuation report ("Valuation Report") may be placed before the audit 
committee, as per SEBI Circular CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10 March 2017 and the circular no. 
CFO/DI L3/CI R/2017 /26 dated 23 March 2017. We understand that this Valuation Report will be used 
by the Clients for the above mentioned purpose only and, to the extent mandatorily required under 
applicable laws of India, may be produced before judicial, regulatory or government authorities, in 
connection with the Transaction. 

We understand that the appointed date for the amalgamation as per the draft scheme shall be 1 April 

63

Annexure B



BSR & Associates LLP Bansi S. Mehta & Co 

Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of P HCP L with TPML 

The scope of our services is to conduct a relative valuation (and not absolute) of the equity shares of 

TPML and PH CPL to arrive at the equity share exchange ratio of TPML and PHCPL ("Equity Share 

Exchange Ratio") for the proposed amalgamation in accordance with generally accepted professional 

standards. 

This Valuation Report is subject to the scope, assumptions, exclusions, limitations and disclaimers 

detailed hereinafter. As such the Valuation Report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in 

conjunction with the relevant documents referred to therein. 

SOURCES OF INFORMATION 

In connection with preparing this Valuation Report, we have received the following information from 

the management of the Companies ("Management"): 

• Audited financial statements of the Companies for the historical period;

• Management business plan ("Management Business Plan") for TPML, PHCPL, their subsidiaries,

joint ventures and special purpose vehicles (SPVs);

• Interviews and discussions with the Management to augment our knowledge of the operations of

the Companies;

• Draft Scheme of Amalgamation dated 6 August 2019 ("Scheme");

• Other information, explanations and representations that were required and provided by the

Management;

• For our analysis, we have relied on published and secondary sources of data, whether or not made

available by the Client. We have not independently verified the accuracy or timeliness of the same;

and

• Such other analysis, review and enquiries, as we considered necessary.

We have taken into consideration the current market parameters in our analysis and have made 

adjustments for additional facts made known to us till the date of our Valuation Report. Further, we 

have been informed that all material information impacting the Companies have been disclosed to us. 

The Management has further confirmed to us that there are no unusual/ abnormal events in the 

Companies since the last audited accounts till the Valuation Report date materially impacting their 

operating/ financial performance. 

The Companies have been provided with the opportunity to review the draft Valuation Report 

(excluding the recommended Equity Share Exchange Ratio) as part of our standard practice to make 

sure that factual inaccuracies/ omissions are avoided in our final report. 

SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND 

DISCLAIMERS 

Provision of valuation opinions and consideration of the issues described herein are areas of our regular 

� 

service does not represent accounting, assurance, accounting/ tax due diligence, consulting 

services that may otherwise be provided by us or our affiliates. 

ubject to the limitations mentioned herein under 

--..::::::::::::,:;::;;," 
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BSR & Associates LLP Bansi S. Mehta & Co

Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of P HCP L with TP ML 

This Valuation Report, its contents and the results herein are specific to (i) the purpose of valuation 

agreed as per the terms of our engagement; and (ii) the date of this Valuation Report and (iii) the latest 

available financial statements of the Companies and other information provided by the Management or 

taken from public sources till 7 August 2019. 

A valuation of this nature is necessarily based on (a) prevailing stock market, financial, economic and 

other conditions in general and industry trends in particular as in effect on and (b) the information made 

available to us as of, the date hereof. Events occurring after the date hereof may affect this Valuation 

Report and the assumptions used in preparing it, and we do not assume any obligation to update, revise 

or reaffirm this Valuation Report. 

The ultimate analysis will have to be influenced by the exercise of judicious discretion by the Valuer 

and judgment taking into accounts all the relevant factors. There will always be several factors, e.g. 

management capability, present and prospective competition, yield on comparable securities, market 

sentiment, etc. which are not evident from the face of the balance sheets but which will strongly 

influence the worth of a share. This concept is also recognized in judicial decisions. 

The recommendation(s) rendered in this Valuation Report only represent our recommendation(s) based 

upon information received by the Companies till 7 August 2019 and other sources and the said 

recommendation(s) shall be considered to be in the nature of non-binding advice (our recommendation 

will however not be used for advising anybody to take buy or sell decision, for which specific opinion 

needs to be taken from expert advisors). Further, the determination of Equity Share Exchange Ratio is 

not a precise science and the conclusions arrived at in many cases will, of necessity, be subjective and 

dependent on the exercise of individual judgment. There is, therefore, no indisputable single Equity 

Share Exchange Ratio. While we have provided our recommendation of the Equity Share Exchange 

Ratio based on the information available to us and within the scope and constraints of our engagement, 

others may have a different opinion as to the Equity Share Exchange Ratio of the equity shares ofTPML 

and PH CPL. You acknowledge and agree that you have the final responsibility for the determination of 

the Equity Share Exchange Ratio at which the proposed amalgamation shall take place and factors other 

than our Valuation Repo1t will need to be taken into account in determining the Equity Share Exchange 

Ratio; these will include your own assessment of the Transaction and may include the input of other 

professional advisors. 

In the course of the valuation, we were provided with both written and verbal information, including 

market, technical, financial and operating data. In accordance with the terms of our engagement, we 

have assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, (i) the accuracy of the information that 

was publicly available and formed a substantial basis for this Valuation Report and (ii) the accuracy of 

information made available to us by the Companies. We have not carried out a due diligence or audit 

of the Companies for the purpose of this engagement, nor have we independently investigated or 

otherwise verified the data provided. We are not legal or regulatory advisors with respect to legal and 

regulatory matters for the Transaction. We do not express any form of assurance that the financial 

information or other information as prepared and provided by the Companies is accurate. Also, with 

respect to explanations and information sought from the Companies, we have been given to understand 

panies that they have not omitted any relevant and material factors and that they have 

elevance or materiality of any specific information to the resent exercise with us in case 

subject to the limitations mentioned herein under 
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BSR & Associates LLP Bansi S. Mehta & Co 

Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of P HCP L with TP ML 

of any doubt. Accordingly, we do not express any opinion or offer any form of assurance regarding its 
accuracy and completeness. 

Our conclusions are based on these assumptions and information given by/ on behalf of the Companies. 
The Management have indicated to us that they have understood that any omissions, inaccuracies or 
misstatements may materially affect our valuation analysis/ results. Accordingly, we assume no 
responsibility for any errors in the information furnished by the Companies and its impact on the 
Valuation Report. Also, we assume no responsibility for technical information (if any) furnished by the 
Companies. However, nothing has come to our attention to indicate that the information provided was 
materially mis-stated/ incorrect or would not afford reasonable grounds upon which to base the 
Valuation Repo1t. We do not imply and it should not be construed that we have verified any of the 
information provided to us, or that our inquiries could have verified any matter, which a more extensive 
examination might disclose. 

In no event shall we be liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses arising in any way from fraudulent 
acts, misrepresentations or willful default on part of the Companies, their directors, employees or agents. 
In no circumstances shall the liability of a Valuer, its partners, its directors or employees, relating to the 
services provided in connection with the engagement set out in this Valuation Report shall exceed the 
amount paid to such Valuer in respect of the fees charged by it for these services. 

The Valuation Report assumes that the specified Companies comply fully with relevant laws and 
regulations applicable in all its areas of operations unless otherwise stated, and that the specified 
Companies will be managed in a competent and responsible manner. Further, except as specifically 
stated to the contrary, this Valuation Report has given no consideration to matters of a legal nature, 
including issues of legal title and compliance with local laws, and litigation and other contingent 
liabilities that are not recorded in period balance sheet of the specified Companies. Our conclusion of 
value assumes that the assets and liabilities of the specified Companies, reflected in their respective 
latest balance sheets remain intact as of the Valuation Report date. 

The financial forecasts used in the preparation of the Report reflects judgment of management of 
Companies, based on present circumstances prevailing around the Valuation Date, as to the most likely 
set of conditions and the course of action it is most likely to take. It is usually the case that some events 
and circumstances do not occur as expected or are not anticipated. Therefore, actual results during the 
forecast period will almost always may differ from the forecasts and as such differences may be 
material. 

This Valuation Report does not address the relative merits of the Transaction as compared with any 
other alternative business transaction, or other alternatives, or whether or not such alternatives could be 
achieved or are available. 

No investigation of the Companies' claim to title of assets has been made for the purpose of this 
Valuation Report and the Companies' claim to such rights has been assumed to be valid. No 
consideration has been given to liens or encumbrances against the assets, beyond the loans disclosed in 

ts. Therefore, no responsibility is assumed for matters of a legal nature. The fee for the 

�

is not contingent upon the results of the Valuation Repo 

i, 

's ubject to the limitations mentioned herein under 
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BSR & Associates LLP Bansi S. Mehta & Co

Recommendation of share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of P HCP l with TPML 

We owe responsibility to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of TPML and PHCPL which 

have retained us, and nobody else. We will not be liable for any losses, claims, damages or liabilities 

arising out of the actions taken, omissions of the other. We do not accept any liability to any third party 

in relation to the issue of this Valuation Repo1t. This Valuation Repo1t is not a substitute for the third 

party's own due diligence/ appraisal/ enquiries/ independent advice that the third party should undertake 

for his purpose. It is understood that this analysis does not represent a fairness opinion. 

This Valuation Report is subject to the laws of India. 

Neither the Valuation Repott nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any registration statement, 

prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or other agreement. Further, it cannot 

be used for purpose other than in connection with the Transaction, without our prior consent. In addition, 

this Valuation Report does not in any manner address the prices at which equity shares will trade 

following consummation of the Transaction and we express no opinion or recommendation as to how 

the shareholders of either Company should vote at any shareholders' meeting(s) to be held in connection 

with the Transaction. 

BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES 

The Phoenix Mills Limited (TPML) 

TPML, a company incorporated in 1905, is based in Mumbai, India. TPML is a leading retail mall 
developer and operator in India and is the pioneer of retail-led, mixed-use developments in India with 
completed development of over 17.5 million square feet spread across retail, hospitality, commercial, 
and residential asset classes. The company has an operational retail portfolio of approximately 6.0 

million square feet spread across 8 operational malls in 6 gateway cities oflndia. The company is further 
developing 5 malls with over 4.9 million square feet of retail space in 5 gateway cities oflndia. Besides 
retail, the company plans to expand its commercial office portfolio from current gross leasable area 

(GLA) of 1.3 million square feet to 4 - 5 million square feet. 

The issued and subscribed equity share capital of TPML as at 7 August 2019 is INR 306.69 million 
consisting of 153,343,690 equity shares of face value ofINR 2 each. The shareholding pattern of TPML 
as on Valuation Repo1t date is as follows: 

Category No of Shares % shareholding 

Promoter & Promoter Group 96,215,882 62.75 

Public 57,127,808 37.25 

Total 153,343,690 100.0 

Source: Management 

Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited (PHCPL) 

PHCPL is a holding company having investment in four SPVs engaged in the business of real estate 
development. PHCPL has ownership interests in Graceworks Realty and Leisure, Alliance Spaces, 

· 
Constructions and Starboard Hotels. In together, the four SPVs have GLA of approximately 
1 square feet of leasable commercial and retail developm ~ illion square feet of 

under residential development and 193 key hotel. 

subject to the limitations mentioned herein under 
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The issued and subscribed equity share capital of PH CPL as at 7 August 2019 is INR 23.21 million 
consisting of 2,321,400 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each. The shareholding pattern of PHCPL 
as on Valuation Report date is as follows: 

Category No of Shares % shareholding 

The Phoenix Mills Limited 1,321,400 56.92 

Promoters and Promoter Group 1,000,000 43.08 

Total 2,321,400 100.0 

Source: Management 

APPROACH & METHODOLOGY - BASIS OF TRANSACTION 

The Transaction contemplates amalgamation of PHCPL with TPML. Arriving at the Equity Share 

Exchange Ratio for the proposed amalgamation of the above mentioned companies would require 

determining the value of PHCPL in terms of the value of the equity shares ofTPML. These values are 

to be determined independently but on a relative basis, and without considering the proposed 

Transaction. 

There are several commonly used and accepted methods for determining the value of the equity shares 

of a company, which have been considered in the present case by Valuers independently, to the extent 

relevant and applicable, including: 

I . Market Price method 

2. Income Approach/ Earnings based Method

3. Net Asset Value method (NA V)

It should be understood that the valuation of any company or its assets is inherently imprecise and is 

subject to certain uncertainties and contingencies, all of which are difficult to predict and are beyond 

our control. In performing our analysis, we made numerous assumptions with respect to industry 

performance and general business and economic conditions, many of which are beyond the control of 

the Companies. In addition, this valuation will fluctuate with changes in prevailing market conditions, 

the conditions and prospects, financial and otherwise, of the Companies, and other factors which 

generally influence the valuation of companies and their assets. 

The application of any patticular method of valuation depends on the purpose for which the valuation 

is done. Although different values may exist for different purposes, it cannot be too strongly emphasized 

that a valuer can only arrive at one value for one purpose. Our choice of methodology of valuation has 

been arrived at using usual and conventional methodologies adopted for a transaction of a similar nature, 

regulatory guidelines and our reasonable judgment, in an independent and bona fide manner based on 

our previous experience of assignments of a similar nature. 

The valuation methodologies used by BSR and BSMC to arrive at the value attributable to the equity 

shareholders of TPML and PHCPL are discussed in Annexure IA and 1B respectively (Annexure JA 

er referred to as Annexure.s): 

bject to the limitations mentioned herein under 
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BASIS OF EQUITY SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO 

The basis of amalgamation of PHCPL into TPML would have to be determined after taking into 
consideration all the factors and methodologies mentioned hereinabove. Though different values have 
been arrived at under each of the above methodologies, for the purposes of recommending an Equity 
Share Exchange Ratio of equity shares, it is necessary to arrive at a single value for the equity shares 
ofTPML and PHCPL. lt is however important to note that in doing so we are not attempting to arrive 
at the absolute equity values of the Companies but at their relative values to facilitate the determination 
of a fair Equity Share Exchange Ratio. For th is purpose, it is necessary to give appropriate weights to 
the values arrived at under each methodology. 

The Equity Share Exchange Ratio has been arrived at on the basis ofa relative equity valuation of the 
Companies based on the various approaches/ methods explained herein earlier and various qualitative 
factors relevant to each company and the business dynamics and growth potentials of the businesses of 
the Businesses, having regard to information base, key underlying assumptions and limitations. 

As considered appropriate, we have independently applied methodologies discussed in the Annexures 
and arrived at the value per share of the Companies. To arrive at the consensus on the equity share 
exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation, suitable minor adjustments/ rounding off have been 
done. 

In view of the above, and on consideration of the relevant factors and circumstances as discussed and 

outlined hereinabove, we recommend the Equity Share Exchange Ratio of equity shares for 

amalgamation of PH CPL into TPML at 627 (six hundred twenty seven) equity shares ofTPML oflNR 

2 each fully paid up for every 100 (hundred) equity shares of PH CPL of INR 10 each fully paid up. 

Our Valuation Report and Equity Share Exchange Ratio is based on the current equity share capital 

structure ofTPML and PHCPL as mentioned earlier in this Report. Any variation in the equity capital 

ofTPML and PHCPL may have material impact on the share exchange ratio. 

Respectfully submitted. 

For B S R & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

n No: I 1623 1 W 

Partner 
Membership No: 108 

UDIN: I q /D& .2.3 --�-u 
'-lo�-

Date: 7 August 2019 

For Bansi S. Mehta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 100991 W 

�
<JJ 

Drushti R. Desai 
Partner 
Membership No: 102062 

UDIN: \ C\ I O 2 0 G:, 2- A f\ f\ A f\ i-\ "':) ·::i-?> 3 

Date: 7 August 2019 
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Annexure lA 

APPROACH & METHODOLOGY - BASIS OF TRANSACTION - BSR 

The valuation methodologies used by BSR to arrive at the value attributable to the equity shareholders 

of PH CPL and TPML are discussed hereunder: 

Market Price Method 

The market price of an equity share as quoted on a stock exchange is normally considered as the value 

of the equity shares of that company where such quotations are arising from the shares being regularly 

and freely traded in. Further, in the case of a transaction, where there is a question of evaluating the 

shares of one company against those of another, the volume of transactions and the number of shares 

available for trading on the stock exchange over a reasonable period would have to be of a comparable 

standard. 

In the present case, the shares ofTPML are listed on BSE and NSE and there are regular transactions 

in its equity shares with reasonable volume. In the circumstances, the share price of TPML has been 

considered as suggested in regulation 164 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20 I 8. Accordingly, higher of the below two methods has 

been taken for determining the value ofTPML under the market price methodology: 

a) Average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price during the last twenty
six weeks preceding the Valuation Report date; and

b) Average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price during the two weeks

preceding the Valuation Report date.

Income Approach 

The income approach used for the valuation of TPML and PH CPL includes combination of the rent 
capitalization method ("Rent Capitalization") and the Discounted Cash Flow ("DCF") method. The 
approach used by us has been summarized below: 
• Residential assets - all are currently under construction and have been valued using DCF method
• Commercial/ retail leasable properties - assets which are fully operationalized (have stabilized Net

operating Income (Nol)), have been valued using Rent Capitalization method.
• Under construction/ not fully operational Commercial/ retail leasable properties - assets which are

either under construction or are yet to be fully operational (i.e., properties still getting leased out)
have been valued using combination of both the methods. For the initial years where the Nol is yet
to be stabilized, the cash flows generated have been valued using DCF method. Thereafter, the
terminal value has been calculated using Rent Capitalization method to evaluate stabilized
commercial operations. The sum of the two results to the value of the property.

• Finally, both TPML and PHCPL has been valued on Sum of the Parts ("SOTP") approach.

The Rent Capitalization method estimates the value of an income generating property based on the 
level and quality of income the property generates. It capitalizes the stabilized NOi (current year/ one 
year forward) at a rate known as capitalization rate or cap rate. This cap rate is the rate that is used by 
the market in recent transactions to capitalize future income into a market value. Nol is a measure of 

ed from property after deducting operating expenses and therefore, considered as 
sure of income before tax. 

·eel to the limitations mentioned herein under Page 8 of 12 
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Under the DCF method, the future cash flows, including the capital expenditures, are projected over 
the forecast period and discounted to present at the weighted average cost of capital to arrive at the 
value of the property. This discount rate, which is applied to the free cash flows, should reflect the 

opportunity cost to all the capital providers (namely shareholders and lenders), weighted by their 
relative contribution to the total capital of the company. 

To arrive at the total value available to the equity shareholders, value arrived above under Income 
approach is adjusted, as appropriate, for cash and cash equivalent, borrowings, surplus assets, 
contingent liabilities, value of investments, proposed dividend (if any) and other matters. The total 
value is then divided by fully diluted equity shares (considering ESOPs) to arrive at the value per share. 

For the purpose of DCF valuation, the free cash flow forecast of the properties/ assets is based on 
Management Business Plan provided by the Management. Similarly, the Management has also 
provided the one year forward market rent applicable for the fully operational properties. 

We must emphasize that realizations of free cash flow forecast will be dependent on the continuing 
validity of assumptions on which they are based. Our analysis, therefore, will not, and cannot be 
directed to providing any assurance about the achievability of the final projections. Since the financial 
forecasts relate to future, actual results are likely to be different from the projected results because 
events and circumstances do not occur as expected, and the differences may be material. While carrying 
out this engagement, we have relied extensively on historical information made available to us by the 
Management and the Management Business Plan for future related information. We did not carry out 
any validation procedures or due diligence with respect to the information provided/ extracted or carry 
out any verification of the assets or comment on the achievability and reasonableness of the 
assumptions underlying the Management Business Plan, save for satisfying ourselves to the extent 
possible that they are consistent with other information provided to us in the course of this engagement. 

Net Asset Value (NA V) Method 
The asset based valuation technique is based on the value of the underlying net assets of the business, 
either on a book value basis or realizable value basis or replacement cost basis. The cost approach is 
based on the assumption that a prudent investor would pay no more for an entity than the amount for 
which he could replace or re-create it or an asset with similar utility. 

Considering the nature and size of the business operations we have not used NA V method for the 
purpose of evaluating the value ofTPML and PHCPL. 

Computation of equity share Exchange ratio as per BSR Analysis 
We have further independently assigned appropriate weightages to the value per equity share ofTPML 
and PH CPL arrived using Market price method, Income approach and NA V method to arrive at the 
value per equity share of PH CPL and TPML. 

PHCPL TPML 

Valuation Approach 
Value per 

Weightage 
Value per 

Weightage 
Share Share 

Market Approach NA 0% 661 50% 

Income Approach 4,543 100% 789 50% 

Asset Approach 1,300 0% 225 0% 

4,543 100% 725 100% 

Ratio (Rounded oft) 6.27 

ubject to the limitations mentioned herein under Page 9 of 12 
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Annexure lB 

APPROACH & METHODOLOGY - BASIS OF TRANSACTION - BSMC

It is universally recognized that valuation is not an exact science and that estimating values necessarily 
involves selecting a method or approach that is suitable for the purpose. 

For the purpose of arriving at valuation of the Valuation Subjects we have considered the valuation base 
as 'Fair Value'. O ur valuation, and th is report, is based on the premise of 'going concern value'. Any 
change in the valuation base, or the premise could have significant impact on our valuation exercise, 
and therefore, this Report. 

It may be noted that the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) on June 10, 2018 has issued 
the !CAI Valuation Standards ("IVS") effective for all the valuation reports issued on or after July 1, 
2018. The IVS shall be mandatory for the valuation done under the Companies Act, 2013, and 
recommendatory for valuation carried out under other statutes/ requirements. We have given due 
cognizance to the same in carrying out the valuation exercise. 

IVS 301 on Business Valuations deals with valuation of a business or business ownership interest (i.e. 
it includes valuation of equity shares). 

IVS 301 specifies that generally, the following three approaches for valuation of business/business 
ownership interest are used: 
I. Market approach

2. Income approach

3. Cost approach

Each of the above approaches are discussed in the following paragraphs. 

Market Price Method: 

This method involves determining the market price of an entity based on its traded price on the stock 
exchange over a reasonable period of time. We have determined the market price of shares ofTPML­
based on weighted average price on NSE over a period of six months prior to the Valuation Date. Equity 
Shares of PHCPL are not listed on any stock exchange and therefore, the Market Price Method is not 
used to determine the value of the equity shares of PHCPL. 

Earnings based Method: 

Under the Earnings Approach we compute the fair value based on the earnings. 

We have valued TPML and PHCPL based on Sum of the Parts (SOTP) basis wherein we have 

capitalized earnings of operational portfolios (including projects housed under Investee Companies) 

with reasonable level of occupancies. For valuing companies/ projects under construction with lower 

level of occupancies or new projects, we have used the Discounted Cash Flow Method ("DCF") of 

Valuation. 

Under the DCF Method, the future cash flows are appropriately discounted to arrive at a value of the 
business on a going concern basis. This value would, primarily, be based on the present value of such 
future cash flows generated. 

This Report is subject to the limitations mentioned herein under Page JOof 12 
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The value per share of TPM L and PH CPL is based on the value of proposionate stake in the operational 
portfolios under them. 

Cost approach: 
Cost Approach is a valuation approach that reflects the amount that would be required currently to 

replace the service capacity of an asset ( often referred to as current replacement cost). 

IVS 30 I on Business Valuations and IVS I 03 on Valuation Approaches and Methods specify that 

common methodologies for the Cost Approach are the Replacement Cost Method and the Reproduction 

Cost Method. These methods involve determining the value of the asset based on the cost that would 

have to be incurred to recreate/replicate the asset with substantially the same utility as that of the asset 

under valuation. 

Value of residential projects would be the present value of the likely realisation, to assume value of 

such project based on the full market value without considering the time factor would not be reflective 

of the true value of such project. The value of commercial property held for letting and retail malls can 

be best valued only on the basis of rental streams. To assume value based on cost approach for such 

prope1ty would be inconsistent with the intent of the companies, and would also not be in line with the 

basis of valuation viz. going concern. 

Fair Valuation: 

We have arrived at the fair value of equity shares of TPML by applying equal weights to the value 
derived under the Earnings based Method and the Market Price Method. 

The fair value of the equity shares of PH CPL is derived based on the Earnings. 

Attention may also be drawn to Regulation 158 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 

of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 ("ICDR Regulation") which specifies that 

preferential issue of equity shares to shareholders of an unlisted entity pursuant to a National Company 

Law Tribunal approved scheme shall conform with the pricing provisions of preferential issue specified 

under Regulation 164 of the said regulations. Further, it may be noted that Regulation 164 specifies the 

base price for issue of shares on a preferential basis. In the Proposed Amalgamation, PHCPL, an 

unlisted entity is amalgamating with TPML, a listed entity. We have therefore, given due cognizance 

to the base price derived using the formula prescribed under ICDR Regulations after considering the 

fair value ofTPML while determining the swap ratio. 

This Report is subject to the limitations mentioned herein under Page 11 of 12 
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Computation of equity share Exchange ratio as per BSMC Analysis 

PHCPL(A) TPML ffi) 

Valuation Approach 
Value per 

Weightage 
Value per 

Weightage 
Share Share 

Market Price Method - 0%* 633 50% 

Earnings based Method 4,652 100% 852 50% 

Net worth 1,300 0%** 225 0%** 

Relative Value per share (a) 4,652 100% 742 100% 

Value per Share based on ICDR 
NA 661 

Pricing (b) 
Relative Value per Share for the 
purpose of Exchange Ratio 4,652 742 
(max(a) or (b)) 

Exchange Ratio (A/B) (Rounded off) 6.27 

*as mentioned earlier, Market Price Method cannot be used to derive the value of PHCPL as the equity

shares of PHCPL are not listed

**based on the reasons specified under Cost Approach earlier, we have not considered it appropriate to

use the cost based approach for valuation of equity shares of TPML and PHCPL. Fu1ther, it may be

noted that the net worth is significantly lower than the value under other methods.

This Report is subject to the limitations mentioned herein under Page 12 of /2 
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Registered Valuer 

The Board of Directors 
The Phoenix Mills Limited 
Shrec Laxmi Woolen Mills Estate, 
Off. Dr. E. Moses Road, Mahalaxmi, 
Mumbai, 4000 I I 

The Board of Directors 

Address. 

IJa11si S. Mel11a & Co 
Melro I louse. 3rd Floor, 

Dlwhi Ta/c10, M. C. Road, 
Mumbai - 400 02() 

Dated: 6 \ugust 2019 

Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited 
Phoenix Mill Premises, 
Senapaiti Bapat Marg, Lower Parel. 
Mumbai - 400013 

Sub: Recommendation of eguitv share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of Phoenix 

Hospilalil Companv Private Limited with The Phoenix Mills Limited 

Dear Sirs, 

I refer 10 my engagement letter whereby The Phoenix Mills Limited ("TPML'') and Phoenix I lospitality 

Company Private Limited ("PIICPL") (together referred to as '"Clients". the '"Companie�··. 

"Businesses" or "You'') have jointly requested me to recommend an equity share exchange rntin 111 

connection with the proposed amalgamation of Phoenix Hospital it> Company Pri, ate Limited with The 

Phoenix Mills Limited. 

COPE AND PURPOSE OF THE VALUATION REPORT 

I understand that the management of the Companies (hereinafter referred 10 as '"the Management") arc 

contemplating the amalgamation of PHCPL with TPML under a Scheme of Amalgamation under the 

provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act. 2013. Under the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation. as consideration for the 

amalgamation of PH CPL into TPML, the shareholders of PH CPL will be issued equity shares ofTPML 

("Transaction'"). 

I have been requested by the 13oard of Directors/ Audit Committee of the Companies to submit a lellcr 

rcconrn1cnding an equity share exchange ratiu. as on the date of this report. in co1111cc1ion with the 

Transaction. This valuation report ("Valuation Report") may be placed before the .1u<li1 c;ommittcl'. as 

per SEBI Circular C'FD/DIIJ1CIIV2017,21 dated IO March 2017 and the circular no. 

CFD/DIU/CIR/2017/26 dated 23 March 2017. I understand tha1 this Valuation Rcpott �,ill be used by 

the Clients for the above mentioned purpose only and. to the extent mandatoril) required under 

applicable laws of India, may be produced before judicial. regulatory or government authorities. in 

connection with the Transaction. 

[ understand that the appointed date for the amalgamation as per the draft scheme shall be I April 2019. 
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The scope of 111) service is to conduct a relative valuation (and not absolute) of the c4uity shares of 

TPML and PHCPI . 10 arrive at the equity share exchange ratio ofTPMI. and Pl ICPI. c·Equi1y ShMe 

Exchange Ratio") for the proposed amalgamation in accordance with generally ac;c;q11cd professional 

standards. 

This Valuation Report is subject 10 the scope. assumptions. exclusions. limitations and disclaimers 

detailed hereinafter. As such the Valuation Report is to be read in totality. and not in parts. in 

conjunction with ihc relevant documents referred lo therein. 

SOURCES OF INFORMATION 

In connection with preparing this Valuation Report, I have received the following information from the 

Management: 

• Audited financial statements of the Companies for the historical period;

• Management business plan (''Management Business Plan") for TPMI., Pl !CPI.. their subsidiaries,

joint ventures and special purpose vehicles (SPVs):

• Interviews and discussions with the Management 10 augment 111) 1-.nowlcdge of the operations of

the Companie ;

• Draft Scheme of Amalgamation dated 6 August 2019 ( .. Scheme"):

• Other information, explanations and representations that were required and provided by the

Management;

• For my analysis, I have relied on published and secondary sources of data, whether or 1101 made

available by the Client. I have 1101 independently verified the accuracy or timeliness of the $time:

and

• Such other analysis, review and enquiries, as I considered necessary.

I have taken into consideration lhe current market parameters in my analysis and have made adjustments 

for additional facts made known to me till the date of my Valuation Report. Further, I have been 

informed that all material information impacting the Comranics hnvc been disclosed 10 me. The 

Management has further confirmed to me that there arc no unusual/ abnormal events in the Companies 

since the last audited accounts till the Valuation Report date materially impacting their operating 

financial performance. 

The Companies have been provided with the opportunity 10 review the draft Valuation Report 

(excluding the recommended Equity Share l::xchangc Ratio) as part of my standard practice 10 mal-.e 

sure that factual inaccuracies/ omissions arc avoided in my final report. 
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SCOPE LIMTTATIO 1S, ASS MPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIO�S A.\>U 

DI CLAIMERS 

Provision of valuation opinions and consideration of the issues described herein are areas ofmy regular 

practice. The service docs not represent accounting, assurance, accounting/ lax due diligence, consulling 

or tax related services that may otherwise be provided by me or my affi liatcs. 

This Valuation Report. its contents and the results herein ar.: spccilic to (i) the purpose of' ,aluation 

agreed as per the terms of my engagement; and (ii) the date of this Valuation Report and (iii) the la1cst 

available financial statements of the Companks and other inf'onnation provided by the Management or 

taken from public sources till 7 August 2019. 

A valuation of this nature is necessarily based on (a) prevailing stock market, linam:1al. economic ,md 

other conditions in general and industry trends in particular as in effect on and (b) the information made 

available to me as of, the date hereof. Events occurring after the date hereof may affect this Valuation 

Report and the assumptions used in preparing it, and I do not assume any obligation to update, revise 

or reaffinn this Valuation Report. 

The ultimate analysis will have to be inllucnced by the exercise of judicious discretion by the Valuer 

and judgment taking into accounts all the relevant factors. There will always be sc, era) factors. e.g. 

managcmcm capability, present and prospective competition, yield on comparable �ecurities. market 

sentiment, etc. which arc not evident from the face of the balance sheets but which will strongly 

in nucnce the worth of a share. This concept 1s also recogni1cd in judicial decisions. 

The rccommendation(s) rendered in this Valuation Report only rcprcscn1 my rctom1m:ndation(s) hascd 

upon information received by the Companil!s 1ill 7 August 2019 and other source� and the �aid 

recommendation(.) shall be considered 10 be in the nature of non-binding advice (m) recommcnda11on 

will however not be used for advising anybody to take buy or sell decision. for which specific opinion 

needs lo be taken from expert advisors). Further, the determination of Equity Share Exchange Ratio is 

not a precise science and the conclusions arrived at in many cases will, of necessity. be subjective and 

dependent on the exercise of individual judgment. There is, therefore, no indisputahle single Equity 

Share Exchange Ratio. While T have provided my recommendation of the Equity Share Exchange Ratio 

based on the information available to me and within the scope and constraints ofmy engagement, others 

may have a different opinion as to the Equity Share Exchange Ratio of the equity share. of TPM I. and 

PHCPL. You acknowledge and agree that you have the final responsihility for the determination or the 

Equity Share Exchange Ratio at which the proposed amalgamation shall take place and factors other 

than my Valuation Report will need lo be taken into account in determining the l:qu11� Share Exchange 

Ra1io: these will include your own assess1111.:nt or the Transaction and may include the input of other 

professional advisors. 

In the course of the valuation. I was provided with both written and verbal information, including 

market, technical. financial and opcra1ing data. In accordam:c with the terms of my engagement, I have 

assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, (i) the accuracy of the infonnation that was 

publicly available and formed a substantial basis for this Valuation Report and (ii) the accuracy of 

information made available to me by the Companies. I have not carried out a due diligence or audit of 
...-,,:==:::,.... 
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1he Companies for 1he purpose of this engagcmcnl, nor have I indcpcnden1ly inves1iga1cd or 01hcrw1sc 
verified the data provided. I am not legal or regulatory advisor with respect lo legal and regulatory 
mailers for the Transaction. I do 1101 express any form or assurance that the financial information or 
other information as prepared and provided by 1he Companies is accurate. J\lso. with respect 10 
explanations and information sought from the Companies, l have been given lo understand by the 
Companies that I have not omilled any relevant and material factors and that l have checked 1hc 
relevance or materiality of any specific information to 1hc prcsc111 exercise with me in case of any doubt. 
Accordingly, I do not express any opinion or offer any form of assurance regarding its accuracy and 
completeness. 

My conclusions arc based on these assumptions and information given by/ on behalf of 1he Companies. 
The Management have indicated to me that they have understood that any omissions. inaccuracies or 
misstatements may malcrially affect my valuation analysis/ results. /\ccordingl)' . I assume no 
responsibility for any errors in the information furnish,xi by 1he Companies and th impact on the 
Valuation Report. /\!so, I assume no responsibility for 1echn1cal information (if Ull)) lumished b) 1hc 
Companies. However, nothing has come 10 my attention 10 indic.:a1c that 1hc information provided" as 
materially mis-stated/ incorrect or would not afford reasonable grounds upon \\ hich 10 base the 
Valuation Rcporl. I do 1101 imply and it should no\ be construed that I have verified any of the 
information provided 10 me, or that my inquiries could have verified any matter, which a more cxtensi,e 
examination might disclose. 

In no event shall I be liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses arising in any way from fraudulent acts. 
misrepresentations or willful default on part of the Companies, their directors, employees or agents. In no 
circumstances shall the liability of a Valuer, its partners, its directors or employees, relating to the services 
provided in connection with the engagemc111 set out in this Valuation Report shall exceed the amount paid 
to such Valuer in respect of the fees charged by it for these services. 

The Valuation Report assumes that the specified Companies comply fully \\ ilh relevant la\\ s and 
regulations applic:iblc in all its areas of operations unlcs� othern i�c stated. and that the specificd 
Companies will be managed in a compc1cn1 and responsible manner. Fun her. c,,ccpt as spcci f"ically 
Slated 10 the contrary, this Valuation Report has given no consideration io mailers of a legal nature. 
including issues of legal Ii tie and compliance with local la\, s. and litigation anJ other eon1ingcn1 
liabilities that arc not recorded in period balance sheet of the specified Companies My conclusion of 
value assumes 1ha1 the assets and liabilities of the specified Companies. rcncctcd in their respccti\'c 
latest balance sheets remain intact as of the Valuation Report date. 

The financial forecasts used in the preparation of the Report reflects judgment of management of 
Companies, based on present circumstances prevailing around the Valuation Date, as 10 the most likely 
set of conditions and the course of action it is most likely 10 take. 11 is usually the case that some events 
and circumstances do not occur as expected or arc not anticipated. Therefore. actual results during the 
forecast period will almost always may differ from the forecasts and as such differences may be 
material. 

e??J� 
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This Valuation Report docs not address the relative merits of the Transaction as compared with any 

other alternative business transaction, or other alternatives. or whether or not such alternatives could be 

achieved or arc available. 

No investigation or 1hc Companies· claim to title of assets has been made for the purpose or this 

Valuation Report and 1hc Companies' claim to such rights has bccn assumed 10 be valid. No 

consideration has been given to liens or encumbrances against the a�scts. beyond the loans disclosed in 

the accounts. Therefore, no responsibility is assumed for mailers of a legal nature. The fee for 1he 

Engagement is not contingent upon the results of the Valuation Report. 

[ owe responsibility to the Audit Commit1ee and the Board of Directors of TPML and PHCPL which 

have retained me, and nobody else. I will nol be liable for any losses, claims, damages or liabilities 

arising ou1 of the actions taken, omissions of the other. I do not accept any liability to any third party in 

relation to the issue of this Valuation Report. This Valuation Report is not a subs1itu1c for 1hc third 

party's own due diligence/ appraisal/ enquiries/ independent advice that the third party should undertake 

for his purpose. II is understood that this analysis docs not represent a fairness opinion. 

This Valuation Report is subject to the laws or India. 

1 either the Valuation Report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any rcghtration �1a1c1m:n1. 

prospectus, offering memorandum. annual report. loan agreement or other agreement. Further. it cannot 

be used for purpose other than in connection with the Trnnsaclion. without my prior consent. In addition. 

this Valuation Report docs not in any manner address the prices at which equity �hares will trade 

following consummation of the Transaction and I express no opinion or rccomrrn:ndation as 10 ho" the 

shareholders of either Company should vote al any shareholders' meeting(s) 10 be held in connection 

with the Transaction. 
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BACKGROU D OF THE COMPANIES 

The Phoenix Mills Limited (TPML) 

r 'af1"11io11 l?eporr 

TPML, a company incorporated in 1905, is based in Mumbai, India. TPML is a leading retail mall 
developer and operator in India and is the pioneer of retail-led, mixed-use developments in India \\ ith 

completed development of over 17.5 million square feet spread across retail, hospitality. commercial, 
and residential asset classes. The company has an operational retail portfolio or approximately 6.0 
million square feet spread across 8 operational malls in 6 gateway cities of India. The company i. further 
developing 5 malls with over 4. 9 million square feet of retail space in 5 gateway cities of India. Besides 

retail, the company plans to expand its commercial office port folio from current gro�s lcasable area 
(Gl.A) of 1.3 million square feet to 4 5 million square feet. 

The issued and subscribed equity share capital of TPM I. as at 7 August 2019 i� 1 NH 306.69 million 
consisting of 153,343,690 equity shares of face value of lNR 2 each. 1'11c shareholding pattern or rPML 
as on Valuation Report date is as follows: 

---
Category o of Shares % shareholding 

Promoter & Promoter Group 96,215,882 62.75 

Public 57.127,808 37.25 

Total 

Source: Management 

I 53.,343,690 1 oo.ooJ 

Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited (PHCPL) 

PHCPL is a holding company having investment in four SPY. engaged in the businc� of real estate 
development. PHCPL has ownership interests in Graccworks Realty and Leisure .. \lliant.:c Span:s. 
Palladium Constructions and Starboard Hotcb. In together. the liiur SPV, ha\ c C,1./\ or approximat..:ly 
one million square feet of leasablc co111111crcial and retail development. -3.19 million square feet of 
saleable area under residential development and 193 key hole!. 

The issued and subscribed equity share capital of PHCPl as at 7 August 2019 is l�R 23.21 million 
consisting of 2.321 ,400 equity shares of face value of I R IO each. The shareholding pattern of PHCPL 
as on Valuation Report dale is as follows: 

Category No of Shares 
-

% shareholding 

The Phoenix Mills Limited 1,321,400 56.92 

Promoters and Promoter Group 1,000,000 43.08 

Total 2,321,400 
__ 1(�00 J

-- -

Source: Management 
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APPROACH & METIIODOLOGY - 8/\SIS OF TIUSSACI 10\' 

The Transaction contcmplatcs amalgamation of Pl !CPL with TPMI.. Arriving al 1hc Equily Share 

Exchange Ratio for the proposed amalgamalion of lhc above mentioned companies would require 

determining the value of PH CPL in lerms of 1hc value of the cquily shares of TPM L. These values arc 

to be determined independently but on a relative basis, and without considering the proposed 

Transaction. 

There arc several commonly used and accepted methods for determining the value of 1hc equity shares 

of a company, which have been considered in the present case by Valuers indcpcndcnlly, to the extent 

rclevanl and applicable, including: 

I. Market Price method

2. Income Approach/ Earnings based Method

3. ct Asset Value method ( AV)

It should be understood that the valuation or any company or its a�scts is inherently imprecise and is 

subject to certain uncertainties and contingencies. all of" hich arc difficult to predict and arc beyond 

my control. In pcrfonning my analysis, I made numerous assumplions wi1h respect lo industry 

performance and general business and economic conditions, many of which arc beyond the conlrol of 

the Companies. In addition. lhis valuation will nuc1ua1c with changes in prevailing market conditions, 

the conditions and prospects, financial and otherwise, of the Companies, and other factors which 

generally influence the valuation of companies and their assets. 

The valuation methodologies used by me to arrive at the value attributable lo the equity harcholders of 

TPML and PHCPL arc discussed in Anncxurc I. 

7 
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BASIS OF EQUITY SHARE EXCHANGE RATIO 

The basis of amalgamation of PHCPL into TPML would have to be determined al1cr taking 11110 
consideration all the factors and methodologies mentioned hercinabovc. Though different values have 
been arrived at under each of the above methodologies. for the purposes of recommending an Equity 
Share Exchange Ratio of equity shares. it is necessary to arri,,e at a �inglc value for the equity shares 

ofTPML and PIICPL. It is however important to note that in doing so I am not a11cmp1ing to arri, c at 
the absolute equity values of the Companies but at their relative Htlucs to facilitate the determination 
of a fair Equity Share Exchange Ratio. For this purpose. it is nci.:cssary to give appropriate weights 10 

the values arrived at under each methodology. 

The Equity Share Exchange Ratio has been arrived at on the basis or a relative equity valuation of the 
Companies based on the various approaches/ methods explained herein earlier and various qualitative 

factors relevant to each company and the business dynamics and growth potentials of the businesses of 
the Businesses, having regard to information base, key underlying assumptions and limitations. 

In view of the above, and on consideration of the relevant factors and circumstances as discussed and 

outlined hereinabovc, I recommend the Equity Share Exchange Ratio of equity shares for amalgamation 

of Pl ICPL into TPM L at 627 (six hundred twenty seven) equity shares of TPM L of INR 2 each fully 

paid up for every 100 (hundred) equity shares of PH CPL of!NR IO each fully paid up. 

My Valuation Report and Equity Share Exchange Ratio is based on the current cquuy share capital 

structure ofTPML and PI-ICPL as mentioned earlier in this Report t\ny vana11011 111 the equity cap11al 

ofTPMI. and PHCPL may have material impact on the share exchc1ngc ratio. 

Respectfully submitted. 

Drushti R. Desai 

Registered Valuer 

Registration Number: IBBT/RV/06/2019/10666 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 7 August 2019 
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Anncxurc I 

APPROACII & .METHODOLOGY - BASIS OF TRA�SACTIO� 

It is universally recognized that valuation is not an exact science and that estimating values necessarily 
involves selecting a method or approach that is suitable for the purpose. 

For the purpose of arriving at valuation of the Valuation Subjects I have considered the valuation base 
as 'Fair Value'. My valuation, and this report, is based on the premise of' going concern value'. Any 
change in the valuation base, or the premise could have significant impact on my valuation exercise. 
and therefore, this Report. 

II may be noted that the Institute of Chartered Accouniants of India (!CAI) on June I 0.2018 has is:-ui:d 
the !CAI Valuation Standards ("IVS") cffccti,e for all the ,aluation reports issued on or after Jul1 I

. 
2018. The IVS shall be mandatory !'or the ,aluation t.lonc under the Compan11.:s 1\l't. 2013, and 
rccommcndaLOry for valuation carried out under other statutes/ requirements. I have given due 
cognizance to the same in carrying out the , aluation exercise. 

I VS 30 I on Business Valuations deals with valuation of a business or business o,\ ncrship interest ( 1.c. 
it includes valuation of equity shares). 

rvs 301 specifics that generally, the following three approaches for valuation of business/business 
ownership interest are used: 
I . Market approach 

2. Income approach

3. Cost approach

Each of the above approaches arc discussed in the following paragraphs. 

Market Price Method: 

This method involves determining the market r,ricc or an entity based on its traded prit:c on the stock 
exchange over a reasonable period of time I have determined the market price of' ,hares of TPJ\.1 I.­
based on weighted average price on NSE o, er a period of s1-.: month, prior to the Val11,11wn Date. Equ1t) 
Shares of PH CPL arc not listed on any stock exchange and therefore. the Market Prn.:c Method i� not 
used to determine the value of the equity shares of Pl ICPI.. 

Earnings based Method: 

Under the Earnings Approach the fair value is computed based on the earnings. 

I have valued TPML and PIICPL based on Sum of the Parts (SOTP) basis wherein I have capital i1ed 

earnings of operational portfolios (including projects housed under Investec Companies) with 

reasonable level of occupancies. For valuing companies/ projects under construction with lower level 

of occupancies or new projects, I have used the Discounted Cash Flow Method ("'DCF .. ) of Valuation. 

Under the DCF Method, the future cash nows arc appropriately discot1ntcd to arrive at a value of the 
business on a going concern basis. This value would, primarily, be based on the present value of SLH.:h 

future cash nows generated. 

The value per share ofTPML and Pl ICPL is based on the n1luc or proposionatc stake in the opcra11onal 
portfolios under them. 
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Cost approach: 

Cost /\pproach is a valuation approach that reflects the amount that would be required currently to 

replace the service capacity of an asset (often referred to as current replacement co�t ). 

fVS 301 on Business Valuations and IVS 103 on Valuation /\pproachcs and Methods specif) tha1 

common methodologies for the Cost Approach are the Replacement Cost Method and the Rcproducuon 

Cost Method. These methods involve determining the value of the asset based on the cost that would 

have to be incurred to rccrcatc/replicatc the asset with substantially the same utility as that of the asset 

under valuation. 

Value of residential projects would be the present value of the likely realisation. to assume value of 

such project based on the full market value without considering the lime factor would 1101 be reflective 

of the true value of such project. The value of commercial property held for Jelling and retail malls can 

be best valued only on the basis of rental streams. To assume va lue based on cost approach for such 

properly would be inconsistent with the intent oflhc companies. and would also 1101 be 111 line with the 

basis of valuation viz. going concern. 

Fair Valuation: 

I have arrived at the fair value of equity shares ofTPMI. b) applying equal ,,eights to the ,aim:: deri,cd 
under the Earnings based Method and the Market Price Method. 

The fair value of the equity shares of PH CPL is derived based on the Earnings. 

Attention may also be drawn to Regulation 158 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (ls,-uc 

of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 ("ICDR Regulation") which specifies that 

preferential issue of equity shares to shareholders of an unlisted entity pursuant to a Nat ion al Company 

Law Tribunal approved scheme shall conform with the pricing provisions of preferential issue specified 

under Regulation 164 of the said regulations. Further, it may be noted that Regulation 164 specifics the 

base price for issue of shares on a preferential basis. In the Proposed /\malgama1ion, PHCPL. an 

unlisted entity is amalgamating with TPML.. a listed entity. I have therefore, given due cognizance 10 

the base price derived using the formula prescribed under ICDR Regulations after considering the fair 

value ofTPML while determining the SMlf) ratio. 

10 
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Date: August 7, 2019 

The Board of Directors 

The Phoenix Mills Limited 
462, Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Lower Parel, Mumbai, 
Maharashtra, 400013 

Dear Sir, 

Investment Banking 

Sub: Proposed amalgamation of Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited ("PHCPL") into 

The Phoenix Mills Limited ("PML") 

PML has requested us to issue a fairness opinion ("Opinipn") from a financial point of view of the Share 
Exchange Ratio (as defined below) in relation to the Proposed Transaction. 

Proposed Transaction: PML and PHCPL are proposing to enter a scheme of amalgamation ('Scheme 
of Amalgamation'), which envisages the amalgamation of PHCPL into PML and dissolution of PHCPL. 

Our scope is restricted to providing an Opinion on the Share Exchange Ratio for the amalgamation of 
PHCPL into PML. 

In arriving at our Opinion, we have reviewed historical financials and future financial and limited business 
projections and listed stock price data. We have also reviewed certain publicly available information, and 
have taken into account such other matters as we deemed necessary including our assessment of 
general economic, market and monetary conditions. We have also reviewed the report jointly issued to 
the management of PML and PHCPL by BSR & Associates LLP and Bansi S. Mehta & Co. dated August 
7, 2019 for the share exchange ratio recommended as 627 (Six Hundred and Twenty Seven only) fully 
paid up equity shares of PML of face value INR 2 each in exchange of every 100 (One Hundred only) 
fully paid up equity shares of PHCPL of face value INR 10 each (the "Share Exchange Ratio"). The 
shareholding of PML in PHCPL as on the record date will get cancelled in accordance with the Scheme 
of Amalgamation. 

We have also assumed that the final Scheme of Amalgamation will be substantially the same as the 
scheme discussed with and reviewed by us. 

We have had discussions with members of the management of PHCPL and PML on the past and current 
business operations of the concerned businesses, their future prospects and operations, and have 
received management representation letter from PML and PHCPL dated August 7, 2019 ("Management 
Representation Letters"). 

� 

Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited 
CIN U67120MH 1995PLC 134050 

Registered Office: 

27BKC 
C • 27, "G" Block 

Bandra Kurla Complex 

Bandra (East), Mumbai • 400 051, lnd,a. 

T +91 22 43360000 

F+91 22 67132445 
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Further, we have had discussions with BSR & Associates LLP and Bansi S. Mehta & Co., the valuation 
advisors, on such matters which we believed were necessary or appropriate for the purpose of issuing 
this Opinion. 

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanation provided to us, we note that 
the Proposed Transaction entails amalgamation of PHCPL into PML and dissolution of PHCPL. 

We assume no responsibility for the legal, tax, accounting or structuring matters including, but not limited 
to, legal or title concerns. Title to all subject busi·ness assets is assumed good and marketable and we 
would urge PML and PHCPL to carry out an independent assessment of the same prior to entering into 
any transaction, after giving due weightage to the results of such assessment. We have further assumed 
that the Proposed Transaction would be carried out in compliance with applicable laws, rules and 
regulations. 

In giving our Opinion, we have assumed and relied upon, without independent verification, the accuracy 
and completeness of all information supplied or otherwise made available to us either in verbal or written 
form, discussed with or reviewed by or for us, or publicly available. We have been given to understand 
that all information required by us that was relevant for the purpose of our exercise was disclosed to us. 
We have not conducted any evaluation or appraisal of any assets or liabilities of PML or PHCPL nor have 
we evaluated the solvency or fair value of PML or PHCPL, under any laws relating to bankruptcy, 
insolvency or similar matters. In addition, we have not assumed any obligation to conduct any physical 
inspection of the properties or facilities of PML or PHCPL. 

Our Opinion does not factor overall economic environment risk, material adverse change and other risks 
and is purely based on the information and representations provided to us. 

We express no view as to, and our Opinion does not address, the underlying business decision of PML 
and PHCPL to effect the Proposed Transaction or the merits of the Proposed Transaction. Our Opinion 
does not constitute a recommendation to any shareholder or creditor of PML and PHCPL as to how such 
shareholder or creditor should vote on the Proposed Transaction or any matter related thereto. We are 
not expressing any opinion herein as to the prices at which the shares of PML will trade following the 
announcement or consummation of the proposed transaction or as to the prices at which the shares of 
PML may be transacted. 

Our Opinion is necessarily based on financial, economic, market and other conditions as in effect on the 
date of this issuing the Opinion, and the information made available to us as of, the date hereof, including 
the capital structure of PHCPL and PML. 

We will receive a fee for our services in connection with the delivery of this Opinion from PML. In 
addition, PML has agreed to indemnify us in relation to our engagement in providing the Opinion. 

We and our affiliates in the past five years have provided, and currently provide, services to PML and 
their affiliates unrelated to the Proposed Transaction for which services we and such affiliates have 
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received and expect to receive compensation, including, without limitation as creditors and as financial 

advisors for the purchase/sale of assets/businesses/securities by/to PML (as the case may be). 

In the ordinary course of business, we and our affiliates may actively trade or hold securities of 

companies that may be the subject matter of this transaction for our own account or for the account of 

our customers and, accordingly, may at any time hold long or short position in such securities and may 

vote at any general meeting as they' deem fit. In addition, we and our affiliates maintain relationships with 

PML and their respective affiliates. 

This Opinion is provided solely for the benefit of the Board of Directors of PML, and shall not confer rights 

or remedies upon, any shareholder of PML or PHCPL, or any other person other than the members of 

the Board of Directors of PML, or be used for any other purpose. This Opinion may not be used or relied 

upon by nor is it issued for the benefit of any third party for any purpose whatsoever or disclosed, 

referred to or communicated by you (in whole or in part) except with our prior written consent in each 

instance. Provided however, this opinion may only be disclosed to PHCPL or as may be required under 

any applicable law in India and may be kept open for inspection by shareholders of PML, but we take no 

responsibility or liability for or arising out of any such disclosure. We specifically disclaim any 

responsibility to any third party to whom this Letter may be shown or who may acquire a copy of this 

Letter. 

The laws of India govern all matters arising out of or relating to this Opinion (including, without limitation, 

its interpretation, construction, performance, and enforcement). 

With respect to any suit, action or any other proceedings relating to this Opinion the courts of competent 

jurisdiction in India shall have exclusive jurisdiction. 

On th.e basis of and subject to the foregoing, it is our view that, as of the date hereof, the proposed Share 

Exchange Ratio is Fair from a financial point of view. 

Yours faithfully, 

For, 
Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited 

<' 

�u orised Signatory: 

Designation: J°OINT MANF\Gi1N·� Die.EC.TOR 
o·ate: AV<nv.5r 7, 201'.3
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DCS/AMAL/SV/R37/1610/2019-20 November 4,�9RIENCE THE NEW 

The Company Secretary, 

The Phoenix Mills Limited 
462, Senapati Bapat Marg, 

Lower Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400013 

Sir, 

Sub: Observation letter regarding the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation of Phoenix Hospitality 
Company Private Limited with The Phoenix Mills Limited and their respective shareholders and 
creditors. 

We are in receipt of Draft Scheme of Amalgamation of Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited 
with The Phoenix Mills Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors filed as required under 
SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017; SEBI vide its letter dated November 
04, 2019 has inter alia given the following comment(s) on the draft scheme of amalgamation and 
arrangement: 

"Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company, 
after filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchange, and from the date of receipt of this 
letter is displayed on the websites of the listed company and the stock exchanges." 

"Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular." 

"Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be 
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCL T) 
and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT." 

"It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCL T after 
processing and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by 
SEBl/stock exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for 
representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI 
again for its comments I observations I representations." 

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised: 

To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to 
the Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website. 
To ensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various 
documents are disseminated on their (company) website. 
To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars. 

In light of the above; we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to 
those matters having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the 
provisions of Listing Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with Hon'ble NCL T. 

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the 
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted 
companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated 
March 10, 2017. 

Kindly note that as required under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be six months from the 
date of this Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCL T. 

The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its 'No adverse observation' at any stage 
information submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect/ misleading / fa 

S&Po>3SE 
ENS 

BSE Limited (Formerly Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.) 
Registered Office : Floor 25, P J Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 0 
T: +9 I 22 2272 I 234/33 ! E: corp.comm@bseindia.com I 
Corporate Identity Number: L67120MH2005P�q 

BSE - CONFIDEN 
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any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement, 
Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities. 

Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any 
other requirements. 

Further, it may be noted that with reference to Section 230 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read 
with Rule 8 of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 (Company 
Rules) and Section 66 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an 
Order passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, a Notice of the proposed scheme of 
compromise or arrangement filed under sections 230-232 or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 
as the case may be is required to be served upon the Exchange seeking representations or 
objections if any. 

In this regard, with a view to have a better transparency in processing the aforesaid notices served 
upon the Exchange, the Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such 
Notice along with the relevant documents of the proposed schemes through the BSE Listing 
Centre. 

Any service of notice under Section 230 (5) or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 seeking 
Exchange's representations or objections if any, would be accepted and processed through the 
Listing Centre only and no physical filings would be accepted. You may please refer to circular 
dated February 26, 2019 issued to the company. 

Yours faithfully, 

&Pe->3SE 
---SENSEX 
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Ref: NSE/LIST/21775_II  November 04, 2019 

The Company Secretary 
The Phoenix Mills Limited 
462, Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Lower Parel, 
Mumbai - 400013 

Kind Attn.: Mr. Gajendra Mewara 

Dear Sir, 

Sub:  Observation Letter for Draft Scheme of Amalgamation of Phoenix Hospitality Company 
Private Limited (“Transferor Company”) with the Phoenix Mills Limited (“Transferee Company”) 
and their respective shareholders 

We are in receipt of the Draft Scheme of Amalgamation of Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited 
(“Transferor Company”) with the Phoenix Mills Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their respective 
shareholders vide application dated August 30, 2019. 

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/21775 submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI Circular 
No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (‘Circular’), SEBI vide letter dated November 04, 2019, 
has given following comments:  

a. The Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company, after filing
the Scheme with the Stock Exchange and from the date of the receipt of this letter is displayed on the
website of the listed company.

b. The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.

c. The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated in the
petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) and the company is obliged to
bring the observations to the notice of NCLT.

d. It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/observations/ representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and 
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence, the company 
is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 
to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its comments/observations/ representations. 

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the 
shareholders, while seeking approval of the Scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted companies 
involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated March 10, 2017. 

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking given 
in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we conveyed our “No-objection” in terms 

90



of Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the Company to file the draft scheme 
with NCLT. 

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information submitted to 
the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any contravention of Rules, Bye-
laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines / Regulations issued by statutory 
authorities. 

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from November 04, 2019, within which the 
scheme shall be submitted to NCLT. 

Yours faithfully, 
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

Rajendra Bhosale 
Manager 

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following URL 
http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm 
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Date: October 11, 2019 

To 
BSE Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 
Dalal Street, Fort, 
Mumbai- 400 001 

Security code; 503100 

Dear Sir(s), 

.. t_. THE PHOENIX 
Y" MILLS LIMITED 
Corp. Office : Shree Laxmi Woolen Mills Estate, 2nd Floor, 
R.R. Hosiery, Off Or. E. Moses Rd. Mahalaxmi, Mumbai - 400 011 
Tel : (022) 3001 6600 Fax : (022) 3001 6601 

CIN No.: L 17100MH1905PLC000200 

Ref: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation between 
Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited and The Phoenix Mills Limited ('Scheme') 

Sub: Submission of Complaints Report ("Complaints Report") as per Annexure III of SEBI 
Circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017 /21 dated March 10, 2017 ("SEBI Circular") 

This is with reference to application made by the Company under Regulation 37 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulation, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of amalgamation of Phoenix Hospitality Company 
Private Limited with The Phoenix Mills Limited filed on August 30, 2019 and hosted on your 
website on September 17, 2019. 

Pursuant to SEBI Circular, the Company is required to submit a Compliant Report within 7 
days of expiry of 21 days from the date of hosting of Draft Scheme and related documents on 
the website of the Stock Exchanges. Accordingly, please find enclosed herewith Complaints 
Report indicating NIL complaints received on the Scheme as Annexure I. 

This Complaints Report is also being uploaded on the Company's website at 
http://www.thephoenixmills.com as required under the SEBI Circular. 

Yours Faithfully, 
For The Phoenix Mills Limited 

�!>-\-�. 
Gajendra Mewara 
Company Secretary 

Regd. Office: The Phoenix Mills Ltd., 462 Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013 .. • T�I: {022) 2496 4307 / 8 / 9 •Fax: {022) 2493 8388
E-mail : info@thephoenlxmills.com • www.thephoenixmllls.com92
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Annexure I 

.... � THE PHOENIX 
'9" MILLS LIMITED

Corp. Office : Shree Laxmi Woolen Mills Estate, 2nd Floor, 
R.R. Hosiery, Off Dr. E. Moses Rd. Mahalaxmi, Mumbai - 400 011 

Tel : (022) 3001 6600 Fax : (022) 3001 6601 

CIN No.: L 17100MH1905PLC000200 

Complaints Report: The Phoenix Mills Limited 

(Period of Complaints Report: September 17, 2019 to October 8, 2019) 

PartA 

Sr. Particulars 
No. 

1. Number of complaints received directly

2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange/SEBI

3. Total Number of complaints/comments received (1 +2) 

4. Number of complaints resolved 

5. Number of complaints pending 

PartB 

Sr. Name of complainant Date of complaint 

Number 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

Status 
No. (Resolved/Pendine-l 

1. Not Applicable 

Yours Faithfully, 
For The Phoenix Mills Limited 

���-
Gajendra Mewara 
Company Secretary 

Date: October 11, 2019 
Place : Mumbai 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Regd. Office: The Phoenix Mills Ltd., 462 Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013. •Tel: (022) 2496 4307 / 8 / 9 •Fax: (022) 2493 8388 
E-mail : info@thephoenixmills.com • www.thephoenixmills.com93



Date: October 11, 2019 

To 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Exchange Plaza, 
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra East, 
Mumbai- 400051 

Symbol: PH_OENIXLTD 

Dear Sir(s), 

� t_.1HE PHOENIX 
,.,- MILLS LIMITED 
Corp. Office : Shree Laxmi Woolen Mills Estate; 2nd Floor, 

R.R. Hosiery, Off Dr. E. Moses Rd. Mahalaxmi, Mumbai - 400 011 

Tel : (022) 3001 6600 Fax: (022) 3001 6601 

CIN No.: L17100MH1905PLC000200 

Ref: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation between 
Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited and The Phoenix Mills Limited ('Scheme') 

Sub: Submission of Complaints Report ("Complaints Report") as per Annexure III of SEBI 
Circular no. CFD /DIL3 /CIR/2017 /21 dated March 10, 2017 ("SEBI Circular") 

This is with reference to application made by the Company under Regulation 37 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulation, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of amalgamation of Phoenix Hospitality Company 
Private Limited with The Phoenix Mills Limited filed on August 30, 2019 and hosted on your 
website on September 19, 2019. 

Pursuant to SEBI Circular, the Company is required to submit a Compliant Report within 7 
days of expiry of 21 days from the date of hosting of Draft Scheme and related documents on 
the website of the Stock Exchanges. Accordingly, please find enclosed herewith Complaints 
Report indicating NIL complaints received on the Scheme as Annexure I. 

This Complaints Report is also being uploaded on the Company's website at 
http://www.thephoenixmills.com as required under the SEBI Circular. 

Yours Faithfully, 
For The Phoenix Mills Limited 

1"" .. J�. 
Gajendra Mewara 
Company Secretary 

Regd. Office: The Phoenix Mills Ltd., 462 Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Pare!, Mumbai 400 013. •Tel: (022) 2496 4307 / 8 / 9 •Fax: (022) 2493 8388 
E-mail : info@thephoenixmills.com • www.thephoenixmills.com94



Annexure I

'11.t� THE PHOENIX 
,.,,, MILLS LIMITED 
Corp. Office : Shree Laxmi Woolen Mills Estate, 2nd Floor, 

R.R. Hosiery, Off Dr. E. Moses Rd. Mahalaxmi, Mumbai - 400 011 

Tel : (022) 3001 6600 Fax : (022) 3001 6601 

CIN No.: L 17100MH1905PLC000200 

Complaints Report: The Phoenix Mills Limited

(Period of Complaints Report: September 19, 2019 to October 10, 2019)

PartA

Sr. Particulars
No.
1. Number of complaints received directly 

2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange/SEBI 

3. Total Number of complaints/comments received (1 +2) 

4. Number of complaints resolved 

s. Number of complaints pending 

PartB

Sr. Name of complainant Date of complaint

Number

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Status 
No. (Resolved/Pendinel

1. Not Applicable 

Yours Faithfully,
For The Phoenix Mills Limited

e��k 
Gaje�d\-� Mewara 
Company Secretary

Date: October 11, 2019 
Place : Mumbai 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

Regd. Office: The Phoenix Mills Ltd., 462 Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013. •Tel: (022) 2496 4307 / 8 / 9 •Fax: (022) 2493 8388 
E-mail : info@thephoenixmills.com • www.thephoenixmills.com95



REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED AS PER 
THE PROVISION OF SECTION 232(2)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 EXPLAINING THE 
EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON EACH CLASS OF SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL, PROMOTER AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS 

Background 

The Board of Directors (‘Board’) of The Phoenix Mills Limited (“Company or PML”) at their 
meeting held on August 7, 2019, had approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Phoenix 
Hospitality Company Private Limited, a subsidiary of the Company (‘PHCPL’) with the 
Company (“Scheme”) under the provisions of sections 230 to 232 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

In terms of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013, a report from the Board of the 
Company explaining the effect of the compromise on each class of shareholders, key 
managerial personnel, promoters, and non- promoter shareholders laying out in particular 
the share exchange ratio, specifying any special valuation difficulties has to be appended 
with the notice of the meeting of equity shareholders. This report of the Board is made in 
order to comply with the requirements of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013. 

For the purpose of making this report, the Board had, inter-alia, considered and taken on 
record the following documents: 

(i) Draft Scheme approved by the Board;
(ii) The Joint Valuation Report on Recommendation of Share Exchange Ratio issued

by  Independent Valuers namely M/s. Bansi S. Mehta & Co., Chartered
Accountants and M/s. BSR & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants., dated
August 7, 2019;

(iii) Valuation Report dated August 6, 2019 by of Ms. Drushti R. Desai, the
Registered Valuer on the Share Exchange Ratio;

(iv) Fairness Opinion issued by Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited, Merchant
Banker dated August 7, 2019;

(v) The certificate issued by DTS & Associates, the Statutory Auditors of the
Company dated August 7, 2019, as required under Clause 5 of the Circular, to the
effect that the accounting treatment contained in the Draft Scheme is in
compliance with the Accounting Standards specified by the Central Government
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules framed
thereunder or the Accounting Standards issued by ICAI, as applicable;

(vi) Report of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors dated 7th August, 2019

REPORT 

A. Rationale of the Scheme

(1) The proposed Amalgamation of PHCPL with PML will lead to a simplified
corporate structure since it will result in the combined businesses of PHCPL and
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Company being carried on more economically, efficiently and beneficially and 
the arrangement would be in the interest of both the companies and their 
Shareholders as the businesses carried on by both the companies are under 
common management/shareholders.  

(2) The proposed Amalgamation would strengthen the management of the
Company effectively because of avoidance and elimination of unnecessary
duplication of time, costs and expenses, incurred for administration and
operations of both the companies separately and would result in better
utlilization of resources and assets and synergies of operations with integration
of management and other expertise.

(3) The Amalgamation will also result in significant reduction in the multiplicity of
legal and regulatory compliances required at present to be carried out by PHCPL;

The Salient features of the proposed Scheme are as under: 

1. Appointed Date for the Scheme would be 1st April, 2019.

2. Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon the amalgamation of PHCPL with the
Company, the shares held by the Company in PHCPL as on the record date shall
stand cancelled. Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, Company will allot 627 (Six
Hundred and Twenty-Seven) fully paid-up equity shares of the Company of face
value of INR 2 each for every 100 (One Hundred) fully paid-up equity shares of face
value of INR 10 each held by other shareholder, i.e. Ruia International Holding
Company Private Limited (‘RIHCPL’) in PHCPL.

3. The transfer and vesting of the undertakings and business of PHCPL in Company will
be effective from Appointed Date.

Effect of the Scheme of Amalgamation on equity shareholders (promoter and non-
promoter shareholders) and Key Managerial Personnel of PML: 

PHCPL is a subsidiary company of the PML. Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon 
the amalgamation of PHCPL with the Company, the shares held by the PML in PHCPL as on 
the record date shall stand cancelled. In consideration for the amalgamation of PHCPL with 
PML, PML will allot 627 (Six Hundred and Twenty-Seven) fully paid-up equity shares of the 
Company of face value of INR 2 each for every 100 (One Hundred) fully paid-up equity 
shares of face value of INR 10 each held by other shareholder, i.e. Ruia International 
Holding Company Private Limited (‘RIHCPL’) in PHCPL based on the share exchange ratio as 
determined in the valuation report and fairness opinion. 

There will be no change in the Director(s)/ KMP(s) of PML pursuant to Scheme. Except Mr. 
Atul Ruia and his relatives, none of the other Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel 
(‘KMPs’) of the Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder) have any interest in the Scheme except to the 
extent of the equity shares held by them in the Company. 
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Difficulties in Valuation, if any: 

No Special Valuation difficulties were reported. 

Conclusion 

While deliberating the Scheme, the Board has considered its impact on each of the 
shareholders, promoters, non-promoter shareholders, key managerial personnel, creditors 
and employees of the Company and there shall be no prejudice caused to them in in any 
manner by the scheme. 

By order of the Board of Directors  
The Phoenix Mills Limited 

Name : Shishir Shrivastava  
Designation : Managing Director 
DIN : 01266095 

Date : November 26, 2020 
Place : Mumbai 
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REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF PHOENIX HOSPITALITY COMPANY 
PRIVATE LIMITED AS PER THE PROVISION OF SECTION 232(2)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON EACH CLASS OF SHAREHOLDERS, KEY 
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTER AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS 

Background 

The Board of Directors of Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited (“Company or 
PHCPL”) at their meeting held on August 7, 2019, had approved the Scheme of 
Amalgamation of  PHCPL with The Phoenix Mills Limited (“PML”), the holding company 
(“Scheme”) under the provisions of sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

PHCPL has filed the application with National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’), Mumbai 
Bench. In the application filed before the NCLT, the Company has requested NCLT to 
dispense with the requirement of the meeting of its shareholders, as the shareholders of 
the Company have approved the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation in form of the written 
consent affidavits.  

In terms of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013, a report from the Board of the 
Company explaining the effect of the compromise on each class of shareholders, key 
managerial personnel, promoters, and non- promoter shareholders laying out in particular 
the share exchange ratio, specifying any special valuation difficulties has to be appended 
with the notice of the meeting of equity shareholders of PML proposed to be convened 
pursuant to the directions of the NCLT. This report of the Board is made in order to comply 
with the requirements of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013. 

For the purpose of making this report, the Board had, inter-alia, considered and taken on 
record the following documents: 

(i) Draft Scheme approved by the Board;
(ii) The Joint Valuation Report on recommendation of Share Exchange Ratio issued

by  Independent Valuers namely M/s. Bansi S. Mehta & Co., Chartered
Accountants and M/s. BSR & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants., dated
August 7, 2019;

(iii) Valuation Report dated August 6, 2019 by of Ms. Drushti R. Desai, the Registered
Valuer on the Share Exchange Ratio;

(iv) Fairness Opinion issued by Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited, Merchant
Banker dated August 7, 2019;

REPORT 

A. Rationale of the Scheme

(1) The proposed Amalgamation of PHCPL with PML will lead to a simplified
corporate structure since it will result in the combined businesses of PHCPL and
Company being carried on more economically, efficiently and beneficially and
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the arrangement would be in the interest of both the companies and their 
Shareholders as the businesses carried on by both the companies are under 
common management/shareholders.  

(2) The proposed Amalgamation would strengthen the management of the
Company effectively because of avoidance and elimination of unnecessary
duplication of time, costs and expenses, incurred for administration and
operations of both the companies separately and would result in better
utlilization of resources and assets and synergies of operations with integration
of management and other expertise.

(3) The Amalgamation will also result in significant reduction in the multiplicity of
legal and regulatory compliances required at present to be carried out by PHCPL;

The Salient features of the proposed Scheme are as under: 

1. Appointed Date for the Scheme would be 1st April, 2019.

2. Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon the amalgamation of PHCPL with
PML, the shares held by PML in PHCPL shall stand cancelled. Pursuant to the terms
of the Scheme, PML will allot 627 (Six Hundred and Twenty-Seven) fully paid-up
equity shares of PML of face value of INR 2 each for every 100 (One Hundred) fully
paid-up equity shares of face value of INR 10 each held by other shareholder, i.e.
Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited (‘RIHCPL’) in PHCPL.

3. The transfer and vesting of the undertakings and business of PHCPL in PML will be
effective from Appointed Date.

Effect of the Scheme of Amalgamation on equity shareholders (promoter and non-
promoter shareholders) and Key Managerial Personnel of PHCPL: 

PHCPL is a subsidiary company of the PML. Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon 
the amalgamation of PHCPL with PML, the shares held by the PML in PHCPL shall stand 
cancelled. In consideration for the amalgamation of PHCPL with PML, PML will allot 627 (Six 
Hundred and Twenty-Seven) fully paid-up equity shares of the face value of INR 2 each for 
every 100 (One Hundred) fully paid-up equity shares of face value of INR 10 each held by 
other shareholder, i.e. Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited (‘RIHCPL’) in 
PHCPL based on the share exchange ratio as determined in the valuation report and fairness 
opinion. 

Except Mr. Atul Ruia and his relatives, none of the other Directors, the Key Managerial 
Personnel (‘KMPs’) of the Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder) have any interest in the Scheme except 
to the extent of the equity shares held by them directly or indirectly in the Company. 

Difficulties in Valuation, if any: 
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No Special Valuation difficulties were reported. 

Conclusion 

While deliberating the Scheme, the Board has considered its impact on each of the 
shareholders, promoters, non-promoter shareholders, key managerial personnel, creditors 
and employees of the Company and there shall be no prejudice caused to them in in any 
manner by the scheme. 

By order of the Board of Directors  
Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited 

Name : Shishir Shrivastava 
Designation : Director 
DIN : 01266095 

Date : November 26, 2020 
Place : Mumbai 
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THIS IS A DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT PREPARED IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED SCHEME OF 
AMALGAMATION OF PHOENIX HOSPITALITY COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED (“PHCPL”) WITH THE 
PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED (“PML”) AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 
232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“SCHEME”). THE SCHEME 
IS ALSO AVAILABLE ON THE WEBSITES OF PML, BSE LIMITED (“BSE”) AND NATIONAL STOCK 
EXCHANGE OF INDIA LIMITED (“NSE”) WHERE THE EQUITY SHARES OF PML ARE LISTED. 
THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS 10 PAGES. PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE RECEIVED ALL 
THE PAGES. 
NO EQUITY SHARES ARE PROPOSED TO BE SOLD OR OFFERED PURSUANT TO THIS DISCLOSURE 
DOCUMENT. 
This disclosure document has been prepared in connection with the Scheme, pursuant to the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) Circular bearing number CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 
March 10, 2017, (“SEBI Circular”) read with Regulation 37 of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, each as amended. This 
disclosure document dated November 26, 2020 should be read together with the Scheme and the 
notice to the shareholders of The Phoenix Mills Limited in connection with the Scheme. 

PHOENIX HOSPITALITY COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Registered Office: Phoenix Mill Premises, 462 Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013, 
Maharashtra, India. 
Contact Person: Mr. Shishir Shrivastava, Director Email: secretarial@phoenixmarketcity.in 
Telephone: 022 -30016600 Website: https://www.thephoenixmills.comCIN:U55209MH2006PTC161066 

NAME OF THE PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY 
The Phoenix Mills Limited, Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited and Mr. Atul Ruia are 
the Promoters of the Company. 

SCHEME DETAILS, LISTING AND PROCEDURE 

Brief particulars of the Scheme are as follows: 

(a) The Scheme involves the Amalgamation of Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited (“PHCPL”)
with The Phoenix Mills Limited (“PML”). PHCPL is a subsidiary of PML.

(b) Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon the Amalgamation of PHCPL with PML, the shares
held by PML in PHCPL as on the record date shall stand cancelled. Pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme, PML will allot 627 (Six Hundred and Twenty-Seven) fully paid-up equity shares of PML of
face value of INR 2 each for every 100 (One Hundred) fully paid-up equity shares of face value of
INR 10 each held by other shareholder, i.e. Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited
('RIHCPL') in PHCPL.

(c) The equity shares of PML to be allotted through the Scheme are proposed to be listed on BSE and
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NSE, post effectiveness of the Scheme. Further upon effectiveness of the Scheme, PHCPL shall 
stand dissolved without being wound up. 

(d) The Scheme is subject to the approvals and sanctions as mentioned in the Scheme.

Rationale: 

The proposed amalgamation will lead to a simplified corporate structure since it will result in the 
combined businesses of PHCPL and PML being carried on more economically, efficiently and 
beneficially and the arrangement would be in the interest of both the companies and their 
shareholders as the businesses carried on by both the companies are under common 
management/shareholders. The proposed amalgamation would strengthen the management of the 
PML effectively because of avoidance and elimination of unnecessary duplication of time, costs and 
expenses, incurred for administration and operations of both the companies separately and would 
result in better utilization of resources and assets and synergies of operations with integration of 
management and other expertise. The proposed amalgamation will also result to reduction in 
compliance requirement and reduction in the intermediate holding structure in accordance with 
section 2(87) of Companies Act, 2013 thereby providing greater flexibility in future.  

The Procedure with respect to the Public Issue/Offer would not be applicable as the Scheme does not 
involve issue of equity shares to public at large. 

ELIGIBILITY 
This Disclosure Document has been prepared in connection with the Scheme pursuant to and in 
compliance with the SEBI Circular, SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/26 dated March 23, 2017 read 
with Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended. 

INDICATIVE TIMELINE 
This Disclosure Document is being issued pursuant to the Scheme, and is not, nor should it be deemed 
to be an offer to the public. Given that the Scheme requires approval of various regulatory authorities 
including and primarily, the National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), the exact time frame cannot be 
established with certainty.

GENERAL RISKS 

For taking any investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of The Phoenix Mills 
Limited, the Company and the Scheme, including the risks involved. The equity shares have not been 
recommended or approved by SEBI, nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of the contents 
of the Disclosure Document. Specific attention is invited to the section titled “Risk Factors” at page 5 of 
this Disclosure Document.

NAME OF THE STATUTORY AUDITORS 
M/s. A.M. Ghelani & Company, Chartered Accountants 

PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY 

The promoters of the PHCPL are a) The Phoenix Mills Limited, b) Ruia International Holding Company 
Private Limited and c) Mr. Atul Ruia. 
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a) The Phoenix Mills Limited (“PML”) is a listed public limited company registered under Act No. VI of
1882 of the Legislative Council of India with the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies, Bombay
deemed to be registered under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1913 having its registered
office at 462 Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel- West, Mumbai – 400013. The Corporate Identity
Number (CIN) of PML is L17100MH1905PLC000200.

PML at present is engaged in the segment of Property and Related Services and Hospitality Services. 
PML was established to carry on the business to own, acquire, operate and manage shopping
centers, malls, shopping arcades etc., business of developing, buying, selling, and otherwise dealing
in land properties etc.

The equity shares of PML are listed on the NSE and BSE.

b) Ruia International Holding Company Private Limited (“RIHCPL”) is a private limited company
registered under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at c/o
Market City Resources Pvt. Ltd, Ground Floor, R.R. Hosiery Bldg, Shree Luxmi Woollen Mills Estate
Mahalaxmi Mumbai City- 400011. The CIN of RIHCPL is U45201MH2006PTC165254.

c) Mr. Atul Ruia is a Non-Executive Chairman of PML and holds a bachelor’s degree of science in
economics from the University of Pennsylvania. He is on the Board of PML since November 19,
1996 and has served the PML in the capacity of Managing Director from April 16, 2007 until
December, 10, 2019.

BUSINESS MODEL/BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY 

Overview: 

Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited (“PHCPL”) is a private limited company, incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, on April 10, 2006 as Atlas Hospitality Company Private 
Limited. The name of the Company was changed from Atlas Hospitality Company Private Limited to 
Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited pursuant to necessary resolution passed by the Company 
and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent to the change of name was issued by the Registrar of 
Companies, Maharashtra at Mumbai on March 4, 2008. PHCPL has made investments in certain project 
specific companies involved in the business of real estate development. 56.92% shareholding of PHCPL 
is being held by PML and balance 43.08% shareholding is being held by RIHCPL.  

The details of key project specific companies are as follows: 

Starboard Hotels Private Limited (”Starboard”) - Starboard co-owns a mixed use property comprised of 
an operational mall and an under development planned office space. Starboard is an associate company
of PHCPL. PHCPL along with PML holds 50% of the equity share capital of starboard hotel and the 
remaining 50% being held by the other partners in SPV. 

Alliance Spaces Private Limited (“Alliance”) – Alliance owns a commercial office building in Pune. 
Alliance is a subsidiary of PHCPL. PHCPL holds 57.99% of the equity share capital in Alliance and the 
balance 42.01% of equity share capital being held by PML. 
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Palladium Constructions Private Limited (“PCPL”) - PCPL has constructed residential developments in 
Bangalore. It also owns a hospitality asset in Agra, managed by a Hotel Operator. PCPL is an associate 
company of PHCPL. PHCPL holds 47.71% of the equity share capital and the balance 52.29% of equity 
share capital being held by PML. 

Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private Limited (”Graceworks”) – Graceworks is a subsidiary of PHCPL. 
Graceworks has built the commercial office property in Mumbai. PHCPL holds 77.33% of the equity 
share capital and the balance 22.67% of equity share capital being held by PML. 

Strategy: 

Through our focus, design and customer service, we have created a brand that is trusted by our 
customers across multiple asset classes. We aim to own and operate retail & commercial assets, with 
our current pipeline of ongoing projects. We are keeping a very close watch on delivering on our 
ongoing developments and intend to deliver on our commitments, with the full support and 
encouragement of our various stakeholders. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Sr. 
No. 

Name Designation Experience including current/past position held in other firms 

1.  Mr. Atul Ruia Non- 
Executive 
Director 

He was appointed on the Board of the Company on April 10, 
2006. He is the Promoter and Non-Executive Chairman of The 
Phoenix Mills Limited. He holds a bachelor’s degree of science in 
economics from the University of Pennsylvania. 

2.   Mr. Shishir 
Shrivastava 

Non- 
Executive 
Director 

He was appointed on the Board of the Company on June 27, 
2008. He is the Managing Director of The Phoenix Mills Limited. 
He also holds directorship on the boards of other group 
companies including Pallazzio Hotels & Leisure Limited and 
Classic Housing Projects Private Limited. 

3. Mrs. 
Sharmila 
Dalmia 

Non- 
Executive 
Director 

She was appointed on the Board of the Company on June 27, 
2008. She also holds directorship in other companies including Jiva 
Designs Private Limited and is a designated partner in Grandeur 
Travels and Tours LLP.  

4. Mr. Ajay 
Kumar 
Kejriwal 

Non- 
Executive 
Director 

He was appointed on the Board of the Company on June 27, 2008. 
He has passed his Bachelor of Commerce (Part II) from University
of Bombay. He also holds directorship in Omega Knitters Private 
Limited and Ritz Private Limited.  

PRE-SCHEME SHAREHOLDING PATTERN 
Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Pre-Scheme number of shares % holding of Pre-Scheme 

1 Promoter and Promoter Group 23,21,400 100 
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2 Public NIL NIL 
Total 23,21,400 100 

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 Amount (Rupees in lakhs) 
Sr. 
N
o 

Particulars 
As of and for the 
three months 
period ended 
June 30, 2020 

As of and for the year 
ended 

March 31, 
2020 

March 31, 
2019 

March 31, 
2018 

1 Total income from operations (net)# 1,251.31 5,226.20 2,944.20 2,184.64 

2 Net Profit/(loss) before tax and 
extraordinary items 

456.53 243.46 (294.63) (1,125.61) 

3 Net Profit/(loss) after tax and 
extraordinary items* (A) 

(180.39) 2,974.93 5,614.06 173.44 

4 
Equity Share Capital (Face Value of 
₹10 per share) (B) 232.14 232.14 232.14 232.14 

5 Reserves and Surplus  (Other Equity) 69,444.47 69,753.36 52,872.10 42,061.18 
6 Net Worth** (C) 69,676.61 69,985.50 53,104.24 42,293.32 
7 Basic Earnings per Share (₹)*** (13.31) 127.42 248.18 22.56 
8 Diluted Earnings per Share (₹)*** (13.31) 126.36 246.10 22.37 
9 Return on Net Worth (%) [(A/C) x 

100] 
(0.26%) 4.25% 10.57 % 0.41 % 

10 Net asset value per share (₹) 
[C/(B/10)] 

3,001.49 3,014.80 2,287.60 1,821.89 

# Represents only Revenue from Operations 
*Represents Total Comprehensive Income for the year / period including share of profit in associates
** Net worth = [Total Assets – (Total Liabilities + Non-Controlling Interest)]
*** Calculated on Net Profit attributable to the owner of the company

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS 

The below mentioned Risk factors include the Risk factors for the Company, its subsidiaries and Associates: 

 The widespread coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak has had an adverse impact on our business leading to
temporary shutdown of our malls and office spaces, delay in launch of a new mall and construction
delays in the under construction malls and office spaces, amongst others. The slowdown in getting lease
commitments for new or vacated spaces at our properties due to economic slowdown and cost pressure
faced by corporations globally, could affect the financial returns of our assets. Further the ultimate
effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on the business and operations may, however, differ from that
assessed by us and therefore, we will continue to monitor developments to identify significant
uncertainties that may have an effect on our business and operations. Further, our Auditors have also
drawn attention to a detailed note, stating the impact of Corona virus disease (Covid-19) on the
operations of the Company as an emphasis of matter in their Audit report dated September 23, 2020
issued on the consolidated audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 and the
audit report dated November 25, 2020 issued on the consolidated interim financial statements for the
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three months period ended June 30, 2020. 

 Low occupancy levels of the hotels owned by our Subsidiaries and / or Associates and inability to find
new retail or commercial office clients or renew leases for the retail and commercial office properties,
may adversely affect the business, profitability and financial performance of such subsidiaries and
associates, which would have an impact on our business.

 Inability to sell the ongoing residential projects and other projects owned by our subsidiaries and/or
associates at expected prices could materially and adversely affect future revenues, cash flows and
earnings.

 Risks relating to holding the good title to the properties owned by our subsidiaries and/or associates and
their inability to obtain title insurance guaranteeing title or land development rights and further to
obtain various approvals, licenses or permits in a timely manner or failure to comply with the terms of
any of these approvals or licenses or applicable laws could adversely affect the financial condition and
ability to undertake business activities.

 Our subsidiaries and/or associates rely on independent contractors and other skilled third parties to
execute the projects. We cannot assure you these third parties will continue to be available at
reasonable costs or at all. As a result, we may be required to make additional investments to ensure the
adequate performance and delivery of contracted services and any delay in project execution could
adversely affect our business and financial condition.

 Our subsidiaries and/or associates may be subject to third-party indemnification, liability claims or
invocation of guarantees, which may adversely affect the business, cash flows, results of operations and
reputation.

 One of our associate company, Palladium Constructions Private Limited, has entered into hotel
operations and related agreements with a hotel operator to receive operation and marketing services in
relation to the hotel. If that hotel operator decides to terminate or not renew any agreements, it may
impact our profitability and business operations.

 There are outstanding legal proceedings against our Promoters, directors and subsidiaries, which if
decided against us or them, may adversely affect the business, financial condition and results of
operations.

 The business of our subsidiaries and/or associates requires debt. Any disruption in debt financing, may
have a material adverse impact on the business, cash flows and financial performance.

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS 

A. Total number of outstanding litigations against the company and subsidiaries and the amount
involved:

Nature of Litigation No. of Outstanding Matters  Amount Involved (₹) 
Criminal Matters 0 NIL 
Civil Matters 2 35,00,94,050 
Tax Matters 
Direct Tax 0 0 
Indirect Tax 0 0 
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Notes: The above amounts are provided to the extent quantifiable and do not include any interest/ 
penalty amounts that may be required to be paid thereon. 

B. Brief details of the top 5 material outstanding litigations against or involving PHCPL and its
Subsidiaries and the amount involved:

Sr. 
No. Brief Description of the Matter(s) Litigation Filed by Current 

Status 
Amount 

Involved (₹) 
1. Graceworks Realty and Leisure 

Private Limited (‘GRLPL’) – 
Subsidiary Company: 

Subhash Dagadu Jadhav 
("Petitioner"), has, on November 6, 
2004, filed a public interest litigation 
(no. 4 of 2007) before the Bombay 
High Court ("PIL"), against, amongst 
others, the then Revenue Minister 
of Maharashtra ("Respondent No. 
2") and Mukund Limited 
("Respondent No. 4") praying that 
an order dated September 14, 2005 
("Order") passed by Respondent No. 
2 in relation to a proposal to 
redevelop the land be set aside. The 
Order ruled that the land was sold in 
1944 by way of a public auction and 
was of the absolute ownership of 
Respondent No. 4, as a result of 
which the State Government could 
not restrict the disposal of the land 
or the manner thereof by 
Respondent No. 4. Offbeat 
Developers Private Limited and 
Graceworks Realty & Leisure Private 
Limited impleaded themselves in 
the PIL with respect to their 
respective projects, although they 
were not named as Respondents by 
the Petitioner, since they acquired a 
portion of the land in dispute from 
Respondent No. 4. The PIL has been 
admitted by the Bombay High Court.
The matter is currently pending. 

Mr. Subhash Dagadu 
Jadhav 

Petition will 
come up for 
hearing in due 
course.  

Not quantifiable 
at this stage. 

2. Graceworks Realty and Leisure 
Private Limited (‘GRLPL’) – 
Subsidiary Company: 

M/s. Dynamix Realty The matter is 
currently 
pending. 

Rs.18,40,60,970 
as Principal 
Amount and 
interest at the 
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Dynamix Realty filed a summary suit 
dated November 20, 2014, before 
the Bombay High Court against 
GRLPL claiming a sum of 
Rs.18,40,60,970  being the amount 
payable under the agreement for 
sale of TDR between Dynamix Realty 
and GRLPL ("Agreement"). This sum 
of Rs.18,40,60,970 includes the 
outstanding amounts to be paid by 
GRLPL to Dynamix Realty under the 
Agreement, in addition to the 
interest accumulated on this 
outstanding amount at the rate of 
15% per annum. GRLPL in its written 
statement dated December 14, 
2015 contended that the suit was 
barred by limitation and GRLPL was 
prohibited from making payment of 
the last instalment to Dynamix 
Realty, as directed by the 
Enforcement Directorate. The 
matter is currently pending. 

rate of 15% 
thereon from the 
date of the suit 
amounts to Rs. 
35,00,94,050 ( as 
of 25th November, 
2020) 

C. Regulatory Action, if any - disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the
Promoters in last 5 financial years including outstanding action, if any - Nil

D. Brief details of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters:

Sr. 
No. 

Brief description of the 
Matter 

Litigation 
Filed by 

Current 
Status 

Amount 
Involved 

(₹)* 
1. R.R. Hosiery, a Partnership firm (“Assessee”) 

comprising of Mrs. Amla Ruia, Mr. Atul Ruia, and 
Mrs. Gayatri Ruia as partners, had filed its return 
of income on 27th October, 2005 and 
subsequently the case was selected for scrutiny 
assessment. The Assessing Officer (“AO”) 
concluded the assessment for assessment year 
2005-06 by passing the assessment order against 
all the partners of Assessee and made the 
following additions: 

1. Deemed Dividend u/s 2(22)(e) of Income Tax
Act (“IT Act”) – Rs.4,79,744.

2. Unexplained Cash Credit u/s 68 of IT Act – Rs.
50,00,000.

Income 
Tax 
Departme
nt 

The matter 
has been 
stayed by the 
Hon'ble High 
Court 

Rs.66,59,023 
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3. Long Term Capital Gains (‘LTCG’) claimed as
exempt  (April 2004 to September 2004) –
Rs.75,20,351.

Assesse has submitted to the Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeal) in respect of 3rd addition that 
Assesse has wrongly considered LTCG of 
Rs.75,20,351 instead of Rs.10,49,477 and balance 
amount of Rs.66,59,023 was liable to tax as LTCG 
and Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal) has 
accepted the same. The Commissioner of Income 
Tax (Appeal) dismissed the Assessee’s appeal in 
respect of first two additions and assessed the 
Long Term Capital Gain of Rs.66,59,023/- instead 
of Rs.75,20,351/-. 

Then Assesse filed an appeal for above first two 
addition i.e. Deemed Dividend and Unexplained 
Cash Credit before Hon'ble Income Tax Appellate 
Tribunal (ITAT) and the Hon'ble Income Tax 
Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) deleted the addition of 
Rs.50,00,000/ on account of unexplained cash 
credit. 

2. The Assessing Officer, after Commissioner of 
Income Tax (Appeal) order, levied penalty for 
100% of tax sought to be evaded. Penalty has 
been levied amounting to Rs.25,25,826/- on the 
following issues: 

1. Unexplained Cash Credit u/s 68 of Income Tax
Act – Rs.50,00,000
2. Long Term Capital Gains - Rs.66,59,023

The Hon'ble Income Tax Appellate Tribunal 
(“ITAT”) deleted the addition on account of 
unexplained cash credit of Rs.50,00,000/- hence 
penalty to the extent of this amount also got 
deleted by Assessing Officer and Assessing Officer 
passed the order in respect of penalty proceeding 
and recalculated the penalty of Rs.6,96,200. 

Consequently, Assessee filed an appeal to the 
Hon'ble ITAT for penalty proceedings of 
Rs.6,96,200/- but the Hon'ble ITAT dismissed the 
appeal of Assessee and Commissioner of Income 
Tax had given the sanction for prosecution against 
the Assessee. The Assessee has now made an 
appeal in High Court against the ITAT Order. 

Mrs. Amla 
Ruia, Mr. 
Atul Ruia 
and  Mrs. 
Gayatri 
Ruia 

The matter 
has been 
stayed by the 
Hon'ble High 
Court 

Rs.6,96,200 

* The above amounts are provided to the extent quantifiable and do not include any interest/ penalty
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amounts that may be required to be paid thereon. 

ANY OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY: NIL 

DECLARATION BY THE COMPANY 
We hereby declare that all applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules issued 
thereunder, SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 as amended and or the 
guidelines/regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, have been complied with 
and no statement made in this document are contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or guidelines or regulations 
issued thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements with respect to us in 
this Disclosure Document are true and correct.  

Place: Mumbai 
Date: November 26, 2020 
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D T S & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants 

LIMITED REVIEW REPORT 

To, 
The Board of Directors 
The Phoenix Mills Limited 

LIMITED REVIEW REPORT ON THE UNA UDITED STANDALONE RESULTS OF THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED 

FOR THE QUARTER AND HALF YEAR ENDED 30th SEPTEMBER 2020 

I. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited standalone financial results of The Phoenix Mills
Limited (the 'Company') for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 and year to date from 1st April, 2020 to
30th September, 2020 (the "Statement") attached herewith, being submitted by the Company pursuant to the
requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, as amended ("the Listing Regulations").

2. The preparation of the Statement in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in
Indian Accounting Standard 34, (Ind AS 34) "Interim Financial Reporting", prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, read with the circular is the responsibility of the Company's management and has
been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the
Statement based on our review.

3. We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410, "Review of
Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity" issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate
assurance as to whether the Statement is free of material misstatement. A review is limited primarily to inquiries
of company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provide less assurance than
an audit. We have not performed an audit and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

4. We draw attention to Note 5 of the Statement, which describes the company's management evaluation of
impact of Covid 19 pandemic on the future business operations and it's consequential effects on the carrying
value of assets as on 30th Sept., 2020. The Management has made a best estimate of the revenue recoverable for
the half year ended 30th Sept., 2020 on the basis stated in the said Note. In view of uncertain economic
conditions arising out of pandemic, the management's evaluation of impact on subsequent periods and of
amounts of revenue recognised during the period is highly dependent. upon conditions as they evolve. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

5. Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying statement prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in
applicable Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specifies under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended, read with relevant rules issued there under and other recognised accounting practices and policies has
not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Reglilation, read with the Circular, including
the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

For D T S & Associates LLP

Charte
12W /Wl00595) 

em 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 12th November, 2020 
UDIN: 20132639AAAADW4414 

REGO. OFFICE: SUIJ/11306-1307, LODHA SUPREMUS, SENAPATI BAPAT MARG, LOWER PAREL, MUMBAI - 400 013. 
PHONE: +91 22 4945 4050 FAX: +91 22 4945 4010 

CORP. OFFICE: 1105, RAHEJA CENTRE, FRE E PRESS JOURNAL MARG, NARIMAN POINT, MUMBAI - 400 021. 
PHONE: +91 22 4973 2396 WEB: www.dtsa.in 112
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THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED 

STANDALONE UNAUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER /HALF YEAR ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2020 
Regd. Office:- 462, Senapati Bapal Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013 

Tel. (022) 24964307/ 08/ 09 E-mail info@lhephoenixmills com Websile www thephoenixmills com 

(�in Lakhs ) 

PARTICULARS Threo Months Ended On Six Months Ended On Year Endod 

30-09-2020 30,06-2020 30-09-2019 30-09-2020 30-09-2019 31-03-2020 

Unaudited Unaudllod Unaudited Unaudltod Unaudllocl Audited 

Income 

Net Sales / Income from Operations 4,489 98 4,016 49 11,307 42 8,506 47 22,635 48 44,442 68 
Other Income 905.22 485 86 2,843 98 1,391 08 3,329 37 4,248 30 
Total Income from Operations 5,395.20 4,502.35 14,151.40 9,897.55 25,964.85 48,690.98 

Expenditure 
a) (Increase)/ Decrease in Stock in Trade/Work in Progress . 
b) Cost of Malerials Consumed - . . -
c) Employee Benefits Expenses 264.03 220,25 486,77 484 28 984 10 2,337 85 
d) Finance Cost 1,700 66 1,938,26 1,863.62 3,638 92 3,708 34 7,577 72 
e) Eleclricity Expenses 378_80 158,88 1,160.89 537 68 2,405 29 4,387 77 
f) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 1,153 71 1,150 97 1,048 45 2,304 68 2,110 05 4,631 06 
g) Other Expenses 1,802 74 949 39 3,011 63 2,752 13 5,593 87 11,800 37 
Total Expenditure 5,299.94 4,417.75 7,571.36 9,717.69 14,801.65 30,734.77 
Profit before Exceptional items 95.26 84.60 6,580.04 179.86 11,163.20 17,956.21 

Exceptional llem (125.16) (12516) (125,16) 
Profit from ordinary activities before tax 95.26 84.60 6,454.88 179.86 11,038.04 17,831.05 
Tax expense 23 81 7 28 585_80 31 09 1,606 31 3,074 97 

Net Profit After Tax for the period from continuing operations 71.45 77.32 5,869.08 148.77 9,431.73 14,756.08 

Other Comprehensive Income (after tax) 18.05 11 44 69 59 29 49 (3343) (18307) 

Total Comprehensive Income (after taxes) (7+8) 89,50 88.76 5,938.67 178.26 9,398.30 14,573.01 

Paid-up equily share capilal (Face Value� 2/- per share) 3,433,67 3,069 30 3,066 97 3,433 67 3,066 97 3,069 25 
Othor Equily 2,81,743 18 

Baa,c EPS (not annualised) (�) 0.04 0 05 3 83 0 09 615 9.62 
DIIL1led EPS (not annualised) (t) 0 04 0 05 3 81 0 09 6 13 9_60 

The above Financial Results of lhe Company for lhe quarter ended 30th Seplember, 2020 have been reviewed by lhe Audi! Committee and approved by the Board of Direclors at 
their respective meelings held on 12th November. 2020 

Outing the quarter ondod 301h Soplomber. 2020, tho Comp$ny has allolled 1,81m,816 equity shares al an Issue Price of� 605 per oq,Jlty Jhore (lnclLldlng premium of! 603 per 
equity share) to certain inslilutional/ Private equity investors, mulual funds, elc thrnuoh Qualified Institutional Placement aggregating to � 1, 10,000 Lakhs 

The company hes- 1ssuE1d 36,643 Equity Shams under the ESOP scheme - 31,66a Equliy shares at an exorcise p,rlco of l�s 316 80/- per �qu,ty �harn (including prert11urn or Rs 
314 80 per equity share) & 4,975 Equity shares at an exercise pnce of Rs 333,90/- per equily share (including premium of Rs 331 90 per equity share). during lhe quarler ended 
30th September 2020 

Tho Board or DlrQctora approved the $Choma ol An1alga01ation ('Scheme") undor section 230 lo 232 of the Companies Acl. 2013 for merger of Phoe11lx Hospitality Company 
Private Lim1led ("PHCPL"), e subsidiary company with the Company from the Appointed Dale 1 sl April 2019 The effecl of lhe merger would be accounled for after lhe Scheme 1s 
approved by Nalional Company Law Tribunal ("NCL T") and olher aulhorilies The Company has received a No-objecl1on Certificate from both lhe stock exchanges, pursuant to 
whit!> 11 has filed the merger applicalion with lhe NCL T NCL T's direclion for holding the shareholders mealing ,s awailed 

The Company's operalio,,s have been lmparlod by 11111 Covld 19 pa11demlc Induced lockdowns announced by the Governmen1 The Company's oporalions which were suspondod 
dunng the lockdown period, have gradually resumed wilh the requisite precautions In preparation of these resulls, the Company has taken into account internal and external 
sources of information to assess possible impacts of the pandemic, including but not limited 10 assessment of liquidity and going concern, recoverable 
values of its financial and non-financial assels 

Fo1 recognition of revenues from mall operalions, managemenl has considered certain concessions/relief/moralonum on renlals exlended to its relailers/licensees for lhe period of 
lockclown as well as some further penod considering lhe extended impacl of the pandemic Such concessions are delerm1ned based on discussions concluded with 
retailers/hcensees on case to case basis Where discussions have not commenced or are ongorng, the revenue 1s accrued considering lhe managemenl estimate of mosl likely 

agreeable amounts of concession based on its ongoing discussions and the relationship with the retailers/ licensee 

Based on the current estimates, the management expects to recover the carrying amounts of lhe assets including the revenue recognized during the six months period ended 30th 
September 2020 Considering the evolving nature of the pandemic, its actual impact ,n future could be different from that estimaled as al the dale of approval of these lln&l'ICIIJI 
results_ The Company will continue to closely monitor uncertainties ansmg of material changes to the future economic conditions 

Conslderlno the Impact of concessions given In lease rentals and other rocovenes during the- quarter anded 30th September, 2020. lhe above resulls and performance for Iha 
quarter is not represenlalive of revenue and performance for the entire year 

Tho Company Is ptatlornlilwilly engsgad In lhe bus,ness of property ;ma related ser,ices, whose results are a,v,owm1 rogularly by chief oporatlng �ec1s1on maker lor molslng 
doc1s1ons aboul resource alloca11on and performance assessment As such, !here are no separate reporting segments as per lnd-AS108 

The flourns for Iha corresponding previous penods have been ras1ated/fe9roupod, wherever no
71:

ry, to mako them comparable with the C1Jrrent porlcds 

Mumbai 

12th November, 2020 ! Daled 
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THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF STANDALONE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

AS AT 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2020 

Pa rtic ula rs 

ASSETS 

1 Non-current assets 

a} Property, plant and equipment 
b} Capital work-in-progress 
c} Other intangible assets 
d} Financial assets 

i} Investments 
ii} Loans 
iii} Other Financial assets 

e )  Deferred tax assets (net} 
f) Other non-current assets 

2 Current assets 

a) Financial assets 
i} Investment 
ii} Trade receivables 
iii} Cash and cash equivalents 

(A} 

iv} Bank Balance other than (iii} above 
v} Loans 
vi} Other Financial assets 

b) Current Tax Assets (net} 
c} Other current assets 

(B) 

TOTAL ASSETS (A+ B) 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1 Equity 
a) Equity share capital 
b) Other equity 

Liabilities 

2 Non-current liabilities 

a) Financial liabilities 
i} Borrowings 
ii} Other financial liabilities 

b} Provisions 
c} Other non-current liabilities 

3 Current liabilities 

a} Financial liabilities 
i} Borrowings 
ii} Trade Payables 

(A) 

(B} 

(a} Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small 
Enterprises; 
(b} Total outstanding dues of Creditors othet than Micro Enterprises 
and Small Enterprises; 

iii} Other financial liabilities 
b} Provisions 
c} Other current liabilities 

(C) 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (A+B+C) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 12th November, 2020 

As at 
30th September 2020 

Unaudited 

II 

65,381.75 
11,590.57 

5 76 

2.75,625, 77 
10,530.25 

4,414.01 
833,72 
935.29 

3,69,317.12 

40,728.75 
6,248 15 

600.49 
38,872.84 
17,002,81 
10,130.05 

5,107 14 
2,603.95 

1,21,294.18 

4,90,611.30 

3,433 67 
3,90,059 85 

3,93,493.52 

53,914.94 
4,681.33 

156 47 
-

58,752.74 

494.72 

56.61 

1.793,81 

28,540,56 
13 08 

7 466 26 
38,365.04 

4,90,611.30 

(l 1n Lakhs) 
As at 

31st March 2020 

Audited 

67,568 85 
11.462 18 

8.19 

2.71,024.01 
15,030.25 

4,414 01 
853.81 
939,02 

3,71,300.32 

-

1,996.93 
383.00 

14.84 
3,002 85 

11,973 04 
4,769 06 
1 453.21 

23,592.93 

3, 94,893.25 

3,069.25 
2,81,743 18 

2,84,812.43 

58,788 04 
8,917.60 

118 91 
-

67,824.55 

18,456 35 

24 08 

1,372.20 

17,584.54 
13.08 

4 806,02 
42,256.27 

3, 94,893.25 

Foe i oo behalfof Boacd ofd;,octo" 

�l/JJ-A-���/� 

71� Pradumna Kanq ii' 
(Director Finance �\ 
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THE PHOENIX MILLS LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30Ih SEPTEMBER, 2020 

A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Nel Profil before lax as per lhe Slalemenl of Profit and Loss 

Adjustments for 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 

Loss on Sale of Properly, Plan I and Equipmenl 
(Gain)/Loss on fair valualion of inveslmenls measured al 
fair value lhrough profil or loss 
Balances writlen back 
Interest Expense for financial liabilities al amortised cost 

lnlerest Income 

Interest Income on Bond 

Share Based paymenls lo employees 
Allowance for Doubttul Debls and Advances 
Re-measuremenl of lhe nel defined benefil plans 
Dividend Income 
Share of Loss from Partnership Firm 
Wrile off of lnleresl accrued 
Provision for Doubttul Loans 
Provision for diminution of Investment 

Gain on Sale of investments in mutual funds 

Operaling Profil before Working Capilal Changes 

Adjustment for Working Capital changes 

Trade and Olher Receivables 
Trade and Olher Payables 

Cash generated from Operations 

Less: Income laxes paid (Nel) 

Net Cash generated from Operating Activities 

B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Paymenls for purchase of Properly, Planl and Equipmenl, Capilal Work-In 
Progress and lnlangible Assels 
lnler Corporals Deposils & Loans (placed)/refunded (Nel) 
lnveslmenl made in Mulual Funds 
Proceeds from sale of Mulual Funds 
lnvestmenl made in Bonds 
lnveslment made in Term Deposits 
Proceeds from sale of Term Deposits 
lnveslments in Subsidiaries/Associales 

Proceeds from sale/redemption of inveslments in Subsidiaries/Associates 

Interest Received 

Dividend Received 

Net Cash used In Investing Activities 

C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from Borrowings - Long Term 
Net Proceeds from issue of Equily shares al 
Share Premium (Net of Issue Expenses) 
Movement in Short Term Borrowings 
Repaymenl of Borrowings - Long Term 
Repaymenl or lnler Corporate Loans & Deposils 
Share Applicalion Money 
Interest paid 
Dividends Paid (including Dividend Distribution Tax) 

Net Cash Generated/(used) In Financing Activities 

D Net lncrease/(Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Notes to St?t•rnent or Cash Flow 
1 Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash in Hand -Balances with Bank 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 12th November, 2020 

A 

B 

C 

A+B+C 

ff In L�khs) 
Six Month ended Year ended 

30th September 2020 31st March 2020 

2,304 68 
-

(23.96) 

-

3,638 92 
(1.192 66) 

(2 63) 
16 30 

183 80 

(0.03) 
2.20 

-

(173.27) 

(2,630.19) 
3,433 57 

(475 87) 

(9,499 96) 
(57,500 00) 
18,007 85 
(1,063 32) 

(42,431.33) 
3,573.33 

(4,500,00) 

238.27 
0 03 

1,08,686,27 

(13,348 68) 
(1,059.03) 
(4.612 95) 

(9 18) 
(1.175 45) 

179,86 

4,753.35 

4,933.21 

803.38 

5,736.59 

(349.08) 

5,387.51 

(93,651.00) 

88 480.98 

217.49 

383.00 

600.49 

4,631 06 
0 16 

27 03 

(1 32) 
7,577 72 

(1,846 38) 

41 36 
90 27 

0 07 
(2,408 64) 

13 79 
1,432 51 
1,535 20 
2,057 45 

(4,196 03) 
2,663 73 

(9,556 65) 

(1,282 90) 

(12,043.62) 

362.31 

1,625 36 
2,408.64 

571 93 

7,799 06 
(7,518 14) 
4,612 95 

0,83 
(7,643 71) 
15,070.11) 

2 26 3 92 
598.23 379_08 

'1600.49 383.00 

For
j'

i,/on behalf of Board of dlrn.cto,s 

� J � �\\\S Lt�,. 

,rn_, .,;;;;;;;·· I f� li'"" '-o-i
,\..c '" ,1

17,831.05 

13,150 28 

30,981 33 

(1,532.30) 

29,449 03 

(4,048 88) 

25 400.15 

(18,486 86) 

17 247.19) 

(333.90) 

716.90 

383.00 
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A. M. GHELANI & COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

224, Champaklal Industrial Estate, 
Sion-Koliwada Road, Sion (East), 
Mumbai - 400 022. 
Tel : 2402 4909 / 8739 
Fax : 2407 1138 

_ .. _____________________________________________ . _________________________________________ E-mail : amghelaniandco@gmaiJ.com ____ _ 
AJIT M. GHELANI CHINTAN A. GHELANI 

B.Com (Hons), F.C.A., GRAD.C. W.A. B.Com (Hons), F.C.A., C.S

LIMITED REVIEW REPORT 

To, 
The Board of Directors 
Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited. 

LIMITED REVIEW REPORT ON THE UNAUDITED RESULTS OF PHOENIX HOSPITALITY COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED FOR
THE QUARTER/SIX MONTHS ENDED 30.09.2020 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of Unaudited Financial Results of Phoenix Hospltallty Company 
Private Limited ("the Company") for the quarter/six months ended 30th September, 2020 ("the Statement"), being 
submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, as amended ("Listing Regulations"). 

2. This Statement which Is the responsibility of the Company's Management and approved by the Board of Directors,
has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the Indian
Accounting Standard 34 "Interim Financial Reporting" ("Ind AS 34"), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued there under and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our
responsibility is to issue a report on these financial results based on our review.

3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements {SRE) 2410,
"Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity", issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, to the extent applicable. This Standard requires that we plan and perform the
review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether Statement is free of material misstatements. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of Company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provide less
assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and accordingly we do not express an audit opinion.

4. Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying statement, prepared in accordance with the aforesaid Indian Accounting Standard and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed In term
of regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, including the manner
in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.

5. This report is provided to you solely for use in the preparation of financial information in terms of Clause 33 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 by The Phoenix Mills Limited, the Holding
Company, for the quarter/six months ended 30th September, 2020 on the specific request of the Company. It should
not be distributed to any other person and/or used for any other purposes.

For A.M. Ghelanl & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

FA: 11tt
tlon No.1

1

:;7'

JAtEt/t;{Alvp 
Partner 

rnl .. - ./ 

Membership No. 104391 

ll 
l 

ICAI UDIN 

Place 
Date 

: 'hi, 11 � 3� I � F&, 7-ol 1 
: Mumbai 

: ,,,,,,� 

--

,., 

.,,.. . • •.) 

,;P')� 
- -

Enclosed: Unaudited financial results for the Quarter/Six months ended as at 30thSeptember, 2020 of Phoenix Hospitality 
Company Private Limited. 
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PHOENIX HOSPITALITY COMPANY PVT LTD. 

UNAUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2020 ,• 

(Rs. In lacs) 

Sr. No. PARTICULARS Three Months Ended on Six Months Ended on Year Ended on 

30/09/2020 30/06/2020 30/09/2019 30/09/2020 30/09/2019 31/03/2020 

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Audited 
1 Income from Operations 

Net Sales / Income from operations - - - - - -

Other Income 0.69 0.61 0.81 1.30 1.44 8.10 

Total Income from Operations 0.69 0.61 0.81 1.30 1.44 8.10 

2 Expenditure 

a) Electricity Expenses - - - - - -

b) Employee Benefits Expenses . - - - - -

c) Finance Costs 4.41 4.36 4.40 8.77 8.75 17.50 

d} Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses - - - . - -

e) Other Expenses 0.22 0.24 0.31 0.46 0.60 1.37 

Total Expenditure 4.62 4.60 4.71 9.24 9.35 18.87 

3 Profit before Exceptional items (3.94) (3.99) (3.90) (7.93) (7.91) (10.77) 

4 Exceptional Item . - - - - . 

5 Profit from ordinary activities before tax (3.94) (3.99) (3.90) (7.93) (7.91) (10.77) 

6 Tax Expense - - - - - -

6 Tax Expense - Current Tax - - - - . -

Deferred Tax - - - - - -

Tax Adjustments of earlier years - - - - - . 

7 Net Profit After Tax for the period from continuing operations (3.94) (3.99) (3.90) (7.93) (7.91) (10.77) 

8 Other Comprehensive income (after Tax) - - - - - -

9 Total Comprehensive Income (after Tax) (3.94) (3.99) (3.90) (7.93) (7.91) (10.77) 

10 Paid-up equity share capital (Face Value Rs.10/- per share) 232.14 232.14 232.14 232.14 232.14 232.14 

11 Reserves excluding revaluation reserves -

(As per the latest audited balance sheet) 

12 Basic EPS (not annualised) (Rs.) (face value - Rs. 10/-} (0.17) (0.17} (0.17) (0.34) {0.34} {0.46) 

For Phoenix Ho�pitaHtJ r;:::·:·1p2.0y Prlvate Limited

Director 
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Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited 
(CIN : U55209MH2006PTC161066) 

Balance sheet as at 30th September, 2020 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

�1) Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment

{b) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments

(c) Other Non-Current Asset

(2) Current assets

(a) Financial Assets

(i) Trade receivables

(II) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(Iii) Loans

(iv) Others

{b) Current Tax Assets ( Net) 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 

{a) Equity Share Capital 

(b) Other Equity

LIABILITIES

(1) Current Llabilltles

(a) Financial Liabilities

(I) Borrowings

{ii) Trade Payables

Dues to micro and small enterprises 

Dues to others 

(Ill) Other Financial Llabiitles 

(b) Other Current Liabilities

Total 

Total 

Notes 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

As At 

Seotember 30. 2020 

5,265 

1,842,854,959 

95,000 

25,000 

510,143 

2,320,000 

247,619 

111,092 

1 846.169 078 

23,214,000 

1,772,831,573 

49,120,810 

-

81,000 

877,445 

44,250 

1,846.169,078 

As At 

March 31. 2020 

5,265 

1,842,854,959 

95,000 

475,000 

186,639 

2,125,000 

127,597 

266,592 

1
1
846

1
136,052 

23,214,000 

1,773,625,013 

49,120,810 

-

81,000 

265 

94,964 

1
1
846

!136
1
052 

For Phoenix Hospltalily C:;'.11pany Priv�;t1; Limited

b' �irector
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Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited 
(CIN : U55209MH2006PTC161066) 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Six Months Period Ended September 30, 2020 

Particulars Notes 

Income: 

Other Income 19 

Total Income 

Expenses: 

Other Expenses 20 

Finance cost 21 

Total Expenses 

Profit/ ( Loss ) Before Tax 

Tax Expenses : 

Current Tax 

(A) Profit / ( Loss ) for the Period

(B) Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (A+B) 

For the period ended For the financial year 
ended 

September 30. 2020 March 31, 2020 

130,132 809,595 

130.132 809,595 

46,391 137,056 

877,180 1,749,565 

923,571 1,886,621 

(793,439) (1,077,026) 

- -

(793,439) (1,077,026) 

- -

(793.439) (1,077,026) 

For Phoenix Hospitality Compa1\y Private Limited 

{I& f--fJirector 
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Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited 
(CIN : U55209MH2006PTC161066) 

Cash Flow Statement for the Six Months Period Ended September 30, 2020 

Sr. I Particulars 
Forthe period For the tlnanclal 

ended year ended 
No. September 30 2020 March 31, 2020 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit /(Loss) before Taxation (793,439) (1,077,026) 

Adiusted for: 
Interest Income (120,022) (267,750) 
Interest Expense 877,180 1,749,565 

Operating Profit / (loss) before Working Capita! Changes (36,281) 404,789 

�d/ustments [or Changes In Working_ Copftol: 
Other Current Liabilities (50,715) 39,596 
Trade and Other Receivables 255,000 715,000 
Trade Payables - (143 215) 

168,004 1,016,170 

Less: Taxes(paid)/ received 155 500 133 862 

Net Cash generated from/(used In) Operating Activities 323 504 1.150 031 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Interest Received on Inter Corporate Deposits - 196,742 
Inter Corporate Deposits Given - -

Net Cash generated from/(used In) Investing Activities - 196 742 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Inter Corporate Deposits taken/(refunded) [Net] - 398,984 
Interest Expense on ICD - (1,749,565) 
Interest Accured on ICD - 265 
Net Cash generated from/(used in) Financing Activities - 11.350 316) 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equlvalents 323,504 (3,543) 

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 186,639 190,182 

Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 510 143 186 639 

For Ph-cc:::_,:; \:.-2 pifa!ity Cor::pany Private Limited 

/ti,, J. ___
Director 
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Phoenix Hospitality Co Pvt Ltd. 
(CIN : U55209MH2006PTC161066) 
Statement of chamies In eaultv for the slK Months Period Ended 30th Seotember, 2020 

• A. Equity share capital

Opening balance Changes In equity share Closing balance 
as at 1st Aprll, 2020 capital during the perrlod as at 30th September, 

23,?1,400 (P.Y. 23,21,400) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 23,214,000 . 23,214,000 

23,214,000 . 23,214,000 

B, Other Eaultv 

ReseNe & Surplus 

Other Equity Equity Component of Securities Premium Retained Earnings 
compounded Financials 

Instrument 

Balances at Aprll 1, 2019 264,453,000 1,528,420,836 (18,171, 797) 

Profit /(Loss) for the period . . (1,077,026) 

Balances at Aprll 1, 2020 264,453,000 1,528,420,836 (19,248,823) 

Profit /(Loss) for the period . . (793,439) 

Balances at Seotember 30 2020 264 453 000 1.1;zs 420 836 120 042-2631 

Total 

1,774,702,039 

(1,077,026) 

1,773,625,013 

(793,439) 

1 772 831 573 
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Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited. 
(CIN : U55209MH2006PTC161066 ) 

Notes to financial statements for Six Months Period Ended September 

30,2020 
Note 5: Property, Plant & Equipment 

Gross Block 
As at 1st April 2020 
Additions/ (Disposals) 
As at 30th September, 2020 

Accumulated Depreciation 
As at 1st April 2020 
Charged for the period 
As at 30th September, 2020 

Net Block[W.D.V.] 
As at 1st April 2020 
As at 30th September, 2020 

120,640 

120 640 

115,375 

115 375 

5 265 
5 265 
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Phoenix Hospltallty Company Private Limited 
(CIN: USS209MH2006PTC161066) 

Notes to th<! Financial Stataments For Six Months Period Ended September 30, 2020 

P1rtlc!Aar1 

Investments 
tnv�$lm'-flti at CO.!il; unless otherwlil!I uated 

lnvastments In equity Instruments (Unquoted) 
lfiswtu,sl,or.ag(R.r.JQ/·rnm M••flld�llf,,..Jd. 

1�1'eislmonl In •ub1Jd.i'1rta1 
52,250 • 77.73'6 I P.Y. 52,250 -77.33'6) Graceworks Realty & 
I Al!lillrA Pvt, ltf'I 
1,158,950-57,99'6 (P,Y.1,158,950 -57.99'6) Alllanu Spaces Pvt. 
ltrl 

Investment In fellow subsidiary 
80 -0,8" (P.V.80•0,89') Mugwort Land Holdlnga Private Limited 

15,759,062-47.71'6 (P.Y.15,759,062-47.71" I Palladium 
C.nndrur.tlnn Pvt I td 

Investment In Associates 
2,499,374 -49.99'6 {P.Y. 2,499,374-49.99'61 Star Board Hotels Pvt, 
5,000· 50% (P. Y. 5,000· 50%) Mirabel Entertainment Pvt Ltd. 

Investment In Debentures (Unquoted) 

l11vu1menl ln.s1Jlnldlarles 

601,183 ( P.V. 6,01,183} OCD's In Graceworks Realtv & Leisure Pvt, Ltd. 

lnv11tment In Associates 

7,000 ( P.V. 7,000} CCD's ln Mlrabel Entertainment Pvt Ltd. Face value 
351,564 ( P.Y. NIL) OFCD's In Star Board Hotels Pvt Ltd, · Face value Rs 
100 each.• 

• On Account of Conversion of CCO's Into OFCO durlns the period under 
raoort 

Investment In Other, 

4,000 ( P.Y. 4,000 ) ACME Hospitality Services Pvt Ltd,· 
Face value Rs 100 each. ••• 

••• Each CCO's shall be converted Into 10 fullv paid up equltv shares at the request 
of the CCO Holders not before the expiry of 10 vears from date of allotement. CCO's 
carrying coupon rate of 0,0001" 

1. Aar•a•te valua of Quoted Investment,: 
Book Value 
Market Value 

2. Agreaate book value of other Unquoted Investments: 

Total 

Category wise Non Current Investments 
Flnandal Assets Measured at Cost 
Financial Assets Measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 
Flnandal Assets M&asured at Fair value through Profit & Loss account 

7 Othar Non•Current Asset 
Capital advances• Holdln,1 Company 

8 Trade recelvables 
I Unsecured ) 

a ) Considered Good 
Less : Allowance for E>cpected Credit loss 

b) Significant Increase In Credit Risk 
Less: AUowance for Expected Credit loss 

c) Credit Impaired 
Less: Allowance for Expected credit loss 

9 Cash & Cash Equlvalenta 
;a. Bn.lnnc:e.1' with Banks 

In current accounts 
b. Cash on hand 

Aul 
S.otombt!r 30. 2020 

522,500 

176,759,520 

800 

1,544,150,161 

24,993,740 

53,528 

60,118,300 

700,000 

35,156,410 

400,000 

1,842,854,959 

1,&42,854,959 

95,000 

95000 

25,000 

25,000 

25000 

506,399 
3,745 

510 144 

Ant 
March Jt 2D20 

522,500 

176,759,520 

800 

1,544,150,161 

24,993,740 

53,528 

60,118,300 

700,000 

35,156,410 

400,000 

1 842 854 959 

1,842,854,959 

1.842,854,959 

95,000 

95 000 

475,000 

475,000 

us 000.0 

182,894 
3,745 

116 639 
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Phoenix Hospltallty Company Private Limited 
(CIN: US5209MH2006PTC161066) 

Notes to the Financial Statements For Six Months Period Ended September 30, 2020 

�o,e.sl Partlculars Asat Asat 
Sentembttr 30 2020 March 31 2020 

10 Loans 
(Unsecured and Considered Good) 

Associates 2,320,000 2,125,000 

213201000 :Z 125 000 

•. 11 Other Flnanclal Assets 
Interest Recelvable on ICD [From Associates) 247,472 127,500 
Accured Interest on CCO t�7 97 

247 619 127 597 

12 Current Tax Assets ( Net) 
- Ta>1es Paid (Net of Provisions) 111,092 266,592 

111 092 166 502. 

13 Equity Share Capltal 
Authorised 

4,000,000 IP.Y. 4,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs,10/· each 40,000,000 40,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 
2,321,400 IP.Y.2,321,400) Equity Shares of Rs.10/· each fully paid up 23,214,000 23,214,000 

23,214,000 Jl 2.1,4 000 

a] Reconclllatlon of the Shares outstandlna at the beglnnlna and at the end or the reporting period 
Equity Shares 

Shares outstanding at the beginning 2,321,400 2,321,400 
Shares Issued during the Period 
SharH bo1.t,i;h1 back dur1nR 1ho riarlod 
Shares outstanding at the end of the Period 2 321 400 1,Sil,400 

b] Shares held by:-
Holdlna: Company 

The Phoenix Mills Limited, 
1,321,400 (P.Y. 1,321,400) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid 13,214,000 13,214,000 

Associates 

1) Rula lnternatlonal Holdlng Company Private limited 9,999,000 9,999,000 
999,800 (P.Y. 999,800) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid 

2) Rula International Holdlng Company Private limited Jolntly with Atul Rula 1,000 1,000 
100 (P.Y. 100) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid 

c] Details of shareholders holdlng more than s" Shares In the company 
September 30, 2020 March 31, 2020 

N"mborof "·' Number or 1Shares " of Holdlna• 
E:tu1ltv Sharos er R.t, JO o.ach fo11V uald thare.15 lloldln o 

Tba Phoenix MIiis Limited - Holding Company 1,321,400 56.92 1,321,400 56.92 

Rula luu1rn1t!lonnl HoldJno Cornnnn\l .Prlv111\e LlmltutJ • A,iocl!l!U 999 900 43.01 999 900 43.Q'/ 

d] The company has only one claH or Equity Shares having a race value or Rs.10 per share. Each holder of 

14 Other Equity September 30, 2020 March 31, 2020 

Equity Component of Compound Flnanclal Instrument 
23,41,350 I P.Y. 23,41,350 I OFCD of Rs 100 each. (Ref note below) 234,13S,OOO 234,135,000 
fi2!! : Note : The OFCO's with a face value of Rupees 100/-, carry a coupon rate of 
o.oooi,,. Each OFCD shall be converted Into fully paid -up equity shares of the 
Company at the request of the OFCO holders, 2. The OFCDs shall have the tenure of 
10 years from the date of allotment. However, the parties shall extend the period of 
conversion as may be agreed to between the OFCD holders and approved by the 
shareholders In general meeting, After the expiry of 10 years or such other period as 
may be agreed by the OFCD holders and approved by the shareholders, , 1 OFCDs 
having face value of Rs 100/- each would be optlonally converted Into such number 
of equity shares of Rs 10 each of the Company at the premium of Rs 651/· per 
1b.,ro,. 
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Phoenix Hospltallty Company Private Limited 
(CIN: U55209MH2006PTC161066) 

Notes to the Financial Statements For Six Months Period Ended September 30, 2020 

NotesJ P1rtlculan Asat Ant 
Saolvmbfn' 30 1020 March 3L 2020 

3.03,180 I P.Y. 3,03,180 l OFCD of Rs 100 each. !Ref note below) 30,318,000 30,318,000 
Note: Note : The OFCO's with a face value of Rupees 100/·, carry a coupon rate of 
0.0001%. Each OFCD shall be converted Into fully paid -up equity shares of the 
Company at the request of the OFCD holders, 2. The ODCDs shall have the tenure of 
10 years from the date of allotment. However, the parties shall extend the period of 
conversion as may be agreed to between the OFCD holders and approved by the 
shareholders In general meeting. After the eMplry of 10 years or such other period as 
may be agreed by the OFCO holders and approved by the shareholders, , 1 OFCDs 
having face value of Rs 100/· each would be optlonally converted Into such number 
of equity shares of Rs 10 each of the Company at the premium of Rs 1540/- per 

• share. 

Securities Premium 1,528,420,836 1,528,420,836 

Surplus/(deflclt) In the 1tatement of Profit and Loss 
As at the Beginning Period / Year (19,248,823) (lB,171,797) 
(+) Net Loss For the Period /Year 1793,439) r, 01102& 
As at the end 120,042,263) 119 2481111 

l177218U1573 ·17736260U 

Nature and purpo11 of reserves 
A.Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned tlll date, less any transfers to general reserve1dlvldends or other distributions p:tld 
tn !.hilrAhnlfifmli 

B.Securltles Premium : Securities Premium represents premium received on equity shares Issued, which can be utlllsed only In accordance with the provisions of 1/11:1 

Companies Act, 2013 for specified purposes. 

15 Borrowings 
(Unsecured) 
Inter Corporate Deposits (Repayable on Demand]: 

The Phoenix MIiis Limited - Holdlng Company 49,120,810 49,120,810 

49,120,810 �g 120910 

16 Trade Payables 
Micro and Small Enterprises It 
Dues to others 81,000 81,000 

81 000 at aoo 

17 Other Flnanclal llabllltes 
Interest accrued and due (On ICD from Hold Ing Company] 877,046 
Interest accrued and due (On CCD/ OFCD From Fellow Subsidiary) 399 m 

877445 265 

18 Other Current Llabllltles 
Statutory Dues 94,964 
Provision for Expenses 44 250 

H��g n•nu 
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Phoenix Hospitality Company Private Limited 

(CIN : U55209MH2006PTC161066} 
Notes to the financial statements for the Six Months Period ended 30th September, 2020 

(Amount In Rs.) 

For the Period ended 
For the financial Year 

Notes Particulars ended 
September 30, 2020 March 31, 2020 

19 Other Income 
Interest on ICDs 119,972 267,750 
Interest on CCD 50 97 
Interest on Income Tax Refund 10,110 16,748 

130,132 809,596 

20 Other Expenses 
Filing Fees 1 21,937 
Legal and Professional expenses - 25,758 
Payment to the Auditors 

Audit Fees 44,250 88,500 
Bank charges - 861 
Interest on Late payment of TDS 2,140 -

46,391 137,056 

21 Finance cost 
Interest On ICD [From Related Parties] 877,046 1,749,300 

Interest on OFCD 134 265 

877,180 1,749,565 

126


	PML-Notice of NCLT convened Meeting.pdf
	Annexures Combined_ Readable.pdf
	Annexure A- Scheme of Amalgamation
	Annexure B- Valuation Report
	Annexure C- Valuation Report RV
	Annexure D- Fairness Opinion
	Annexure E- BSE-NSE Observation Letters
	BSE No Observation Letter
	NSE No Observation Letter

	Annexure F- Compliant Report
	BSEComplaintsReport
	NSEComplaintsReport

	Annexure G- Board Report of PML_PHCPL
	Draft Report explaining the Effect  - Section 232 (2)(C) 3
	PHCPL Boards report 1

	Annexure H- Abridged Prospectus
	Annexure I- Supplementary Financial statements_PML_PHCPL
	Standalonefinancial Results Sept 2020
	PHCPL - Financial Statements






